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S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited (the “Company” or “We", together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) is a rapidly growing provider of
property management services in China. We have been providing
property management services in China for more than 27 years.
According to China Index Academy (the “CIA") statistics, for years in a
row, we are among the top property services enterprises of a growing
nature in China. In addition, according to the list of top 100 Chinese
property management services enterprises announced by the CIA, our
ranking moved up from the 34th in 2010 to 11th in 2023. As of 31
December 2023, the projects under management covered 201 cities
with gross floor area (“GFA”) under management of 223.7 million
sg.m. in total. We provide extensive property management services
and value-added services for property developers as well as residents
and tenants from the communities managed by us. We have also
developed a one-stop information services platform called Orange APP.
Our residents and customers can enjoy the services we provide through
their mobile devices. Based on our excellent services and enhanced
market reputation, we have built a property management brand
emphasizing quality and customers.

OUR BUSINESS MODEL

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period”), our
revenue has been primarily derived from two business lines — property
management services and value-added services. Our value-added
services cover two business categories comprising community-related
value-added services and developer-related value-added services.
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

We provide an extensive range of property management services to
residents and tenants, including property and facilities maintenance,
security services, maintenance and cleaning services, gardening
services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property
management related services. We manage diverse property portfolios,
including residential and non-residential properties, from office
buildings, multi-purpose complexes and factories to parks and industrial
zones. The majority of our revenue for the year ended 31 December
2023 came from providing property management services.

VALUE-ADDED SERVICES

Our value-added services encompass two types of services:
community-related value-added services and developer-related
value-added services.

o Community-related value-added services: We provide
value-added services to residents and customers in the projects
we manage, including public resources management services,
community engineering services, extensive decoration services,
asset management services, catering services, facility and
equipment management and various other home living services.

° Developer-related value-added services: We provide relevant
services to developers during the property development process.
We mainly provide four types of services related to property
developers, namely on-site sale assistance services, consulting
services, house inspection services and smart community
services.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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Non-executive Directors
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Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES
Mr. You Jianfeng
Ms. Ng Sau Mei

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Ms. Zhang Yan (Chairman)
Mr. Lu Zhongming
Mr. Zhu Wei

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Zhu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Xinmin
Mr. Qi Xiaoming
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Mr. Qi Xiaoming (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Bo (Appointed on 27 December 2023)
Ms. Wu Qiangian

Mr. Gao Xinli (Resigned on 27 December 2023)

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
22/F, Prince’s Building

Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP

Suites 3203-3207, 32/F, Edinburgh Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

China Merchant Bank, Changzhou Branch
Changzhou Branch Tower 1

No. 88, Tongjiang Road South, Changzhou
Jiangsu, the PRC

Agricultural Bank of China, Changzhou Hutang Branch
No. 14, Renmin Road Central, Hutang

Wujin Changzhou

Jiangsu, the PRC

China Construction Bank, Beijing Road West Branch of Nanjing
No. 43-6, Beijing Road West, Nanjing
Jiangsu, the PRC

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Ms. Ng Sau Mei
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REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Maples Corporate Services Limited
PO Box 309

Ugland House

Grand Cayman

KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS IN THE PRC

12th Floor, Seazen Holdings Tower B
No. 5, Lane 388, Zhongjiang Road
Putuo, Shanghai

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

31/F, Tower Two

Times Square

1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER AGENT

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited'
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STOCK CODE
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COMPANY WEBSITE
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L Starting from 19 December 2023, the Hong Kong share registrar of our Company was

changed to Link Market Services (Hong Kong) Pty Limited.



MBHE
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

me¥XsE COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE

HENANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
AREBFT RMB'000 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
WA Revenue 2,024,026 2,866,447 4,350,735 5,179,553 5,424,284
FEM% Annual growth % 72.5% 41.6% 51.8% 19.1% 4.7%
EXil Gross profit 599,879 880,765 1,341,547 1,338,140 1,438,478
FEM% Annual growth % 73.9% 46.8% 52.3% -0.3% 1.5%
EF i Gross margin 29.6% 30.7% 30.8% 25.8% 26.5%
EEM% Annual growth % 0.2% 11% 0.1% -5.0% 0.7%
FAARBERREEFANE  Net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 282,011 452,387 525,455 423,476 445,045
EEM% Annual growth % 85.3% 60.4% 16.2% -19.4% 5.1%
BREE Net profit margin 14.9% 17.1% 12.8% 9.2% 9.4%
EEM% Annual growth % 0.8% 2.2% -4.3% -3.6% 0.2%
DEBREER PERFORMANCE BY SEGMENTS
BZNANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
AREFL RMB'000 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
NEEBRBUA Revenue from property management
services 848,955 1,255,136 2,100,212 3,024,934 3,555,106
EEM% Annual growth % 16.0% 47.8% 67.3% 44.0% 17.5%
BERBEKA Revenue from value-added services 1,175,071 1,611,311 2,250,523 2,154,619 1,869,178
EEM% Annual growth % 166.2% 37.1% 39.7% -4.3% -13.2%
Hh Including
AEEERB KA Revenue from community-related value-
added services 227,701 497,660 915,603 1,284,549 1,314,308
FEN% Annual growth % 375.5% 118.6% 84.0% 40.3% 2.3%
BEEEEREHA Revenue from developer-related value-
added services 947,370 1,113,651 1,334,920 870,070 554,870
FEN% Annual growth % 140.8% 17.6% 19.9% -34.8% -36.2%
NEEERBEF Gross profit from property management
services 242,343 392,623 631,870 739,899 854,063
ERhEL Percentage of gross profit 40.4% 44.6% 47.1% 55.4% 59.4%
BERBER Gross profit from value-added services 357,536 488,142 709,677 598,241 584,415
EREL Percentage of gross profit 59.6% 55.4% 52.9% 44.6% 40.6%

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report
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BENANALEE
For the year ended 31 December

ARETR RMB'000 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
£ Including
HERERBER Gross profit from community-related

value-added services 128,935 214,014 387,805 414,120 468,873
ERIMEL Percentage of gross profit 21.5% 24.3% 28.9% 30.9% 32.6%
HEEEERKEN Gross profit from developer-related value-

added services 228,601 274,128 321,872 184,121 115.542
ML Percentage of gross profit 38.1% 31.1% 24.0% 13.7% 8.0%
NEERRBENE Gross margin of property management

services 28.5% 31.3% 30.1% 24.5% 24.0%
BERBERNE Gross margin of value added services 30.4% 30.3% 31.5% 27.8% 31.3%
L Including
HERERBERNE Gross margin of community-related value-

added services 56.6% 43.0% 42.4% 32.2% 35.7%
BREEERKENZ Gross margin of developer-related value-

added services 24.1% 24.6% 24.1% 21.2% 20.8%
EEEERE SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET

M2A318
As at 31 December
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
BeRRLZEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,339,092 1,882,136 2,504,102 1973,69 1,927,283
ESEWFE Trade receivables 262,767 356,568 622,758 1,292,257 1,796,855
RBEE Current assets 2,051,971 2,985,376 4,336,382 4,699,011 5,552,281
mgE Total assets 2,199,567 3,314,052 5,409,645 6,150,647 6,682,643
AHEE Contract liabilities 390,342 628,073 776,038 747,899 826,549
R EMEMRE Trade and other payables 773,760 1,134,655 1,822,217 2,148,681 2,193,603
Beg Total liabilities 1,232,697 1,904,463 2,885,013 3,242,124 3,391,435
BHAE Total equity 966,870 1,409,589 2,524,632 2,908,523 3,291,208
ik DS Liquidity ratios 168.9% 160.8% 161.7% 156.1% 176.0%
FHIRBEEEERA A

10 2023F F i
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
RERERRBE SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BEZ1ANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
ARETTL RMB'000 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
BETHEEMREFE  Net cash generated from operating
activities 544,683 787,028 755,334 63,876 423,710

RETHEANREFE  Net cash used in investing activities (263,579) (95,324) (591,094) (467,068) (304,231)
BEZH(ER) /EEWE  Net cash (used in)/generated from

SRE financing activities (224,867) (143,246) 468,217 (144,421) (175,253)
BERERESE/N(AD),/ Net (decrease)/increase of cash and cash

BMFE equivalents 56,237 548,458 632,457 (547,613) (55,774)
XBHEERE SUMMARY OF BUSINESS FIGURES

BEZNANALEE
For the year ended 31 December
FERR 1,000 sq.m. 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
EEAR GFA under management
MEE Handover 18,524 44,303 56,593 46,875 29,145
A Including
MEE — % Handover - Seazen Group 12,350 17,575 20,936 14,962 19,113
MEE—£=5 Handover - Third parties 6,174 26,728 35,657 31913 10,032
&k Terminations 1,259 3,040 4,477 2,138 3,718
EXEEER GFA under management as at
the end of the year 60,152 101,415 153,531 198,268 223,695

EERE —FEM% GFA under management - Net increase % 40.3% 68.6% 51.4% 29.1% 12.8%
A Including
EEmE—FHZ GFA under management - Seazen Group 42,797 60,152 80,604 95,403 114.233
EEABR-—%=54 GFA under management - Third parties 17,355 41,263 72,927 102,865 109,462

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report
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To all shareholders:

| hereby on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company present the annual results of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, our total revenue increased
by approximately 4.7% vyear-on-year to approximately RMB5,424.3
million as compared to 2022. The steady growth of our core business
was offset by the weakening business demands from the real estate
development. Taking into account only our core businesses, namely
property management services and community-related value-added
services, the total revenue from such two segments amounted to
approximately RMB4,869.4 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 13.0%.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company was listed in 2018, when we were a property
management company mainly serving residential industry, and
almost all of our GFA under management were residential projects.
Over years of development, we are gradually growing into a
comprehensive logistics service provider, and currently we are not
only serving residential projects, but also extending our services to
hospitals, industrial parks, corporate headquarters, office buildings
and other premises. Meanwhile, our services expanded from property
management to a diversity of catering business, facility management
and other logistic supporting services, to meet the diversified service
demands from customers. Since these services are an integral part
of the life of residents and the operation of enterprises, the market
capacities of such businesses are extremely broad with strong stickiness
in customers’ demand, which bring us ample room for growth of our
business.

In 2023, we experienced various challenges in economic conditions.
| believe everybody can feel it personally, and this was also reflected
by the price movement of the stock market. Under such environment,
our core businesses still maintained growth, with stable business
operations and good cash flows, evidencing that our services were
highly demanded by residents and enterprises, with very remarkable
market space. In terms of overall business of the Company, the real
estate-related businesses further decreased, but these declines did not
affect our overall pace of growth, and we could say with certainty that
the proportion of these real estate-related businesses would decrease
gradually in the future.
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In 2023, the revenue from our property management services
amounted to RMB3,555.1 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 17.5%. During the year, the property management
industry was in face of challenges like other industries, our customers
posed even higher requirements for outsourcing services and had
obviously higher demands for cost-effective services than before;
besides, other players in the property management industry spared no
effort to control and manage costs, exerting great pressures on the
profitability in the industry. In this situation, we properly adjusted the
growth pace, obsoleted or replaced a number of projects, in order to
put more energy into excellent services, stabilise the operational quality
of managed projects of the Company, and maintain the revenue, profit,
cash flow and other indicators of property management services at a
sound level. This year, we terminated a number of projects with profit
and cash flow that could not meet our expectations, nevertheless,
the GFA under management and revenue from property management
services were still growing. | have to reiterate again that since our
service offerings are based on the rigid demands from customers, our
property management services were slightly affected by the external
environment compared with other industries.

In 2023, the revenue from our community-related value-added services
amounted to RMB1,314.3 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 2.3%. Similar to the previous year, our community-
related value-added services were required to be analysed from two
aspects: the revenue from our recurring services being our priority
increased by approximately 12.8% year-on-year, where catering
services and public resources management services contributed strong
growth as compared to the previous year; the revenue from one-off
services which were more or less connected to real estate market,
including residential decoration-related ready-to-move-in service and
asset management service. Our revenue from one-off services in our
community-related value-added services decreased by approximately
25.2% year-on-year. Such decreases were within our expectation given
the huge changes in real estate industry, however, such businesses are
still profitable, and we will continue to provide customers with such
services in the future.

In 2023, the revenue from our developer-related value-added services
amounted to approximately RMB554.9 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 36.2%. Given that the business
is closely related to the real estate development, the reasons for the
decline in revenue are obvious under the current environment. The
smart community services previously disclosed separately have been
incorporated into the developer-related value-added services this year
as they are both highly related to the developers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the profit attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately RMB445.0 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 5.1%. Throughout the year,
we achieved a net operating cash inflow of approximately RMB423.7
million, a significant improvement compared to the previous year as a
result of our strict control of working capital.

PROSPECTS

At present, we are facing a complex economic environment with various
challenges continuing across all sectors and industries. In the face of an
uncertain future, enterprises often tend to develop cautiously and avoid
risks, and so do we.

In terms of property management services, we will continue to
undertake the delivery of a considerable volume of new projects in
2024, which will bring us high-quality property management revenue.
However, we will also review our existing projects under management
to determine whether there is room for further optimization, which will
cover the projects we have won by bidding, including the companies
we have acquired in the past. In the first quarter of 2024, we disposed
a previously acquired property management enterprise from the Group,
details of which are set out in the section headed “Subsequent Event”
in this annual report. In terms of project expansion, we will carry out
such expansion closely around the cities we focus on, expand high-
quality projects in the regions we are familiar with, consolidate our
position in the city and leverage our good operational efficiency to
achieve considerable profit margins.

In terms of community-related value-added services, we will continue
to increase the scale of our recurring business and drive the growth
of catering services in 2024. The rapid growth of public resources
management services in 2023 was mainly attributable to the
improvement of our capability and efficiency in parking management.
In 2024, we will continue to tap into the rigid needs of residents within
the community to further increase the revenue contribution from public
resources management services, such as the operation management
business of charging spots in the community, which we have started
development in 2023 and expect to achieve better results in 2024.

In 2024, we will focus on improving the cost management capabilities
and overall operational efficiency of the Group, and we have already
implemented the relevant improvement measures since the second
half of 2023, which we believe will bring remarkable results in the
upcoming year. The Group has always implemented refined cost
management, and in addition to the labor costs and outsourcing costs
which we have always been concerned about, we have also begun to
strengthen the management of energy related costs, all of which will
help us to achieve more robust profitable results in the future.
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Finally, the proposed payment of final dividend is RMB0.205 per share
of the Company this year, and the dividend payout ratio is equivalent
to approximately 40%, with the potential for a steady rise in such
ratio in the future. The Group currently has a sound financial position
with good cash flow from operations, and has sufficient cash on the
books without significant pressure on repayment of interest-bearing
liabilities to cope with risks that may arise in the future. We believe
that the current environment is still uncertain, and in the absence of
great capital expenditure requirements, we will gradually increase the
dividend payout ratio to reflect the true value of shareholders.

Qi Xiaoming
Chairman
The PRC, 28 March 2024
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The Group is a national residential property management service
provider as well as a fast-growing comprehensive logistics service
provider. In the year of 2023, the Group had maintained its growth,
and property management services and community-related value-added
services, our two core segments, had both performed well and stable.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

In 2023, the revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB5,424.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 4.7% as
compared to approximately RMB5,179.6 million for the corresponding
period in 2022.

The revenue of the Group is derived from three segments: (i) property
management services; (ii) community-related value-added services; and
(iii) developer-related value-added services.

BZ12A31BLEE

For the year ended 31 December
2023%F ERE 20224
2023 Growth rate 2022
AR¥Fr % AREFT
RMB’000 % RMB’000
Y EE RS Property management services 3,555,106 17.5 3,024,934

= 3 {8 AR 75 Community-related value-added
services 1,314,308 2.3 1,284,549
RIS ERS Developer-related value-added services 554,870 -36.2 870,070
& &t Total 5,424,284 4.7 5,179,553
FHIRBEEEERA A

2023F F i
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Property management services

We provide residents and tenants with an extensive range
of property management services, including property and
facilities maintenance, security services, maintenance and
cleaning services, horticulture services, public areas repair and
maintenance and other property management related services.

In 2023, the revenue from property management services of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB3,555.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately 17.5% as compared
to approximately RMB3,024.9 million for the corresponding
period in 2022, accounting for approximately 65.5% of the total
revenue.

As at 31 December 2023, the GFA under management of the
Group was approximately 223.7 million sg.m., representing a net
increase of approximately 25.4 million sg.m. or approximately
12.8% as compared to the end of 2022, of which the GFA
under management attributable to third parties accounted for
approximately 48.9%.

The following table sets forth the changes in the GFA under
management of the Group:

#2023F128318 R
HEABFNANALEE
As at and for the year ended
31 December 2023

R02512F318R
BE0NENANALEE
As at and for the year ended

31 December 2022

NEER NxEER
RBKA RBAA
EERR Rk (311 ERM BR=E EEmE HREL fhitt
Proportion Proportion
of revenue of revenue
from property from property
GFA under Area  management Net Growth GFA under Area  management
management proportion services increase rate  management proportion services
FETA % % FEEH % FEIK % %
thousand thousand
sq.m. % % sq.m. % thousand sq.m. % %
RS Seazen Group 114,233 511 56.8 18,830 19.7 95,403 48.1 58.4
) Third parties 109,462 48.9 432 6,597 6.4 102,865 51.9 416
El Total 223,695 100.0 100.0 25,427 128 198,268 1000 1000
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The following table sets forth the breakdown of changes in the
GFA under management of the Group:

BMAXEIREFRERAEAKERER
RS - R TRRE - BEZRERS
BEETERYE ERRE  REEE
RIBAREMEZERERRETERSE - &%
EXBEBEEZBEXRNGHA  KEMA
BPOMEINZFPRERAEFEERE
RHEFEMIERE -

FA - HEEERBRABOAR
¥1,31438 8T BR022FHARE
1,284.58 B T 1% & #92.3% * 15 421K
ARV 5] B #924.2% - RE B X E 4
Wit EEERERAGRAR  FE4
[ 12 (B AR 7% &9 15 b 3E B £979.8% -
HABEERBDENRABHARE
449387 & T * AL K #26.4% : A
RARHBEREERBHBVABHOAR
#156. 48 BT - R RA447% o
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BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
F F 5K F 55K
thousand thousand
sq.m. sq.m.
R E A At the beginning of the year 198,268 153,531
MEE Handover 29,145 46,875
H Including
EE —HE Handover — Seazen Group 19,113 14,962
FEE—F=75 Handover — Third parties 10,032 31,913
Ik Termination 3,718 2,138
RER At the end of the year 223,695 198,268
— HEEERHE Community-related value-added services

We render public resources management services, community
engineering services, extensive decoration services, asset
management services, catering services, facility management
services and various other convenience and living services,
which cover various sectors and places, to property owners
and customers, with a view to providing them with a more
comfortable and convenient living and working environment.

During the year, the revenue from community-related value-
added services amounted to approximately RMB1,314.3 million,
representing an increase of approximately 2.3% as compared
to approximately RMB1,284.5 million for the corresponding
period in 2022, accounting for approximately 24.2% of the total
revenue. The revenue from value-added services related to the
recurring services grew rapidly, accounting for approximately
79.8% of the revenue from community-related value-added
services. In particular, the revenue from catering services was
approximately RMB449.3 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 26.4%; and the revenue from
the public resources management services was approximately
RMB156.4 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 44.7%.
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— Developer-related value-added services

We mainly provide four types of services related to property
developers, namely on-site sale assistance services, consulting
services, house inspection services and smart community
services.

During the year, the revenue from developer-related value-
added services amounted to approximately RMB554.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 36.2% as compared to
approximately RMB870.1 million for the corresponding period in
2022, accounting for approximately 10.2% of the total revenue.

Cost of Sales and Services

During the year, the cost of sales and services of the Group was
approximately RMB3,985.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 3.8% as compared to approximately RMB3,841.4 million
for the corresponding period in 2022. The increase in cost of sales and
services was mainly due to the continued stable growth of the overall
business scale of the Group.

EFMRERNZE Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin
BENBFENANBLEE BE0RF2ANALER
For the year ended 31 December 2023 For the year ended 31 December 2022
| Yk Rk ERE25 £ ENE EMEL
Percentage  Change in
Gross profit of gross  gross profit Gross profit - Percentage of
Gross profit margin profit margin  Gross profit margin - gross profit
AREFL % % Al ARETT % %
RMB'000 % % ppt RMB 000 % %
MEEERK Property management services 854,063 24.0 59.4 -0.5 739,899 245 55.4
itREERS Community-related value-added
services 468,873 35.7 32.6 3.5 414,120 322 309
FMBEEERE  Developerrelated value-added
services 115,542 20.8 8.0 -0.4 184,121 21.2 13.7
Ehl Total 1,438,478 265 100.0 0.7 1338140 25.8 100.0

AEBE T2023F12A3MBIEEFEHNENB
PARML43858E T - B02FMHAR
1,338 BB TRALERLNTS% - EFERA
4926.5% * $20224F #)25.8% #8 tb £ F0.71#
B BERBEMNEMNLAXTZAMEIEE
R 8 EF = £ A FTEL -

The Group recorded gross profit of approximately RMB1,438.5 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023, representing a year-on-
year increase of approximately 7.5% as compared to approximately
RMB1,338.1 million in 2022. Gross profit margin was approximately
26.5%, representing an increase of 0.7 percentage point as compared
to 25.8% in 2022. The increase in overall gross profit margin was
mainly due to the increase in the gross profit margin of community-
related value-added services.
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Gross profit of property management services was approximately
RMB854.1 million, representing an increase of approximately 15.4%
as compared to approximately RMB739.9 million in 2022. Gross profit
margin was approximately 24.0%, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 0.5 percentage point. The decrease in the gross profit margin of
property management services was mainly due to: (i) the increase in the
cost of service personnel; and (i) the decline in the positive effect on
gross profit margin of residential projects which were newly delivered.

Gross profit of community-related value-added services was
approximately RMB468.9 million, representing an increase of
approximately 13.2% as compared to approximately RMB414.1 million
in 2022. Gross profit margin was approximately 35.7%, representing a
year-on-year increase of 3.5 percentage points. The increase in gross
profit margin was mainly due to: (i) the rapid growth of the revenue
from the public resources management services with relatively high
gross profit margin, which pulled up the gross profit margin of the
segment; and (ii) the contraction of the revenue from the community
convenience and living services and residential decoration-related
ready-to-move-in services with relatively low gross profit margin,
leading to the increase in the gross profit margin of this segment.

Gross profit of developer-related value-added services was
approximately RMB115.5 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 37.2% as compared to approximately RMB184.1 million
in 2022. Gross profit margin was approximately 20.8%, representing a
decrease of 0.4 percentage point compared with last year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses (excluding impairment of goodwill) were
approximately RMB485.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 2.2% as compared to approximately RMB475.5 million
in 2022. As a result of the Company’s strict expense management, the
administrative expenses remained stable.

Other Gains/(Losses) — Net

The other gains of the Group were approximately RMB48.3 million,
whereas the other losses of approximately RMB103.7 million was
recorded in 2022. Such change was mainly due to the decreased losses
from US dollar denominated bonds compared to the previous year.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense amounted to approximately RMB137.7 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 9.5% as compared to
approximately RMB152.2 million for the corresponding period in 2022,
and the tax rate was approximately 21.3%, representing a decline as
compared to approximately 24.3% for the corresponding period in
2022.
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Under the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the Group is
exempted from income tax in the Cayman Islands.

For the Group’s entities incorporated in Hong Kong, as the Group did
not derive any revenue subject to Hong Kong profits tax for the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group did not make provision for Hong
Kong profits tax accordingly.

Profit for the Year

Profit for the year of the Group was approximately RMB507.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 7.0% from approximately
RMB474.7 million for the corresponding period in 2022; profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB445.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 5.1% as compared
to that for the corresponding period in 2022; and net profit margin
was approximately 9.4%, up by 0.2 percentage points over that for the
corresponding period in 2022.

Liquidity, reserves and capital structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Group maintained a sound financial
position. As at 31 December 2023, the current assets of the Group
were approximately RMB5,552.3 million, representing an increase
of approximately 18.2% as compared to approximately RMB4,699.0
million as at 31 December 2022. The cash and cash equivalents of the
Group were approximately RMB1,927.3 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 2.4% as compared to approximately RMB1,973.7
million as at 31 December 2022. The Group’s total equity as at 31
December 2023 was approximately RMB3,291.2 million, representing
an increase of approximately 13.2% as compared to approximately
RMB2,908.5 million as at 31 December 2022. As at 31 December 2023,
the current ratio of the Group was 176.0%, which was at a very stable
level.

Treasury policy

The Directors will continue to follow a prudent policy in managing
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and maintaining a strong and
healthy liquidity position to ensure that the Group is well-placed to
capture future growth opportunities.
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Advance to entities

On 8 May 2023, Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings Co., Ltd.* (T &k %7 #1%
=% B R A F]) (“Jiangsu Xinchengyue”), an indirect subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the 2023 Services Framework 2nd Supplemental
Agreement and 2023 Seazen Framework Supplemental Agreement
(collectively the “Framework Agreements”) with Mr. Wang Zhenhua
("Mr. Wang"”) and Seazen Holdings Co., Ltd. (FT¥iZ i £ B DB R
‘2 d]) (“Seazen Holdings"), respectively, which set out the arrangement
of payment of the parking lot refundable deposits (the “Parking Lot
Refundable Deposits”), for a term of one year expiring on 31
December 2023. Pursuant to the Framework Agreements, the Parking Lot
Refundable Deposits shall be paid by the Group to Mr. Wang's associated
companies (i.e. companies (including Seazen Holdings) in which Mr.
Wang can exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting
rights at their general meetings and their subsidiaries), in relation to the
parking lot sales agency services to be provided by the Group to Mr.
Wang's associated companies, and the maximum daily balance of the
Parking Lot Refundable Deposits to be paid to Mr. Wang's associated
companies (excluding Seazen Holdings) and Seazen Holdings shall be
RMB76,000,000 and RMB515,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023, respectively. Pursuant to the Framework Agreements, the Group
and Mr. Wang's associated companies may further enter into Parking Lot
Sales Agency Services Subsidiary Agreement(s) for the provision of
relevant parking lot sales agency services, and set down the terms of
payment of the Parking Lot Refundable Deposits by the Group for
serving as the sales agent.

The Framework Agreements constitute disclosable and continuing
connected transactions of the Company. For further details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 21 April 2023 and 8
May 2023, respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 6 June
2023.

* for identification purpose only
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As at 31 December 2023, the outstanding balance of the Parking
Lot Refundable Deposits paid by the Group to Mr. Wang's associated
companies in aggregate amounted to RMB537.1 million, which
represented approximately 8.0% under the assets ratio as defined
under Rule 14.07(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The Parking Lot Refundable Deposits are
interest-free and unsecured, and shall generally be refunded to the
Group in the following manners: (i) on a monthly basis with respect to
parking lots sold in the previous month; or (i) with respect to parking
lots that the Group had not been able to procure any sales, within a
specified period (not more than 30 days) upon the expiration of the
relevant Parking Lot Sales Agency Services Subsidiary Agreement (which
generally has a term of three years). As a result, the circumstances
giving rise to the disclosure under Rule 13.13 of the Listing Rules exist.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income of approximately RMB579.2 million
and approximately RMB2.4 million respectively, accounting for
approximately 8.6% in aggregate of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2023. Such financial assets mainly include investments
in various wealth management products of unlisted trust plans and
investment funds, as well as investments in listed bonds denominated
in US dollars. The Board considers any single investment with fair
value accounting for more than 5% of the total assets of the Group as
significant investment. As the Group did not have any single investment
accounting for 5% or more of the total assets of the Group as at 31
December 2023, the Group did not hold any significant investments.
As at 31 December 2023, the Company had no plans for any significant
investments in the future.
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AEBEN2023F 128318 EZ2¢®

Financial assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2023

BE
R2023F12 /318 HZ2023512831BLEE
For the year ended
As at 31 December 2023 31 December 2023
HALE FFABEMN
HEEMLH NREE
AREHE BMOEAILE WHE(FBE) Ht g A
Approximate
percentage Fair value
of the total gains/(losses)
assets of the through profit
REME Nature of investments Fair value Group orloss Other income
AR®FT % AR®FT AR¥FT
RMB'000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
BAARBETABZEMN Financial assets at fair value
TRMEE: through profit or loss:
EHEMREIEES  Trust products and investment funds 516,451 7.7 11,116 185
ETLETESR Listed bonds denominated in US dollars 13,878 0.2 (25,212) =
FIEEE Contingent assets 48,877 0.7 48,877 —
A&t Total 579,206 8.6 34,781 185
#2023F12831H HZ2023F128318LEE
For the year ended
As at 31 December 2023 31 December 2023
HAKE g2t R
MEEMELED HHER
DREE BMABED WERX H g A
Approximate Accrued
percentage expected
of the total credit
assets of the impairment
REME Nature of investments Fair value Group loss Other income
ARE T % AR¥F ARETFT
RMB’000 % RMB’000 RMB’000
BAREBERA Financial assets at fair value
Hitt2HEB AW through other
EREE: comprehensive income:
XX ETES Listed bonds denominated in US dollars 2,377 — (3,619) —
EEEH PLEDGE OF ASSETS

R2023F12A31H  AEB I EEBFETAE
FEEQ
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As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not pledge any assets.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the cash and cash equivalents
balances held by the Group were as follows:

M2023%12A318 720224128318

As at As at

31 December 2023 31 December 2022

AR¥ T AR FT

RMB’000 RMB’000

P usD 23,672 96,831
AR RMB 1,890,607 1,860,514
AT HKD 13,004 16,351
A&t Total 1,927,283 1,973,696

AEBRBAFDKLEHHERRET %
BRXGHUAREHE AEBRFAET
Re#upmamkETk EBLARENE
R OELNIMNERR  RASTIELE
KNKRE EREEREANEERRETE
Bim BBt B ERER

HRER

20241 A - AREBBRTEL LRI BE
LR E AEEBHEEHFENTI0% L
EHEMEEEBRANBRETIEL
+ - B8 A A R #58,800,0007T ° % ¥ (E
DZHEAN - R E—HE AR ¥10,000,000
TER2024F2ATHURE_BRBARE
13,800,000 T B A2024F3 A X 1+

Almost all of the Group’s operating activities are carried out in the
PRC with most of the transactions denominated in Renminbi. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure
of US dollars and Hong Kong dollars against Renminbi as a result
of certain cash balances. We will closely monitor the fluctuations of
exchange rates and give prudent consideration as whether to enter into
any currency swap arrangement as and when appropriate to hedge
corresponding risks.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In January 2024, the Group entered into an agreement with Ms. Wang
Ting, pursuant to which, the Group will dispose of all 70% of its
interest in Shanghai Xiangxi Property Management Service Co., Ltd.*
(BN EYMEEE AR AAF]) to Ms. Wang Ting at the consideration
of RMB58,800,000. The consideration will be paid in three installments,
of which first batch of RMB10,000,000 was paid in February 2024 and
second batch of RMB13,800,000 was paid in March 2024.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, aged 55, is our chairman, executive Director, chief
executive officer and general manager. He also serves as the chairman
and executive director of Tibet Xinchengyue Property Services Co.,
Ltd. (“Tibet Xinchengyue”). Mr. Qi joined the Group in January 2015
and has been responsible for the overall business operation of the
Group, directly managing project development and customer service.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Qi served as the assistant manager of
the executive management department in Jiangsu Seazen Co., Ltd.
("Jiangsu Seazen”), a subsidiary of Seazen Group (as define below)
and the assistant president and general manager in Changzhou Future
Land Property Development Co., Ltd. ("Changzhou Future Land”),
Chengzhong Branch from September 2002 to March 2015. He also
served as the assistant president of Seazen Group Limited (a company
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1030)
(together with its subsidiaries, collectively “Seazen Group”), from
March 2015 to June 2016. Jiangsu Seazen and Changzhou Future Land
are the subsidiaries of Seazen Group.

In July 1992, Mr. Qi graduated from Hefei University of Technology
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.

Mr. Yang Bo, aged 39, is an executive Director and the chief operating
officer of the Company. Mr. Yang joined the Group in March 2021
and has been responsible for the operation management, customer
service management and community-related value-added services of
the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Yang served as a design
manager and an assistant general manager of the design management
department of Seazen Holdings, a subsidiary of Seazen Group Limited
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 601155) from
July 2008 to March 2014, the assistant general manager of Shanghai
branch of Seazen Holdings from April 2014 to May 2014, and the
general manager of Shanghai Chengbei Information Technology Co.,
Ltd. (a group company under Seazen Group) from June 2014 to May
2015. From June 2015 to February 2021, Mr. Yang served as the general
manager of Jiangsu Yungui Network Technology Co., Ltd. (a group
company under Seazen Group).

Mr. Yang graduated from the School of Geography and Ocean Science,
Nanjing University with a bachelor’s degree in science majoring in
urban planning in July 2008.
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Ms. Wu Qiangian, aged 40, is an executive Director and has been
responsible for the Group’s market development. Ms. Wu joined the
Group in August 2012 and has assumed multiple positions, including
the Company’s deputy general manager (responsible for customer
service) and regional general manager of Suzhou. Before joining the
Group, Ms. Wu served as the customer service manager and sales
manager of Changzhou Future Land from June 2007 to July 2012.

In June 2006, Ms. Wu graduated from Yancheng Teachers University
with a bachelor’s degree in management.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong, aged 36, was appointed as a non-executive
Director in July 2019. Mr. Wang joined Jiangsu Seazen in 2009, as a
civil engineer and subsequently as a project manager. From November
2011 to January 2013, Mr. Wang became the vice president and general
manager of the marketing department of Jiangsu Seazen, responsible
for and gained valuable experience in sales and market research. Mr.
Wang has served as a director of Jiangsu Seazen since April 2013.
In February 2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as president of Jiangsu
Seazen, and has been responsible for its general management; and
from 14 December 2015 to 26 October 2016, he served as the general
manager of Seazen Holdings. Since March 2015, Mr. Wang has been
a director of Seazen Holdings. He served as the president of Seazen
Holdings from 24 August 2018 to January 2021 and was re-appointed
as the president of Seazen Holdings on 19 January 2023. He has been
the chairman of Seazen Holdings since 3 July 2019. Mr. Wang has acted
as a non-executive director of Seazen Group since October 2013.

Mr. Wang graduated from Nanjing University with a bachelor’s degree
in Environmental Sciences in 2009.

Mr. Lv Xiaoping, aged 62, was appointed as a non-executive Director
in April 2018. Before joining the Group, he served as the deputy
general manager of Jiangsu Xincheng Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. from
September 2001 to August 2004, and as the general manager of
Seazen Holdings from 30 March 2015 to 15 December 2015. From
August 2004 to February 2013, Mr. Lv served as a director and the
president of Jiangsu Seazen, principally responsible for the overall
management of the Group's residential property development business
carried out by Jiangsu Seazen. From February 2013 to January 2016, Mr.
Lv served as the vice chairman of Jiangsu Seazen and was appointed as
a director of Seazen Holdings in December 2015. In November 2012,
Mr. Lv was appointed as a non-executive director of Seazen Group. He
was appointed as an executive director and the chief executive officer
in January 2016 and has been holding the positions until now.
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Mr. Lv graduated from Naval University of Engineering in July 1983 with
a bachelor’'s degree in engineering and graduated from China Europe
International Business School with an MBA degree in June 2007.

Mr. Lu Zhongming, aged 52, has been serving as a non-executive
Director since April 2018. From December 2001 to May 2010, he served
as the general manager of the finance department of Jiangsu Seazen.
From June 2010 to March 2015, he served as the vice president of
Seazen Holdings. In March 2015, Mr. Lu joined Seazen Group and has
been serving as the vice president and was appointed as an executive
director since January 2016.

In June 1999, Mr. Lu graduated from Nanjing Institute of Economics
and was conferred an MBA degree by Tongji University in December
2013.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan, aged 54, is an independent non-executive Director.
She was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Before joining the Group, Ms. Zhang worked
for Changzhou Accounting Firm as a clerk, deputy director and director
between August 1992 and December 1998. From January 1999 to
December 2000, she served as the chairman and chief accountant
of Changzhou Zhengda Accounting Firm Co., Ltd. Later, she joined
Jiangsu Gongzheng Accounting Firm in January 2001 and had been
serving as the managing deputy chief accountant and director of the
firm’s Changzhou branch until August 2008. Since August 2008, Ms.
Zhang has been an associate professor at Management School of
Jiangsu University of Technology. From December 2011 to December
2017, Ms. Zhang served as an independent non-executive director
of EGing Photovoltaic Technology Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 600537), and served as an
independent non-executive director of Jiangsu Changhai Composite
Materials Co., Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
SZSE stock code: 300196) from February 2016 to May 2022. Ms. Zhang
has been an independent non-executive director of Changchai Co.,
Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, SZSE stock
code: 000570) since April 2020 and an independent non-executive
director of Jiangsu Tianmu Lake Tourism Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code: 603136) since February
2021.

In June 1992, Ms. Zhang graduated from Finance and Economics School
of Soochow University with a bachelor’'s degree in economics. She was
certified as a registered accountant, registered appraiser and senior
accountant in 1997, 1998 and 2002 respectively.
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Mr. Zhu Wei, aged 62, is our independent non-executive Director. Mr.
Zhu was an independent director of Tibet Xinchengyue from August
2016 to February 2018. Since June 1994, Mr. Zhu has been working in
Jiangsu Zhuhui Law Firm and has served as a partner, director and the
chairman of partners’ meetings. Since December 2002, Mr. Zhu has
also been serving as a postgraduate tutor in Soochow University. From
October 2015 to February 2022, Mr. Zhu served as an independent
non-executive director of Changzhou Langbo Sealing Technology Co.,
Ltd. (@ company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, SSE stock code:
603655).

In July 1983, Mr. Zhu graduated from Southwest University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor’s degree in law. He was conferred
a diploma in law by the University of London in December 1997 and
a doctoral degree in constitutional law and administrative law by
Soochow University in June 2007 respectively. In August 1998, Mr. Zhu
was certified as a national first-grade lawyer.

Mr. Xu Xinmin, aged 73, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Xu has the title of economist and has accumulated over 23 years
of experience in the real estate industry. Mr. Xu served as the deputy
secretary general of the China Real Estate Chamber of Commerce
where he was in charge of the work under the research committee
for community services from December 2014 to December 2017.
From August 1992 to February 2001, Mr. Xu acted as the director of
the department of housing management of Changzhou Real Estate
Administration Bureau in Jiangsu and subsequently the director of the
property management office of Changzhou Real Estate Administration
Bureau in lJiangsu. From March 2001 to April 2010, Mr. Xu served
as the director of the general affairs department of China Property
Management Institute. Mr. Xu served as the deputy secretary general of
China Property Management Institute from March 2001 to April 2010,
where he was mainly responsible for overseeing the organization and
implementation of nationwide property management demonstration
evaluation and acceptance. In July 2001, Mr. Xu was appointed as a
senior consultant of the Property Management Committee of Chinese
Universities. From September 2014 to December 2023, Mr. Xu served
as an independent non-executive director of Colour Life Services
Group Co., Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1778).

In June 2005, Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Forestry University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zuo Wei, aged 46, is the chief financial officer of the Company.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for
the finance and accounting of the Group. Mr. Zuo has over 23 years of
experience in professional accounting and financial management. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zuo served as multiple financial management
positions in Shanghai, Nanjing, Chongging and other regional branches
of Vanke Group from July 2001 to August 2015. From August 2015 to
October 2017, he served as the deputy general manager in Shanghai
business division of CIFI Holdings Group. From October 2017 to April
2019, Mr. Zuo served as the general manager of financial management
department in residential development business division of Seazen
Holdings.

Mr. Zuo graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
with a bachelor’'s degree in management in July 2001, majoring in
accounting, and completed the MBA study at Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law, obtaining his master’s degree of MBA in December
2012.

Mr. You lJianfeng, aged 45, is the chief strategy officer and joint
company secretary of the Company. Mr. You joined the Group in
January 2016 and has been responsible for strategic management
and investor relationship of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr.
You worked in Adfaith Management Consulting Inc. from July 2002
to August 2006, and served as a senior analyst in Shanghai Huijiang
Real Estate Consulting Co., Ltd. from July 2007 to February 2011.
From February 2011 to April 2012, he was the product management
director of Noah Private Wealth Management Co., Ltd. and the product
management director of Shanghai Fanghui Equity Investment Fund
Management Co., Ltd. from April 2012 to November 2013. From
November 2013 to December 2015, he served as the financing director
and vice general manager of the financial management department of
Jiangsu Seazen.

In July 2002, Mr. You graduated from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University with a bachelor’s degree in economics
majoring in finance, and obtained his bachelor’s degree in management
by finishing a minor in e-commerce in Department of Computer Science
and Technology. In June 2008, he was conferred a master’'s degree of
MBA by Fudan University.
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Mr. Hu Zixuan, aged 35, is the chief digital officer of the Company.
Mr. Hu joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for
the Group’s information and smart community business. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Hu assumed asset management and information
management positions in Seazen Group from March 2015 to April 2019,
and successively served as the director in asset management center and
the deputy general manager in information management center. From
March 2014 to February 2015, he served as the general manager of
Beijing Fengle Technology Company Limited* (1t 7 #& 24 Rl K B R 2 a)).
From March 2013 to February 2014, he served as the product manager
in Lenovo Corporate Research & Development in Beijing.

Mr. Hu graduated from University of Toronto in Canada in June 2012
with a bachelor’'s degree in applied science majoring in electronic
engineering.

Mr. Dong lJiahua, aged 46, is the deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Dong joined the Group in March 2021 and has been
responsible for the management of the Group's elevator business.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Dong worked in Jiangsu Xincheng
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. from July 2000 to June 2002, Guangdong
Yida Textile Co., Ltd. (B ® & Z 1 & B R 2 7)) from July 2002 to
August 2003, Shanghai Dafeng Computer Co., Ltd. (E/BZEZEfKE
R~ A]) from September 2003 to August 2004, and Shanghai Oasis
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. (L& MEHMESE AR AF) from
September 2004 to October 2008. From October 2008 to May 2019,
he served as the financing manager, assistant general manager and
deputy general manager of the financial management center of Jiangsu
Seazen. From May 2019 to February 2021, he served as the executive
deputy general manager of Yungui branch under Seazen Group.

Mr. Dong graduated from the School of Finance and Management,
South-Central Minzu University with a bachelor's degree in accounting
in July 2000 and a master's degree in business administration of Wuhan
University in September 2012.
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Mr. Gong Liang, aged 37, is the chief human resource officer of the
Company. Mr. Gong joined the Group in March 2023 and has been
responsible for the human resources, administration, branding, and
legal management of the Group. Before joining the Group, Mr. Gong
served as the deputy general manager of the Organization and Human
Resources Development Center in Seazen Holdings from July 2008 to
February 2023.

Mr. Gong graduated from the School of Business Administration of
Zhongnan University of Economics and Law with a Bachelor's degree in
Human Resources Management in June 2008.

Mr. Lu Bingli, aged 42, is the chief technology officer of the Company.
Mr. Lu joined the Group in April 2019 and has been responsible for the
Group's information management business. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Lu assumed real estate information management position in Seazen
Group from April 2008 to April 2019 and served as the assistant
general manager in information management center.

Mr. Lu graduated from Jiujiang University in June 2006 majoring in
computer network engineering and graduated from Fudan University in

2020 with a bachelor’s degree majoring in business management.

L2 For identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to submit the report and audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are property management
services, including property and equipment maintenance, security
services, cleaning services, gardening services, public area maintenance
and other property management related services, and value-added
services, including community-related value-added services and
developer-related value-added services. For the analysis of the Group's
principal activities for the year ended 31 December 2023, see the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

RESULTS

For the Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2023, see the
section headed “Financial Summary” of this annual report

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.205
per share for the year ended 31 December 2023. The final dividend
is still subject to approval by shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 18 June 2024 (the "AGM"), and is expected to be paid on 18
July 2024 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company as at 9 July 2024.

Our dividend policy

Subject to the Companies Act, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands (the “Companies
Act”), through a general meeting we may declare dividends in any
currency but no dividend shall be declared in excess of the amount
recommended by the Board. The articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”) provide that dividends may be
declared and paid out of our profit, realised or unrealised, or from any
reserve of the Company lawfully available for distribution including
share premium.
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The declaration of dividends is subject to the discretion of the
Directors, and the amounts of dividends actually declared and paid will
also depend upon the following factors:

° our general business conditions;

° our financial results;

° our capital requirements;

° interests of our Shareholders; and

any other factors which the Board may deem relevant.

Our future dividend payments to our Shareholders will also depend
upon the availability of dividends received from our subsidiaries in
the PRC. PRC laws require that dividends be paid out of the net profit
calculated according to PRC accounting principles, which differ in
certain aspects from HKFRSs. PRC laws also require enterprises located
in the PRC to set aside part of their net profit as statutory reserves
before they distribute the net proceeds. These statutory reserves
are not available for distribution as cash dividends. Furthermore,
distributions from our subsidiaries may be restricted if they incur debts
or losses or as a result of any restrictive covenants in bank credit
facilities or other agreements that we or our subsidiaries may enter into
in the future.

Any final dividend for a fiscal year will be subject to our Shareholders’
approval. The Group is not aware of any arrangement under which a
Shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends.

KEY RISK FACTORS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following contents list out the key risks and uncertainties
confronted by the Group. It is a non-exhaustive list and there may
be other risks and uncertainties further to the key risk areas outlined
below.

Industry Risk

The Group’s operations are subject to the regulatory environment and
measures affecting the property management industry in the PRC. In
particular, the fees that property management companies may charge
for property management services are subject to regulation and
supervision by relevant regulatory authorities. The Group’s business
performance primarily depends on the GFA under management and
the number of projects that the Group is providing services to, but the
Group's business growth is, and will likely continue to be, affected by
the PRC government regulations relating to the industries in which the
Group operates.
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Business Risk

The Group’s ability to maintain or improve the Group’s current
profitability of various services depends on the Group's ability to
control operating costs (particularly labour costs) and the Group’s profit
margins and results of operations may be materially and adversely
affected by the increase in labour or other operating costs. The Group
may not procure new service contracts as planned or at desirable
pace or price. The Group may not be able to collect service fees from
customers and as a result, may incur impairment losses on receivables.
Termination or non-renewal of the Group's service contracts could have
a material adverse effect on business, financial position and results of
operations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. The Group has been allocating system and staff
resources to ensure ongoing compliance with rules and regulations and
to maintain cordial working relationships with regulators. During the
year, save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report below, the Company has complied, to the
best of our knowledge, with the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands,
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Listing Rules, the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), and
other relevant rules and regulations. Besides, the subsidiaries within the
Group continue to comply with their applicable local laws. During the
year, save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report below, the Company was not aware of any
particular law and regulation that would have a significant impact on
the Group's operation.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group firmly believes that sustainability plays an important role
in its development and is actively applying its ideas to every detail
of the business operations and devoted to delivering a better future
for the society and the Company as well. The subsidiaries within the
Group have implemented relevant environmental protection measures,
and follow the Group's general policy on energy saving and emission
reduction, in order to minimise the environmental damage caused
during the course of business of the Group.

The subsidiaries of the Company in China strictly comply with the
country’s environmental laws and regulations and were not aware
of any material non-compliance with relevant standards, rules and
regulations during the year.

For further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report, which will be reported separately from this report
and will be published at the same time with this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results and summary of assets and liabilities of the Group during
the last five financial years are set out on page 9 to page 11 of this
annual report. The summary shall not constitute a part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

On 16 March 2021, the Company and Citigroup Global Markets
Limited and CLSA Limited (the “Placing Agents”) entered into a
placing agreement, pursuant to which the Placing Agents agreed on
an individual (rather than joint nor joint and individual) basis to place
(the “Placing”) up to 50,000,000 new ordinary shares (the “Placing
Shares”) on a best efforts basis at a price of HK$20.80 per share. The
aggregate nominal value of the Placing Shares is US$500,000, while
the net placing price (after deducting related costs and expenses to
be borne by the Company) is approximately HK$20.64 per share. The
Directors are of the view that the Placing will raise funds to consolidate
the financial position of the Group, provide a good opportunity
to broaden the shareholder base and capital base of the Group to
facilitate future development, and increase the liquidity of the shares.
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The Placing was completed on 23 March 2021. A total of 50,000,000
Placing Shares were successfully placed to not less than six placees at
a placing price of HK$20.80 per Placing Share. The market price of
the shares was HK$23.75 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange
on 15 March 2021, being the date on which the terms of the issue
were fixed. The Company has received the net proceeds from the
Placing of approximately HK$1,032 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB864.3 million) (after deducting the relevant costs and expenses
to be borne by the Company). As at 31 December 2023, save for the
net proceeds allocated for the "acquisition of downstream companies
that are complementary to the Company's community-related value-
added service business", the Company has utilised the net proceeds
in accordance with the plans as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 March 2021. On 28 March 2024, the Board has
resolved to change the use of the remaining unutilised net proceeds
from the Placing with an updated expected timeline of full utilisation,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 28 March
2024 (the “Announcement”) for details. The particulars of the change
in use of proceeds and the updated expected timeline of full utilisation
are as follows:

FERERE(AREFER)
Net proceeds (RMB million)
HnE R0k HEZUBE
125318 12317 Hung 1A318 ROBE  REZAE  REELE
fERE FERE 12R31A 5§ 128318 fERE  ABRLE ZHIRBEN
%R FEHEAM FERERE  ABRLE  CERLE  REALE BiI2E B3R REREX
Revised Revised
Percentage of allocation of  allocation of
planned use of  Planned use of Utilised amount use of net unutilised
net proceeds et proceeds Utilised  during the year Unutilised proceeds amount
as at asat  amount as at ended  amount as at according according
31 December 31 December  31December 31 December 31 December to the tothe  Expected time of full utilisation of
Item 003 003 M 003 203 Announcement ~ Announcement the balance
HENZEELT 60% 5186 695 695 - 5186 - HER
Acquisition of property management companies Not applicable
WEARATHEARREZHREATHAT 30% 2593 616 140 176 mi - HER
Acquisition of downstream companies that are Not applicable
complementary to the Company's community-related
Value-added service business
TRERHRAR RN 10% 84 - - = 864 - T#R
Upgrade of information technology infrastructure Not applicable
TEE-fREERE - - - - - 16 76 WSERRANBLZH
General working capital of the Group On or before 31 December 2025
i 100% 8643 1311 85 176 8643 476
Total
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Major Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the turnover with the top
5 customers of the Group accounts for 14.5% of the Group’s total
revenue (2022: 21.7%), while the turnover with the largest single
customer of the Group accounts for 13.0% of the Group's revenue
(2022: 20.9%).

During the Reporting Period, except Mr. Wang, none of the Directors,
or any of their close associates, or any of the Shareholders (who to
the best knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the issued
shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group's five largest
customers.

Major Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the turnover with the top 5
suppliers of the Group accounts for 12.1% of the Group’s cost of sales
(2022: 4.7%), while the turnover with the largest single supplier of the
Group accounts for 5.2% of the Group’s total purchase amount (2022:
1.3%).

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors, or any of their close
associates, or any of the Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the issued shares of the Company)
had any interest in the Group’s 5 largest suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group always adheres to a people-oriented approach, respects
labor and talents, and regards employees as one of the key partners
in promoting the sustainable development of the Group. The Group
provides all employees with a fair and equitable scope of employment, a
healthy and safe working environment, a competitive remuneration and
welfare system, a scientific and sound training system, multichannel
promotion opportunities and rich and colourful employee activities, to
enhance their sense of belonging and happiness, and to achieve mutual
growth of the employees and the Group.

The Group also understood that it was important to maintain good
relationship with customers, suppliers and other business partners
to achieve its long-term goals, therefore, our management had
established effective communication, promptly exchanged ideas and
shared business update with them when appropriate. During the year,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
its customers, suppliers or other business partners.
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GEARING RATIO

Our gearing ratio was calculated based on total borrowings divided by
total equity as of the respective date. As at 31 December 2023, our
gearing ratio is 0% (as at 31 December 2022: 0.1%).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Company and the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of Companies
Act, amounted to approximately RMB496.6 million (as at 31 December
2022: RMB640.1 million).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 26 and
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Directors were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming
Mr. Yang Bo (Appointed on 27 December 2023)
Ms. Wu Qiangian
Mr. Gao Xinli (Resigned on 27 December 2023)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

39



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RIBABERMRE62K ESSHERD
Y BEERNRRASEMETESNERER
MNERARETHEEEMEEEARES -
EARZETAEITNEFTELTRELAR
ARNBEZERNE-RRRBFREAHM
ZH Y EERATNEZEZ LHERER
REZE -

REBEABERMAE1619% EXRAREE
FHRRBEFAEGL ER=Z0Z—WNEZR
(MREFABTREAFIETZ=0OFE
ABMARREBEIBRTI IR =ZNZ—MES
AB)EBRERE BRREREEUEF(E
RARECHNER)EARLIEB=-FHER
TR RENEZTHEREZERENGH
BRRIE - XYEEERENBE -

At - HEEE  REFRL  BEERALLE
RERLTARBRBFAELHESR
IR E R EE o

BRBRRBFASLBEREECZEEHR
BRBRETRRZ2BER -

EENSREEE
EENFAANBERERENBEELBERR

RERF26EH EFHE32E o

BUFATESHEIMNER

ARRBEWREI S BLIERNTESRIE LR
BIE3BEERBENB LY MAQAR
BEE2023F12A3MB I FE 2 EB I IEHR
TEEHABIAL -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F i

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association, the Board
shall have the power from time to time and at any time to appoint a
person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the
first annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
shall be eligible to be re-elected as a Director at that meeting.

In accordance with Article 16.19 of the Articles of Association, at every
annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall retain office
until the close of the meeting at which he retires and shall be eligible
for re-election thereat.

Therefore, Mr. Yang Bo, Ms. Wu Qiangian, Mr. Lu Zhongming and
Ms. Zhang Yan shall retire from office by rotation and have offered
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the AGM will be set out in
the circular for the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on page 26 to page 32 of this annual report.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
independent non-executive Director made in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considers all independent
non-executive Directors to be independent during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with a term of three years. The respective executive
Directors or the Company may terminate the contract by serving
not less than three months' written notice to the other party. The
appointment of an executive Director shall be in accordance with the
requirements on Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of
Association and applicable Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with
a term of three years. In accordance with their respective letters of
appointment, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to receive a fixed amount of director’'s emoluments while the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any remuneration.
Relevant appointments shall be in accordance with the requirements on
Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association and
applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contracts or letters of appointment with any members of
the Group, excluding the contracts expiring or determinable by the
employers within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

A framework agreement (the “2024 Seazen Framework
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Seazen
Holdings on 27 October 2023 (after trading hours), in relation to
provision of certain property related services to Seazen Holdings;
a services framework agreement (the “2024 Services Framework
Agreement”) was entered into between the Company and Mr. Wang
on 27 October 2023 (after trading hours), in relation to provision of
certain property related services to Mr. Wang's associated companies
(excluding Seazen Holdings), for a term of one year from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024 subject to the 2024 Services Annual
Cap. The Company entered into a services framework supplemental
agreement (the “2024 Services Framework Supplemental
Agreement”) and a framework supplemental agreement (the “2024
Services Framework Supplemental Agreement”) with Mr. Wang
and Seazen Holdings, respectively, to renew the arrangement of
payment of parking lot refundable deposits on 27 October 2023 (after
trading hours).

The above agreements relate to i. the provision of certain property
related services to and ii. the payment of the parking lot refundable
deposits to companies (including Seazen Group) in which Mr. Wang can
exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more of the voting power
at their general meetings and their subsidiaries. Mr. Wang Xiaosong (a
non-executive Director) is the son of Mr. Wang, thus, was considered as
having a material interest in the 2024 Services Framework Agreement,
2024 Seazen Framework Agreement, 2024 Services Framework
Supplemental Agreement and 2024 Seazen Framework Supplemental
Agreement. Such transactions were approved by the independent
Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
held on 22 December 2023.

Save for the transactions, arrangements or contracts set out above
and in the sections titled “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Report of the Directors”
of this annual report and note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transaction, arrangement or contract that is
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a person who was
a Director or his or her connected entity had, directly or indirectly,
a material interest subsisted at any time during the year ended 31
December 2023.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

INTERESTS IN

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this Report of the Directors, no controlling
Shareholders or its subsidiary had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance, whether for the provision
of services or otherwise, to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the year ended
31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered
into or existed during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this
annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 19,302 full time
employees. Total employee benefit expenses for the year ended 31
December 2023 amounted to approximately RMB1,812.1 million, which
included (i) wages, salaries and bonuses, (ii) pension costs, (iii) housing
funds, medical insurances and other social insurances, (iv) other
employee benefits and (v) share option scheme, details of which are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this annual
report.

The Company persists in establishing and optimizing a value-oriented
unified remuneration system based on a proactive and effective
incentive mechanism, materializing optimization of resources allocation
and maximization of corporate efficiency; adhering to the philosophy
of market allocation based on value of position, contribution in terms
of capability and performance difference; maintaining competitiveness
of remuneration, attracting, motivating and retaining core staff. Staff
remuneration is mainly comprised of wages of different positions,
wages in terms of performance, allowances and grants, and social
insurance.

A remuneration committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
remuneration policy and structure for the remunerations of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the Directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT
PROGRAMMES

The details of the Company’s retirement and employee benefit
programs are set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES

On 19 January 2023, Mr. Wang Xiaosong was appointed as the
president of Seazen Holdings.

On 18 December 2023, Mr. Xu Xinmin resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Colour Life Services Group Co., Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
1778).

Mr. Gao Xinli has tendered his resignation as an executive Director and
ceased to be a member of the environmental, social and governance
committee of the Company to focus on his other career development
with effect from 27 December 2023. On the same day, Mr. Yang
Bo was appointed as an executive Director and a member of the
environmental, social and governance committee of the Company. For
details relating to changes of executive Directors, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 27 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that no other
information is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests and short
positions which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions
of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or
which were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"”) were as follows:
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REAREBRZEFR Long position in the Company’s ordinary shares
FRRAR REBEN
HERGHE Aol
Number of
sharesand  Approximate
underlying percentage of
EEps Name of Directors SOREEMEE Identity and nature of interest shares held  shareholding
BN A Mr. Qi Xiaoming ELGHBEARETLZEA  Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary ~ 4,680,000(L)@ 0.54%
BEEE Mr. Yang Bo EGHBEARETATEA  Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary 959,000(L)® 0.11%
REELRT Ms. Wu Qiangian ELGHBEAREATEA  Beneficial owner and trust beneficiary 1,138,022(L)@ 0.13%
B 5 - Notes:
1. FEILXKRTRBROZIEFRE - 1. The letter “L” denotes the long position in shares.
2. HA s E RN L EE KRR R R20184F10520 2. Including Mr. Qi Xiaoming's interests in 450,000 share options granted by the
H ?7? MmEEREGT S ((BRESTSE])ETHAX Company under the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 20 October
A A % #9450,0000) BB ER A - AR 2018 (the “Share Option Scheme”), and 350,000 underlying award shares (the
AR B FR2019%F 11 B158 549 89 B8 17 48 By =1 21 “Award Shares”) upon full vesting of the awards granted by the Company under
(RORBAEDETAHEARRR LN EZBE the share award scheme adopted by the Company on 15 November 2019 (the
578 1% £9350,000 % 18 B8 S2 B Ak 1 ([ 2 AR 43 1) “Share Award Scheme").
REA R o
3. EhaEsEsE NEREFESEBETEHEARQR 3. Including Mr. Yang Bo's interests in 400,000 share options granted by the
X #9400,0000 EEREFR B R - A RKRHD Company under the Share Option Scheme and 335,000 underlying Award Shares
EHFABETHARARENRHEHN R B % upon full vesting of the awards granted by the Company under the Share Award
#)335,000 R B RB RN P HEA R - 5% Scheme. Mr. Yang Bo was appointed as an executive Director on 27 December
ER2023F12A27TEREERPTES - 2023.
4. EFBERERELTREREFEEBETHAR 4. Including Ms. Wu Qiangian’s interests in 1,000,000 share options granted by the
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Company under the Share Option Scheme and 70,000 underlying Award Shares
upon full vesting of the awards granted by the Company under the Share Award
Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (as defined in Part XV of SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of SFO (including interests
and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of SFO, to be entered into the register maintained by the Company, or
which were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no rights to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouse or children under the age of 18, or were there
any such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
controlled companies, or affiliates and their subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other
corporations.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
were required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which
were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO:



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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REBH

FERGEE BAL
Number of  Approximate
shares percentage of

BRREZ Name of Shareholders HHREFME Identity and nature of interest held shareholding
T4 Mr. Wang FHEETNEBA Founder of a discretionary trust 600,000,000 (L) 68.86%
(Mt 5¥2) (Note 2)

Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Chen Ting Sen (PTC) ZFEA (K 3E3) Trustee (Note 3) 600,000,000 (L) 68.86%
Limited Limited

Infinity Fortune Infinity Fortune RHEABAEZ (MIFE3)  Interest in a controlled corporation 600,000,000 (L) 68.86%
Development Limited Development Limited (Note 3)

First Priority Group First Priority Group SRR (IFE3)  Interest in a controlled corporation 600,000,000 (L) 68.86%
Limited Limited (Note 3)

Wealth Zone Hong Kong  Wealth Zone Hong Kong TAEE R (FT54)  Interest in a controlled corporation 600,000,000 (L) 68.86%
Investments Limited Investments Limited (Note 4)

Innovative Hero Limited  Innovative Hero Limited ~ E 25 B A (fft 55) Beneficial owner (Note 5) 600,000,000 (L) 68.86%

B 5 - Notes:

1. FEILXKRTRBROZIEFRE - 1. The letter “L” denotes the long position in shares.

2. F % & BHua Sheng{E BB A A - Bt » Chen 2. Mr. Wang was the founder of Hua Sheng Trust, through which, Chen Ting Sen

Ting Sen (PTC) Limited/F AL A BB H Z |
7% B #575600,000,0000 &0 K 57 &

3. Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited {£ & Hua Shengf{z 3.
REBEITEEERMERTFAUNEREKREE
B/E & AR B R AR A Infinity Fortune
Development Limited 100% &) B 8 17 f& & - M
Infinity Fortune Development Limited # % First
Priority Group Limited 100% #9 2 2 4T R 7K ©

4. Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited /3 B 4,
First Priority Group Limited 2 £ & ©

5. Innovative Hero Limited 75 BFf Wealth Zone Hong 5.
Kong Investments Limited & ## &

(PTC) Limited held long position in 600,000,000 shares through its controlled
corporations in its capacity as the trustee.

Chen Ting Sen (PTC) Limited, as trustee of Hua Sheng Trust, which was established
by Mr. Wang as settlor in favor of his family members, held 100% of the issued
share capital of Infinity Fortune Development Limited, which in turn held 100% of
the issued share capital of First Priority Group Limited.

Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments Limited is 100% held by First Priority Group
Limited.

Innovative Hero Limited is 100% held by Wealth Zone Hong Kong Investments
Limited.

B ESCATIE B &SN - R2023F12A310 - & Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors and
E NN B *?TBZ/\E\I[T MABME T—J/\i the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any persons
(BEFERARAHZERITHRABERINRER (other than the Directors or the chief executive of the Company) who
i 17 =k 8 @8 Hx1 PHEERBESFRAE 1|7|< had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
Bl XV EB E2 &35 BB & X A A AN Q7] &5 the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company and
RFFBE  HALERARARERF KB the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
EEBEBKRTFENECHA BT IA the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register kept by
B e the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

47



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BREsE

f% B R2018F10B208 (KM BB AE|E
FABBEBAZREERGRMOERES -

=: )

BRESHZANSESEEAETLRE
150 441 AR A 4R 5 A 4 L AR A
%5 ) o, 11 4R -

AEsRE

EXZSNEENBERFBER T EFMEHR
SEEZERA TR BB A0 BIE -

ARA - EF AR AEEFEEAREN
ERAR(EETEAXADNEMRERE(T R
EREER) B

(@) ARw - EFABHETERREM
MITESE:

(b) ARA - EFRAHIEMELTE QT
ZHMTER (BRBIUIFNTES):

(© ARRAF - EFRAHEITERRZS
RERANE:

MatEEREFEME TR EBR LA EAER
MN2EEN-—ZHAZBALTEZERENEM
RAFEEBERE REERA KIFEFES
RARE  BREAEAMBNOEAMALAE
5 BT FE AR S BB BME 5T 8 P IR BR AR B K
BAe

AEEANEMNBRER  ARAREX1.00
BIERZ AR T HRE -

FHIRBREEEERAR
20235 3R

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally adopted by a written
resolution of the Shareholders on 20 October 2018 (the “Adoption
Date”).

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

Participants of the scheme

The Board may, at their absolute discretion, invite any person belonging
to any of the following classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares.

Any employee (whether full time or part time) of our Company, its
subsidiaries or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which our Group
holds any equity interest, including:

(a) any executive director of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

(b) any non-executive director (including independent non-executive
director) of our Company, its subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

(c) any senior management of our Company, its subsidiaries or
Invested Entity;

and, for the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the options may
be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants. For the avoidance
of doubt, any person who falls within any of the above classes shall
not, by itself, unless the Board otherwise determines, be construed as a
grantee of option under the Share Option Scheme.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to our
Company as consideration for the grant.
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Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of our Company must not in aggregate exceed
80,000,000 shares (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”), being 10% of the
shares in issue on 6 November 2018 (the “Listing Date"”) (but taking
no account of any shares which may be issued under the exercise
of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the prospectus of the
Company dated 24 October 2018 (the “Prospectus”), and representing
approximately 9.18% of the issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this report. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating
the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to each eligible
person in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share
capital of our Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit”).
Any further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant
must be subject to the issue of a circular to the Shareholders and the
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting of our Company with such
eligible person and its associates abstaining from voting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may be accepted by an eligible person within 15 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option.

Subject to the discretion of the Board who may impose restrictions on
the exercise of the option, an option may be exercised one year after
the date on which the option is granted and shall expire on the earlier
of the last day of (i) a six-year period from the date of such grant; and
(i) the expiration of the Share Option Scheme.

Exercise price of options

The exercise price for shares under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations on the date of grant of that option, which must be
a business day; (ii) the average closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of that option; and (iii) the nominal value
of the shares.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

49



EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BRETSNHAR
BRESAINARBDASRABABEF NEF -

M2023F1A18 - BIBEREFSTRLE W
B85 % #E 19 81 &257,543,000 © 72023412 A31
H REBREFSIRLOERENHE
62,062,000 °

MAFREE  BEREFSE T HEITR
5 48 8 /573,068,000 © (FRAFFHKAH A
NAIEEITRAMA8.39% -

ERBREASZE—FTHE RERER
DEER—REHN - BRESS]—H-8B
a2 HBERBOREMEA -

M2019F9A2A(E —RBFHBH]) &H
16,000,000 R E(E—MHBRE)E X
BF=ZRHTESERARGIREE  KH
REEZEF - XFLBHNKTESRSTRS.89
B FHEREEF ARLBHEER
ZE2024F10A19B L BIEABR - W EBFET
PG 3E P 18 5 AT 57 a8

(i) RE-RBEEAMEFF2EAR R
FEEARRELERISBIER
REEHEREEBNI0%:

iy RE-RKELAMBBHA24EA%K &
FEBEARRELERIABIER
FEE —HEARERHMN30% &

iy RE—XZXLBEHEA6MEAL &
FERMARBELERARIZER -
FEE—IEREAENI0% -

FHIRBREEEERAR
20235 3R

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of six years
commencing from the Adoption Date.

As at 1 January 2023, the number of options available for grant under
the Share Option Scheme was 57,543,000. As at 31 December 2023,
the number of options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme was 62,062,000.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme as at the date of this annual report is 73,068,000, which is
approximately 8.39% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this annual report.

For further information regarding the Share Option Scheme, see
“Statutory and General Information — Share Option Scheme” of the
Prospectus. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme is 7 months.

On 2 September 2019 (the "Date of First Granting”), a total of
16,000,000 share options (the “First Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 3 executive Directors and 29 employees of the Company.
Closing price per share immediately preceding the Date of First
Granting is HK$5.89. The First Batch Share Options are valid for a
period commencing from the Date of First Granting until 19 October
2024, and vesting of the First Batch Share Options is conditional upon
the fulfilment of the following conditions:

(i) upon 12 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
40% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options;

(i) upon 24 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
30% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options; and

(iii) upon 36 months from the Date of First Granting, and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”,
30% of the total number of the First Batch Share Options.
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MR2020F6 A30H([E R BHERAM &£

2,960,000 IR E((E-HBREDEF T
FARRIOEEE  WORBEF - EH
B HA A A9 U T B 2195478 7T - £ —HEBE IR
A - XAREBEEE2024F108198 1
AN E®R  WASTIIEHEREH AR
B:

On 30 June 2020 (the “Date of Second Granting”), a total of
2,960,000 share options (the “Second Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 10 employees of the Company. Closing price per share
immediately preceding the Date of Second Granting is HK$19.54. The
Second Batch Share Options are valid for a period commencing from
the Date of Second Granting until 19 October 2024, and vesting of the
Second Batch Share Options is conditional upon the fulfilment of the
following conditions:

EF-HBREHE
No. of Second Batch
Share Options

FEAH

Vesting Date

HBERMS

Vesting Conditions

30% ) & — HE BE AR 2021468308

30% of the Second Batch
Share Options

30 June 2021

30% ) & — HEBE AR 20229 6A30H

30% of the Second Batch
Share Options

30 June 2022

40% ) 55 — #t BE AR 4 20234%6H30H

40% of the Second Batch
Share Options

30 June 2023

B E2020F12A31R L FE EHE £2019F 12 3B IEFE AR A H#
HREREGFFEMEL  BEZELI0%NRFEBEAXRRELERIE
®’IZER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has an increment of at least 40% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HE2021F12A3MBLEFEHEEEZ2019F12A3H EEFE AR A E R
MRERIEL FFDEARLL - B ED120% REEBARREL EHAK]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has an increment of at least 120% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

BZE2022F12A31B L FEEBFE2019FN2ANBIEFEARA#ER
MR EAEFNDE AR - BEEL230% RFEBAXRREDEHEE]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 has an increment of at least 230% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”
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R2020F 1M AI0R(E=ZXRBHBE B &
1,350,000 ERE(E=HBRE) DK
EFARANGBEESE ROREBEEFZAR
RSl HEA20758 T FHE
B SE = AR T HE®EZ2024F10819H
IEHMRER WEAFTIIGEEXRER
B

On 10 November 2020 (the “Date of Third Granting”), a total of
1,350,000 share options (the “Third Batch Share Options”) were
granted to 1 employee of the Company. Closing price per share
immediately preceding the Date of Third Granting is HK$20.75. The
Third Batch Share Options are valid for a period commencing from the
Date of Third Granting until 19 October 2024, and vesting of the Third
Batch Share Options is conditional upon the fulfilment of the following
conditions:

EoHEREEE HEAH BEKRG

No. of Third Batch

Share Options Vesting Date Vesting Conditions

30% Hy 55 = 4t BE A% 42 20214 6A30H BHZE2020F12A318 L FEHEE £2019F12A318 L FE AR Al #

30% of the Third Batch 30 June 2021
Share Options

30% K] 55 =t BB A 20229 6A30H

30% of the Third Batch 30 June 2022
Share Options

40%H) 5 = HE BB AR 4 20234%6H30H

40% of the Third Batch 30 June 2023
Share Options

FHIRBREEEERAR
20235 3R

HREREGFFEMEL  BEZELI0%NRFEBEAXRRELERIE
®’IZER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2020 has an increment of at least 40% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HE2021F12A3MBLEFEHEEEZ2019F12A3H EEFE AR A E R
MRERIEL FFDEARLL - B ED120% REEBARREL EHAK]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 has an increment of at least 120% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

BZE2022F12A31B L FEEBFE2019FN2ANBIEFEARA#ER
MR EAEFNDE AR - BEEL230% RFEBAXRREDEHEE]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2022 has an increment of at least 230% as
compared with that for the year ended 31 December 2019 and annual
individual performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”
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R2021F7A1H(ERMABEBRR]) &4
7,700,000 flE R E((SENMBREDER D
FARRBAES  BORBEEFOIED
BHHI BT A U T (B 223.608 7T © & PO #t BE IR
HESEMXELBEEZ2024F108198 1
HRIANE R - WA THIEEHZEREH AR
B:

On 1 July 2021 (the “Date of Fourth Granting”), a total of 7,700,000
share options (the “Fourth Batch Share Options”) were granted to
13 employees of the Company. Closing price per share immediately
preceding the Date of Fourth Granting is HK$23.60. The Fourth Batch
Share Options are valid for a period commencing from the Date of
Fourth Granting until 19 October 2024, and vesting of the Fourth
Batch Share Options is conditional upon the fulfilment of the following
conditions:

FMtERERE HEAH BEKRG

No. of Fourth Batch

Share Options Vesting Date Vesting Conditions

30% Y 5 10 Bt B8 AR 42 2022F7A1H HZE2021F12A3B L FE BB E2020F12A318 L FE AR A #

30% of the Fourth Batch 1 July 2022
Share Options

30% Y 28 PO #t B8 A% 4 2023%F7H1H

30% of the Fourth Batch 1 July 2023
Share Options

40% B 55 Y HE B A% 4 2024 7H1H

40% of the Fourth Batch 1 July 2024
Share Options

AR REMEFEFEAL  BEEIETERRFEAARRELERIG
®’IZER

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2021 reaches certain goals as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

HZE2022F12A3BEFEHEB Z2020F12A3BEFEARAA A
BREREMEFFEREL  BEINETERRFEAAXRRELERIAE]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ending 31 December 2022 reaches certain goals as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”

B ZE2023F 128318 L FEEE F2020F 128318 EFEAA A # R
R EMEFRERL  BEERNETERRFEAAXRREDERIAR]
The net profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023 reaches certain goals as compared
with that for the year ended 31 December 2020 and annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “pass”
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REZE2023F12A3BLEFERN BREZ During the year ended 31 December 2023, details for changes of the

BEFBOT: share options are as follows:
R2023E 0238
18188 128318 REBBEGRE
RABHATE EREEEH BEZANME
NERESRN ATENBRE THYwE
BRESEALE RUAH kit 8Ee FREE  ARE(ER) ERfR ERiH Ehis SRORHHE (Bm)
Weighted
Number of average
Number of shares involved ~ closing price
shares involved in the share immediately
in the share options granted  before the date
options granted but not yet of exercise
but not yet Granted Exercise Lapsed Cancelled  exercised on of the share
Name of share exercised on during price Exercised during during 31 December options
options holders ~ Date of grant 1 January 2023 the year (HKS)  during the year the year the year 2023 (HKS)
g%
Executive Directors
HARE 20195928 450,000 - 618 - - - 450,000 -
Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2 September 2019
BiELtE 01%E7A1H 700,000 - 23.60 - 300,000 - 400,000 -
Mr. Yang Bo® T July 2021
REERL 20195928 1,000,000 - 618 - - - 1,000,000 -
Ms. Wu Qiangian 2 September 2019
REFFED 200ENMA108 945,000 - 2085 - 540,000 - 405,000 -
Mr. Gao Xinli( 10 November 2020
it 3,095,000 - - 840,000 - 2,255,000
Sub-total
EARA 2019%9A2A 7,238,000 - 6.18 100,000 455,000 - 6,683,000 6.30
Other Grantees 2 September 2019
202056A308 1,652,000 - 19.90 - 1,424,000 - 228,000 -
30 June 2020
201%7818 3,640,000 - 23.60 - 1,800,000 - 1,840,000 -
1 July 2021
it 12,530,000 - 100,000 3,679,000 - 8,751,000
Sub-total
@t 15,625,000 - 100,000 4,519,000 - 11,006,000
Total
Bt & Notes:
1. R A LA R2023FE 1N A27TABITHITES - 1. Mr. Gao Xinli resigned as an executive Director on 27 December 2023.
2. B8 R2023F12A27THEZ T ARITEE - 2. Mr. Yang Bo was appointed as an executive Director on 27 December 2023.

54 FHIRBREEEERAR
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BHORBEHSRE

EXgREBERORBAIRAEESE
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b=

%

s8R #

BEROEZBFEEENMERERLE S
OESRMHEE(TREDRIZERMDEE
52108 W ey 52 B AR 10) 2 511 15 #8 18 722019
FNMNABGEARAREBITRABEA1.25%
% Bty 22 B 5t 2 702021F7H18 &20214F8
RA23A# T BHBARESIENES
B% 7 8 (2 18 B AR & A% 17 58 Bh 51 21 )%
HERG FAREE R TS5 BEMN2021F8
A23A AR R A B BT/ AN B8 /5.0% - B
43,603,500 B 0 (b AR AR A # &5 B #3
KB 1TRR {5 £95.0%) °

BRORBIAEETESRERSTRE
i1 B E

EhEBAEETE2EEESUERD
HEWERS

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 15 November 2019.

Purpose

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are: (i) to provide employees
of the Company (the “Employees”) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company; (ii) to encourage Employees to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and the shares or
the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders; and (iii) to provide
the Company with a flexible means of either retaining, incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to
the Employees.

Participants of the Share Award Scheme

The Employee(s) selected by the Board pursuant to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme to participate in the scheme (the “Selected
Participant(s)”).

Scheme Limit

The maximum number of shares involved under all relevant grants
made pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (excluding Award Shares
that have been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award Scheme)
in aggregate must not exceed 1.25% of the total issued share capital of
the Company as at 15 November 2019. The Share Award Scheme was
amended on 1 July 2021 and 23 August 2021 to adjust the maximum
number of shares involved in the relevant grant (excluding Award
Shares that have been forfeited in accordance with the Share Award
Scheme) to an aggregate not exceeding 5.0% of the total issued share
capital of the Company as at 23 August 2021, i.e. 43,603,500 shares
(representing approximately 5.0% of the issued shares of the Company
as at the date of this report).

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Share
Award Scheme

There is no limit of maximum entitlement of each participant under the
Share Award Scheme.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

55



56

EEERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RBRHOKZTES
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FHIRBREEEERAR
20235 3R

Grant Price of Award Shares

The grant price of the Award Shares awarded under the Share Award
Scheme (if any) shall be determined by the Board at its sole discretion,
and shall be set out in the grant notice issued to the grantees.

Voting Rights

The trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the “Trustee”) and the Board
shall not exercise any voting rights attached to any shares held on the
trust constituted by the trust deed (the “Trust”).

Restrictions

The Award Shares awarded to the Selected Participants under the
Share Award Scheme shall be personal to such Employee and shall not
be assignable or transferable. Each of the Selected Participants shall
not sell, transfer, charge, mortgage, encumber or create any interest in
favour of any other person over or in relation to any award, or enter
into any agreement to do so. The Selected Participants are not entitled
to any rights attached to the unvested Award Shares, including but
not limited to any voting right and entitlement to dividends that have
accrued prior to the vesting of such Award Shares.

If any Director possesses unpublished inside information in relation
to the Company, or where dealings by Directors are prohibited under
any code or requirement of the Listing Rules or any applicable laws
from time to time, no payment shall be made to the Trustee and no
instructions to acquire shares shall be given to the Trustee under the
Share Award Scheme and the trust deed. Further, the Board shall not
award any shares to any Director during the periods in which dealing in
shares is prohibited pursuant to the Listing Rules or any corresponding
code or securities dealing restrictions adopted by the Company.

Operation

The Share Award Scheme is a share scheme funded by existing Shares.
Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Board (or the committee
(if any)) may from time to time instruct the Trustee to purchase the
existing shares in the open market, and determine, among other things,
the timing of awards, list of Selected Participants, number of Award
Shares, vesting date and conditions of vesting, and performance targets
that must be achieved before any of the Award Shares may be vested
in the Selected Participants under such award. Each grant of an award
to any Director, or mid to senior level management and key personnel
of the Company shall be subject to prior approval of the independent
non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-executive
Director who is a proposed recipient of the grant of an award).
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Vesting and Lapse

Unless otherwise determined by the Board (or the committee (if any))
at its discretion, the relevant Award Shares held by the Trustee on
behalf of the Selected Participants on trust shall not vest in the relevant
Selected Participant in the following circumstances:

(@) the Selected Participant ceases to be a Selected Participant by
reason of (i) death of the Selected Participant, (ii) termination
of the Selected Participant’s employment or contractual
engagement with the Group or an affiliate by reason of his/her
permanent physical or mental disablement, or (iii) termination
of the Selected Participant’s employment or contractual
engagement with the Group by reason of redundancy; or

(b) other circumstances as provided in the scheme rules.

Upon occurrence of any of the above circumstances, any Award Shares
awarded but have not been vested in the Selected Participant will be
returned to the Trust in accordance with the rules of the Share Award
Scheme.

Unless otherwise determined by the Board (or the committee (if any))
at its discretion, in respect of a Selected Participant who retires at any
time prior to a vesting date, all the Award Shares of such Selected
Employee shall continue to vest on the vesting date.

Duration and Termination

Unless early terminated by the Board, the Share Award Scheme shall
be effective for 10 years from the adoption date of 15 November
2019 and up to 14 November 2029. As at the date of this report, the
remaining life of the Share Award Scheme was around five years and
seven months.

Further details of the Award Shares under the Share Award scheme are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 15 November 2019
and note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a total of 3,000,000
Award Shares were granted under the Share Award Scheme to certain
Employees for their contribution to the Group.
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REBE2023F12A3BLFER - BEEKHG During the year ended 31 December 2023, details for changes of
ZEEFBOT Award Shares are set out as follows:
SRR NEEERL
ROERR H2023F1A17 H203E12 /318 HNMERY
FE(Rn) BRLEHAERNE BREBHASRNE Y E
KBRAEEALE  RURE (Wit2) BRfgE ERRE  ENEER Ehxi Eniid BRA#E (E7)
Weighted
average
closing price
Grant price immediately
payable per Number of Award Number of Award before the date
Award Share ~ Shares granted but Granted Cancelled ~ Shares granted but of vesting of the
Name of (HKS) unvested as at during the ~ Vested during ~ Lapsed during during the unvested as at Award Shares
Award Shares holders Date of grant (Note 2) 1 January 2023 year the year the year year 31 December 2023 (HKS)
E L
Executive Directors
BB W0E6830B (13£3) 995 400,000 - = 400,000 s s e
NIr. Qi Xiaoming 30 June 2020 (Note 3)
2838 8E (1 56) 449 500,000 - 150,000 - - 350,000 6.17
28 March 2022 (Note 6]
hELE WNETEIR (M) 18 280,000 - - 120,000 - 160,000 -
Mr. Yang Bo 1 July 2021 (Note 5
00%3R28R (R 56) 449 250,000 - 75,000 - - 175,000 617
28 March 2022 (Note 6]
REELL 20068308 (33) 995 100,000 = = 100,000 = = =
Ms. Wu Qiangian 30 June 2020 (Note 3)
WNE3RA (K 6) 449 100,000 - 30,000 - - 70,000 6.17
28 March 2022 (Note b)
FEARERE) 20051108 (K 1043 300,000 - = 300,000 = s 5
Mir. Gao Xinli (Note 1) 10 November 2020 (Note 4)
W02F3R288 (1 26) 449 300,000 - 90,000 - - 210,000 6.17
28 March 2022 (Note 6)
At 2,230,000 - 345,000 920,000 - 965,000
Sub-total
EERA ANE6FNE () 9% 940,000 . 2 940,000 . . .
Other Employees 30 June 2020 (Note 3]
W1E7R18 (K 35) 18 1,120,000 - - 480,000 - 640,000 -
1 July 2021 (Note 5)
0035288 (1 6) 449 2,920,000 - 741,000 625,000 - 1,554,000 6.17
28 March 2022 (Note 6)
0355A8A(H3789) 2% = 2100000 - - - 2,100,000 -
8 May 2023 (Notes 789)
203954 (B 840) 246 - 900,000 - - - 900,000 -
4 September 2023 (Notes 889)
“AEREMAL  00%6E30B(E) 995 400,000 - - 400,000 - s S
(FREES) 30 June 2020 (Note 3]
Top 3 highest paid
indidual fexcluding 2015 751R (B325) 18 210,000 - - 90,000 = 120,000 -
Directors) 1 July 2021 (Note 5)
WNE3R8A (K6) 449 550,000 - 165,000 - - 385,000 6.17
28 March 2022 (Note 6)
it 6,140,000 3,000,000 906,000 2,535,000 - 5,699,000
Sub-total
&t 8,370,000 3,000,000 1,251,000 3,455,000 - 6,664,000
Total
FHIRBREEEERAR
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Bt 5 - Notes:

1. RIF R ER2023F12A27ABHTRITES - 1. Mr. Gao Xinli resigned as an executive Director on 27 December 2023.

2. BTERERNBEEEROEBRZM - 2. The grant price shall be payable upon the vesting of the relevant Award Shares.

3. REKREFSRENEEEBKRME DR 3. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
5230% * 30%&40%E 5 RIK2021F6HA30A + 30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2021, 30% of the Award
202296308 &2023F6H30H & & - B B & Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2022, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be
BEHEL2HGEMBRRMI2IRAAFTBHR vested on 30 June 2023. For details, please refer to note 27 to the consolidated
2020F6 A30B B A & ° financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 30 June 2020.

4. REKREFSRENEREBKRMEZ DR 4. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
5230% * 30% [40%FE 5 Rl 20216 A30R - 30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2021, 30% of the Award
20229 6A30H K2023F6A30R & - B B &+ Shares shall be vested on 30 June 2022, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be
BEL2HGAVBFHRRMNI2IRAARBHA vested on 30 June 2023. For details, please refer to note 27 to the consolidated
202011 B10BMI R - financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 10 November

2020.

5. REKEFSRENEBERBIKMGEZ AR 5. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
9 230% * 30% K40% & 5 5l 202267818 30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 1 July 2022, 30% of the Award Shares
20234 7B18 K202456 710 %8B - BB shall be vested on 1 July 2023, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be vested
2B AMHHREWMFT27R A AR B A2021 on 1 July 2024. For details, please refer to note 27 to the consolidated financial
FTA2BHRE - statements and the announcement of the Company dated 2 July 2021.

6. REREFERENHEBBRHER  RBR 6. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
5 230% * 30% N40% FE 7 B A2023F 4818 - 30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 1 April 2023, 30% of the Award
2024 FARAVB K2025F4AVERE - BHFER Shares shall be vested on 1 April 2024, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be
SERAUB®RENF27RAQE A A2022 vested on 1 April 2025. For details, please refer to Note 27 to the consolidated
FI3A28AM AL financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 28 March 2022.

7. REXNEFSRENEBERBGOR  ZBK 7. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
19 230% ~ 30% 40% & 9 5l 120245781 - 30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 8 May 2024, 30% of the Award
20259 5HA8H k202665 A8AKE - AMFIEH Shares shall be vested on 8 May 2025, and 40% of the Award Shares shall be
2HREVHHREMF27R A AR B H /2023 vested on 8 May 2026. For details, please refer to Note 27 to the consolidated
FSASHKI AL © financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 8 May 2023.

8. REREESRENHEEBIGGRE  HEHR 8. Subject to the fulfilment of the relevant vesting conditions set out by the Board,
$9230% * 30% K40% &5 BI72024F9 7041 - 30% of the Award Shares shall be vested on 4 September 2024, 30% of the
2025F9A4B K2026F9A4B B E - A IES Award Shares shall be vested on 4 September 2025, and 40% of the Award Shares
S2HERATHEREMF27RAQE A E A2023 shall be vested on 4 September 2026. For details, please refer to Note 27 to the
FIOR4EMAE ° consolidated financial statements and the announcement of the Company dated 4

September 2023.
9. 2023 i R L SRR AR 19 9. Grant of Award Shares during 2023

Closing price of

Shares immediate
before date of Fair value per
grant of the Award Award Shares at
Number of Award Shares date of grant
Shares (HK$) (HKS$)@
FERBRORE REBUESRER
BEANRG KT E BROWAIREERE

R BB Date of grant RBMBRGHE (7% 7T) (Bx)@

2023F5A8H 8 May 2023 2,100,000 4.93 2.36

2023F9H4R 4 September 2023 900,000 4.38 2.46
(a) EBERBRBEROEBAEMRENEE (a) For the accounting standard and policy adopted of the Award Shares

BOMBRANEFEAREE F2
BliRA BB R R M AE27 -

granted under the Share Award Scheme, please refer to note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Since the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme and up to the
date of this report, a total of 16,080,000 Award Shares had been
granted under the Share Award Scheme. As at 1 January 2023 and 31
December 2023, the total number of shares available for grant under
the Share Award Scheme was 33,508,500 shares and 33,963,500
shares, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not adopt any other share
option scheme or share award scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period, or subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALES OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Trustee of the Share
Award Scheme purchased an aggregate of 700,000 shares on the
market for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DETAILS OF PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE UNDER
RULE 14.36B

Performance guarantee with respect to Dalian Hua'an
Property Management Co., Ltd.* (KR EEZYEXEEER D
7]) ("Dalian Hua’an PM")

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 9
November 2020. According to the terms of the equity acquisition and
cooperation management agreement (the “Equity Acquisition and
Cooperation Management Agreement”) entered into between,
among others, Tibet Xinchengyue (as the purchaser), Shanghai Limu
Business Consultation Centre (Limited Liability Partnership)* (/&3
AEBEAFL(ERA %) (“Shanghai Limu”, as the vendor), and
Dalian Hua'an United Industrial Co., Ltd.* (K EELZBABTEER AT
("Dalian Hua'an United”), Tibet Xinchengyue had agreed to acquire
60% of the total equity interests of Dalian Hua'an PM from Shanghai
Limu at the consideration of RMB62,856,000.
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Pursuant to the Equity Acquisition and Cooperation Management
Agreement, Shanghai Limu and Dalian Hua‘'an United undertook that
Dalian Hua'an PM shall achieve the following performance targets:

(M

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020, the net profit
attributable to the parent company in the consolidated income
statement (after deducting non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian
Hua’an PM shall increase by 10% from the figures in 2019 and
that there is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?;

from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021, the net profit
attributable to the parent company in the consolidated income
statement (after deducting non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian
Hua’an PM shall increase by 20% from the figures in 2019 and
that there is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?;

from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022, the net profit
attributable to the parent company in the consolidated income
statement (after deducting non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian
Hua’an PM shall increase by 30% from the figures in 2019 and
that there is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?;

from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2023, the net profit
attributable to the parent company in the consolidated income
statement (after deducting non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian
Hua’an PM shall increase by 35% from the figures in 2019 and
that there is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?; and

from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, the net profit
attributable to the parent company in the consolidated income
statement (after deducting non-recurring gains/losses) of Dalian
Hua’an PM shall increase by 40% from the figures in 2019 and
that there is a net expansion in the GFA under management of
200,000m?.

If the accumulated net profit attributable to the parent company of
Dalian Hua’an PM fails to reach the targets set out in points (i) to
(iv) above upon the expiry of the undertaking, the parties agree that
Shanghai Limu and Dalian Hua’an United shall compensate double the
shortfall of the accumulated net profit of the Dalian Hua’an PM that
has not been achieved within 30 days after the issuance of the annual
audit report through their own resources, subject to the compensation
principles as set out under the Equity Acquisition and Cooperation
Management Agreement. For further details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 9 November 2020.
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For the years ended 31 December 2020, 31 December 2021, 31
December 2022 and 31 December 2023, Dalian Hua'an PM had reached
the relevant performance targets. The Company will closely monitor
the above-mentioned performance targets and disclose the status of
satisfaction in its future annual reports in compliance with Rule 14.36B
of the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On 20 October 2018, our controlling Shareholders (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of
the Company (for itself and on behalf of all members of the Group)
(the "Deed of Non-Competition”), pursuant to which they have
undertaken that they would not and, would procure none of their
associates (other than any member of the Group) to directly or
indirectly, engage in any business which competes or is like to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business as described in the
Prospectus in the PRC or any other places where the Group carries on
business (the “Restricted Business”).

For details regarding the Deed of Non-Competition, see “Deed of
Non-Competition” in the section of “Relationship with Our Controlling
Shareholders and Future Land Group” in the Prospectus.

Each of our Controlling Shareholders has made a declaration (the
“Declaration”) as to the compliance with the terms of the Deed of
Non-Competition for the year ended 31 December 2023. In determining
whether the Controlling Shareholders had fully complied with the Deed
of Non-Competition during the Reporting Period, the independent non-
executive Directors noted that: (i) each of the Controlling Shareholders
has made the Declaration; (ii) no Restricted Business was reported to
be undertaken by the Controlling Shareholders (other than, for the
avoidance of doubt, through the Group) during the Reporting Period;
and (iii) there was no particular situation rendering the compliance
with, and enforcement of, the Deed of Non-Competition being
guestionable. The independent non-executive Directors were satisfied
with the Controlling Shareholders’ compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or
their associates had any interest in any business which competes or
may compete with, directly or indirectly, the Group’s business.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2023 Services
Framework Agreement and the 2023 Services Framework
Supplemental Agreement

On 28 October 2022 (after trading hours) and 8 December 2022 (after
trading hours), Jiangsu Xinchengyue entered into a services framework
agreement (the 2023 Services Framework Agreement”) and a
services framework supplemental agreement (the “2023 Services
Framework Supplemental Agreement”) with Mr. Wang Xiaosong (as
attorney for and on behalf of Mr. Wang), respectively, in relation to the
provision of property management services and value-added services
to Mr. Wang's associated companies (excluding Seazen Holdings), for a
term of one year from 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023, subject
to the annual cap of RMB100 million.

On 28 October 2022 (after trading hours), Jiangsu Xinchengyue
entered into a framework agreement (the “2023 Seazen Framework
Agreement”), with Seazen Holdings, in relation to the provision of
property management services and value-added services to Seazen
Holdings, for a term of one year from 1 January 2023 and 31 December
2023, subject to the annual cap of RMB1,350 million.

In determining the annual caps for the service fees under the 2023
Services Framework Agreement, the 2023 Services Framework
Supplemental Agreement and the 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement,
the Directors have considered various factors including:

(@) the aggregate amount of approximately RMB956.3 million
settled by Mr. Wang's associated companies for property
management services and value-added services for the nine
months ended 30 September 2022, representing approximately
47.8% (or 63.7% after annualisation) of the existing annual
cap for the year ened 31 December 2022 which amounted to
RMB2,000 million;
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(b) the decrease in the estimated demand of Mr. Wang's associated
companies for property related services for the year ended 31
December 2023; based on the public information disclosed by
Seazen Group, the area of land reserve of Seazen Group as at
30 June 2022 was 130.5 million sg.m., representing a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 12.7% as compared with that as
at 30 June 2021;

() the historical amounts for property management services and
value-added services for the three years ended 31 December
2019, 2020 and 2021 settled between the Group and Mr.
Wang's associated companies; and

(d) other factors such as our Group'’s business plans, inflation and
buffer of 10% to cover the miscellaneous entrustment services
ancillary to the property management services and value-added
services and unexpected circumstances.

The 2023 Services Framework Agreement, the 2023 Services Framework
Supplemental Agreement and the 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by the
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 29 December 2022. For details relating to these
agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 28 October 2022 and 8
December 2022, and the circular of the Company dated 14 December
2022.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the transaction amount that
the Group settled with Mr. Wang’s associated companies (excluding
Seazen Holdings) for the property management services and value-
added services set out under the 2023 Services Framework Agreement
and 2023 Services Framework Supplemental Agreement amounted
to RMB95.6 million, which did not exceed the annual cap of RMB100
million.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the transaction amount that
the Group settled with Seazen Holdings for the property management
services and value-added services set out under the 2023 Seazen
Framework Agreement amounted to RMB599.5 million, which did not
exceed the annual cap of RMB1,350 million.
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The 2024 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2024 Services
Framework Agreement, the 2024 Seazen Framework
Supplemental Agreement and the 2024 Services
Framework Supplemental Agreement

For the purpose of renewing the 2023 Services Framework Agreement,
the 2023 Services Framework Supplemental Agreement and the 2023
Seazen Framework Agreement which expired on 31 December 2023,
on 27 October 2023 (after trading hours), the Company has entered
into (i) the 2024 Services Framework Agreement with Mr. Wang in
relation to the provision of certain property related services to Mr.
Wang's associated companies (excluding Seazen Holdings) for a term
of one year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024; (ii) the 2024
Seazen Framework Agreement with Seazen Holdings in relation to the
provision of certain property related services to Seazen Holdings for a
term of one year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024, (iii) the
2024 Services Framework Supplemental Agreement with Mr. Wang
in connection with the arrangement of payment of the parking lot
refundable deposits for the purpose of rendering the parking lot sales
agency services by the Group to Mr. Wang's associated companies
(excluding Seazen Holdings) under the 2024 Services Framework
Supplemental Agreement for a term of one year from 1 January
2024 to 31 December 2024; and (iv) the 2024 Seazen Framework
Supplemental Agreement with Seazen Holdings in connection with the
arrangement of payment of the parking lot refundable deposits for the
purpose of rendering the parking lot sales agency services by the Group
to Seazen Holdings under the 2024 Seazen Framework Supplemental
Agreement for a term of one year from 1 January 2024 to 31 December
2024. In determining the annual caps for the service fees under the
2024 Services Framework Agreement and the 2024 Seazen Framework
Agreement, the Directors have considered various factors including:

(@) the aggregate amount of approximately RMB564.2 million
settled by Mr. Wang's associated companies for property
management services and value-added services for the nine
months ended 30 September 2023, representing approximately
38.9% (or for illustration purpose only, approximately 51.9% or
RMB752.3 million after annualisation) of the existing annual cap
for the year ended 31 December 2023,

(b) the decrease in the estimated demand of Mr. Wang's associated
companies for property related services for the year ending 31
December 2024; based on the public information disclosed by
Seazen Group, the GFA under construction of Seazen Group as
at 30 June 2023 was 492.8 million sq.m., representing a year-
on-year decrease of approximately 25.8% as compared with
that as at 30 June 2022;
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() the historical amounts for property management services and
value-added services for the three years ended 31 December
2020, 2021 and 2022 settled between the Group and Mr.
Wang's associated companies; and

(d) other factors such as our Group's business plans, inflation and
buffer of 10% to cover the miscellaneous entrustment services
ancillary to the property management services and value-added
services and unexpected circumstances.

In determining the annual caps for the service fees under the 2024
Services Framework Supplemental Agreement and the 2024 Seazen
Framework Supplemental Agreement, the Directors have taken into
account, among others:

(a) the amount of maximum daily balance of the Parking Lot
Refundable Deposits for the nine months ended 30 September
2023; and

(b) the estimated value of parking lots of Seazen Holdings and
Mr. Wang's associated companies (excluding Seazen Holdings)
available for sale by the Group as an agent for the year ending
31 December 2024.

Mr. Wang is a Controlling Shareholder of the Company. Seazen
Holdings is a subsidiary of Seazen Group which is held as to more
than 30% by Mr. Wang. As such, Seazen Holdings is an associate of
Mr. Wang, and both Mr. Wang and Seazen Holdings are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the 2023 Services Framework
Agreement, the 2023 Services Framework Supplemental Agreement,
the 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2024 Services Framework
Agreement, the 2024 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2024 Services
Framework Supplemental Agreement and the 2024 Seazen Framework
Supplemental Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The 2024 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2024 Services
Framework Agreement, the 2024 Seazen Framework Supplemental
Agreement and 2024 Services Framework Supplemental Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved by the
independent Shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of
the Company held on 22 December 2023. For details relating to these
agreements and the transactions contemplated thereunder, please refer
to the announcements of the Company dated 27 October 2023, and
the circular of the Company dated 4 December 2023.
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As disclosed in the Company’s circulars dated 14 December 2022
and 4 December 2023, respectively, in order to ensure that the
transactions contemplated under the 2023 Services Framework
Agreement, the 2023 Services Framework Supplemental Agreement,
the 2023 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2024 Services Framework
Agreement, the 2024 Seazen Framework Agreement, the 2024 Services
Framework Supplemental Agreement and the 2024 Seazen Framework
Supplemental Agreement will be conducted on normal commercial
terms, and that the relevant fees will not fall below the prevailing
market rate, the guidance price of such services for similar type of
development projects issued by the local government (if applicable)
and the fees charged to the third party customers independent of the
Group, the Group will adopt the following measures:

(i) the Group will be responsible for regular monitoring of the
continuing connected transactions contemplated under the
above-mentioned agreements to ensure that the annual cap will
not be exceeded, in particular, the Group will cease to enter
into any new subsidiary agreement if such will cause the total
contractual income to exceed the annual cap for that financial
year;

(i) internal review will be conducted by the Group to assess, on a
monthly basis, whether the provision of property management
services and value-added services has been made in accordance
with the terms of the above-mentioned agreements and in
accordance with the aforesaid pricing policy;

(iii) prior to entering into any subsidiary agreements, the personnel
of various departments including the legal department, finance
department and operation department of the Company
will review and assess the specific terms and conditions
of the transactions to ensure their consistency with the
abovementioned agreements. During such internal review
process, the relevant personnel will examine, among others,
(@) information of the parties; (b) the term of the agreement;
(c) the type and scope of services to be provided by the Group
thereunder; and (d) whether the contract price is in line with
the aforesaid pricing policies, in order to ensure comment (if
any) from various departments of the Group will be properly
addressed;

(iv) the Company will engage its auditor to conduct an annual
review of the continuing connected transactions to be
conducted pursuant to the above-mentioned agreements; and
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(v) the independent non-executive Directors will review the
continuing connected transactions to be conducted pursuant
to the above-mentioned agreements on an annual basis and
confirm in the annual reports of the Company for the years
ended 31 December 2023 and ending 31 December 2024 on
whether such continuing connected transactions have been
entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms or better, and in accordance
with the above-mentioned agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

During the Reporting Period, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which took place during the year ended 31 December
2023 and confirmed that such transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) according to the relevant agreements governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor has carried out a number of scheduled auditing
procedures for the continuing connected transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 and confirmed
that nothing has come to their attention that caused them to believe
the continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group for transactions involving the provision of
goods or services;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(4) have exceeded the relevant annual cap amounts disclosed in the
relevant announcements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2023.
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Save for the related-party transactions described as “provision of
services” in note 36(b) to the consolidated financial statements
(being the continuing connected transactions disclosed above)
and certain deposits payment by the Group to related parties
described as “balances with related parties” in note 36(d) to the
consolidated financial statements, the Board confirmed that none
of the related-party transactions constitute non-exempt connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As confirmed by the Directors, during the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Group had made certain payments as
deposits to connected persons of the Company in relation to certain
properties services rendered under the 2023 Services Framework
Agreement. These deposits would constitute connected transactions
and advances to entities, and would be subject to the relevant
requirements under Chapters 14, 14A and 13 of the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the separate announcement of the Company in relation
to the aforesaid payments and their implications under the Listing
Rules. Save for the said payments of deposits to connected persons,
the Group has complied with the requirements under Chapters 14, 14A
and 13 of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, during the Reporting Period,
there were no connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions which are required to be disclosed by the Company in
accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure of connected
transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of charitable and other
donations from our Group is RMB80,000.

MATERIAL LEGAL ACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company was not involved in any
material legal actions or arbitrations. To the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company was not involved in any unsettled material legal
actions or claims or in any such material legal actions or claims that
might threaten the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY CLAUSES

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
no former or current permitted indemnity clauses have benefited the
Directors (whether entered into by the Company or others) or any
directors of their affiliated companies (if entered into by the Company).
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering director and
officer liabilities for its Directors and senior officers.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company had no material
acquisition and sale of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee (the “Audit committee”), together
with the management and external auditors, has reviewed the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance practices. The information regarding the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in the
corporate governance report on page 72 to page 94 of this annual
report.

DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS PURSUANT TO THE
LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” in this report above, The Company does not have any
disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing
Rules.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float approved by the Stock Exchange and allowed by
Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers has acted as auditor of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023. PricewaterhouseCoopers has audited
the attached consolidated financial statements, which were prepared
pursuant to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The auditor of the Company has not changed in the past three years.
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Amendments to the Memorandum and Articles of
Association

On 28 March 2024, the Board proposed to amend the second amended
and restated memorandum and articles of association of the Company
(the "Existing Memorandum and Articles”) for the purposes of,
among others, (i) updating and bringing the Existing Memorandum
and Articles in line with the latest regulatory requirements in
relation to the expanded paperless listing regime and the electronic
dissemination of corporate communications by listed issuers and the
relevant amendments made to the Listing Rules which took effect
from 31 December 2023, and (ii) incorporating certain housekeeping
changes (the “Proposed Amendments”). Accordingly, the Board
proposed to adopt the third amended and restated memorandum and
articles of association (the “New Memorandum and Articles”) which
consolidates the Proposed Amendments in substitution for, and to the
exclusion of, the Existing Memorandum and Articles in its entirety.

Disposal of 70% equity interests in a subsidiary

In January 2024, the Group entered into an agreement with Ms. Wang
Ting, pursuant to which, the Group will dispose of all 70% of its
interest in Shanghai Xiangxi Property Management Service Co., Ltd.*
(EBEMEZTEBRAF]) to Ms. Wang Ting at the consideration
of RMB58,800,000. The consideration will be paid in three installments,
of which first batch of RMB10,000,000 was paid in February 2024 and
second batch of RMB13,800,000 was paid in March 2024.

Qi Xiaoming
Chairman

Executive Director
Chief Executive Officer

The PRC, 28 March 2024
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The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for
the Reporting Period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group is committed to implementing high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and enhance
the corporate value as well as the responsibility commitments. The
Board fully understands that good corporate governance is key to
leading the Group to success and enhancing Shareholders’ value.

The Group develops its corporate culture according to the operating
environment, values and strategies, including the value of acting
lawfully, ethically, responsibly and the same belief concepts in the
aspects of environmental protection, occupational health and safety,
employee care and talent cultivation, etc., thereby stimulating the
enterprise vitality, and endeavours to provide high-quality and reliable
services to customers, generate sound returns for Shareholders and
employees, and create sustainable value to the society.

The Company has adopted Corporate Governance Code set out in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules (the “CG code”) as its own code
of corporate governance. Save as disclosed in this annual report, the
Company has complied with all applicable code provisions as set out in
part 2 of the CG Code during the Reporting Period. The Company will
continue to review and enhance its corporate governance practices to
ensure the compliance with the CG Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the
senior management of the Group. To oversee the particular affairs
of the Company, the Board has established four Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and the environmental, social and
governance committee (the “ESG Committee”) (collectively, the
“Board Committees”). The Board has delegated to the Board
Committees the responsibilities as set out in their respective terms of
reference.
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All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the interests of
the Company and Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance covering
any legal actions against the Directors. The insurance coverage will be
reviewed on an annual basis.

Board composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises three
executive Directors, three non-executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Qi Xiaoming (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Bo (Appointed on 27 December 2023)
Ms. Wu Qiangian

Mr. Gao Xinli (Resigned on 27 December 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management”.

During the Reporting Period, the Board had met the requirements of
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules regarding the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors (among
which, at least one independent non-executive Director shall possess
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise).

The Company has also met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules regarding
the appointment of independent non-executive Directors representing
at least one-third of the Board.
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The Company believes that a diversified Board will be beneficial to
the Company’s performance. Therefore, the Company has adopted a
board diversity policy, specifying that the diversification of the Board
members will be considered in multiple respects while determining
the composition of the Board, including (but not limited to) age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All appointments of the Board will be based on the
principle of “the best person for the job” and take into account the
objective conditions and the benefits of a diversified Board in selection
of candidates. The summary of the board diversity policy is as follows:

Policy vision

The Company understands that a diversified Board is beneficial
to the improvement of the Company’s performance. The
differences in ideas, background, ways of thinking and working
methods may create values for our stakeholders, particularly for
our customers, Shareholders, employees and the communities
managed by us.

Measurable targets

The screening of Directors is based on a series of diversified
categories. The Company undertakes to implement the policy of
equal opportunity for all in all respects, without discrimination
due to gender, age, cultural and educational background, race,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and service term or
other factors.

Supervision and report

The Nomination Committee will annually report the composition
of the Board in terms of diversification in the corporate
governance report of the annual report and supervise the
implementation of the policy.

For the purpose of implementation of the board diversity policy, the
following measurable objectives were adopted:

1.

The Board comprises nine Directors, two of which are female;
and

The members of the Board have different cultural and
educational backgrounds; some Directors have obtained
diversified professional qualifications.



EEERERSE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

M2023F12A31R - EEMRBEERE)INSE
ZHPB51:49 c BERAMR MMM B
2 ARNRAREHZE2023F12A318 L FENIR
BoHeRERRE c AQAIAG B KIS
HIRESERBEETRAEESRSR
ERE)MNERNZ T EREREPITR
HRZTtREXRRERAZETEREEESD
BOLBERESGHETCHILENRE -

BEBUFATEEFHERE LHRAE33
GRERIAELBYIE REARARL/BREHES
3T o

BAFHRZIEELSREEE] —MMEE
ERETABEEESN BEESHRITAEM
EFABRRTRABEEMEABER(ERE
% 2% RBREMEKR HEBR) -

EREZ(ERBUFNTER)IIRESTS
TREBTANEELHLR  MEREP
et EEBRERERIENE - BILIFH
TEEFRBREXLZES FHEZEERE
HEREEER -

ERCEEATAKRXERLREERER L
MARREEMFEBRENBEREERE
MEBARAE URBEENTFHRRETAL
BORE REFCREERRAARARKE
1% 5 By AR o

BREVERNHES

ARABEBTIEEERAFNESTSRMNE
YERREF:

1. REZECERSFREESEERR
BYFRPTESENELE  LEZ
BYFATEFLIRERCBNF
MBYIFRTEFTOBE LI

As at 31 December 2023, the ratio of men to women in the workforce
(excluding Directors) was 51:49. For details of gender distribution,
please refer to the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Company
will continue to take steps to promote gender diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to the Board and senior management levels,
by taking into account gender diversity factors in the recruitment
process, and to develop a pipeline of female mid to senior level
management so as to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the
Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Therefore,
the Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

Save as disclosed in the biographies of Directors in the section of
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report, no Directors
have any personal relations (including financial, business, family or
other material/related relationships) with any other Directors or the
chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.

In regards to the CG Code provision of requiring Directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organizations and other significant commitments, as well as their
identity and the time involved in the issuer, all the Directors have
agreed to disclose their commitments to the Company in a timely
manner.

Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views

The Company ensures independent views and input are available to the
Board via the below mechanisms:

1. The Board composition and the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors should be reviewed by
the Nomination Committee on an annual basis, in particular the
portion of the independent non-executive Directors and the
independence of the independent non-executive Director who
has served for more than nine years;
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2. A written confirmation was received by the Company under Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the independent non-
executive Directors in relation to his/her independence to the
Company. The Company considers all independent nonexecutive
Directors to be independent;

3. In view of good corporate governance practices and to avoid
conflict of interests, the Directors who are also directors and/or
senior management of the Company’s Controlling Shareholders
and/or certain subsidiaries of the Controlling Shareholders,
would abstain from voting in the relevant Board resolutions in
relation to the transactions with the Controlling Shareholders
and/or its associates;

4. The chairman of the Board shall meet with independent non-
executive Directors at least once annually; and

5. All members of the Board can seek independent professional
advice when necessary to perform their responsibilities in
accordance with the Company’s policy.

The Board reviews the mechanisms for ensuring independent views
and input are available to the Board on an annual basis, whether in
terms of proportion, recruitment and independence of independent
non-executive Directors, or their contribution and access to external
independent professional advice.

Induction and continuous professional development

All newly appointed Directors will be provided with necessary
induction training and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules and regulations.
The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide all Directors
with updates on latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular updates on the Company’s
performance, position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole
and each Director to discharge their duties.

The Company encourages all Directors to seek continuous professional
development and thus develop and update their knowledge and skills.
The joint company secretaries of the Company, from time to time,
update and provide written training materials relating to the roles,
functions and duties of Directors.
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According to the information provided by the Directors, they have
accepted the training as follows during the year ended 31 December
2023:

BEEXRRREME
Nature of courses for
continuous professional

ESHR Name of Directors development
BB EE(EER) Mr. Qi Xiaoming (Chairman) B/C/D
B £ (R2023412 278 # Z (F) Mr. Yang Bo (Appointed on 27 December 2023) B/C/D
RERBEZT Ms. Wu Qiangian A/C/D
RIFFN L (R20234F12H27HE L) Mr. Gao Xinli (Resigned on 27 December 2023) B/C/D
FTEMEE Mr. Wang Xiaosong C/D
a8/ FEEAE Mr. Lv Xiaoping C/D
FE BBR S A& Mr. Lu Zhongming C/D
ORI Ms. Zhang Yan C/D
KERE Mr. Zhu Wei C/D
AR A Mr. Xu Xinmin C/D
L Notes:
A HRHEER REERARIER KR A: Attend seminars and/or conferences and/or forums and/or briefings
&
B: 7 B %T@&/EZ@E%}E/?Z%@E ﬁﬁ B: Address at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums
: SMEMAEMOEI  BARRXRBAEBN Attend training courses provided by law firms or related to the Company’s business
b=
D: Eﬁ%ﬁ{?%iﬁi%”%%ﬁ'ﬂﬁﬂ ' E%%i@?ﬁﬁ%%?ﬁ ’ D: Read documents covering a wide range of topics, including corporate governance,
EFWE - EWRRREAMEREDH director responsibilities, Listing Rules and other relevant laws and regulations
ar—
ESRREREUTE Chairman and chief executive officer

REBEEEER T ZTRIMEXEC2146&
EERNERATEACRTUEORAT
RIALHEE-

BRARERARANESREREFNTE
BEAKRENERBERYREAEENE
BEEEMEGE - ENARENERIN
EXERREERNERVITEMERMA
FA—AEERARSARBREHEX-—BNEE
BARAEBEGRBENEBRLRNT - EE
it - HAEREESELTERERE -
EFXEREBTEARBERL XEBRASK
BEFNEEBRRREENEERRDEE
EEREEFNTENASL

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and performed by different
individuals.

Mr. Qi Xiaoming is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company, is responsible for the overall management of the Group
and guides the Group’s strategic development and business plans.
Considering the Group’s current development status, the Board believes
that the structure of the same person holding the two positions of
chairman and chief executive officer can provide the Company with a
strong and consistent leadership and benefit the implementation and
execution of the Group’s business strategies. Nonetheless, we will
review the structure from time to time based on the circumstances at
that time. The Board will continue to evaluate relevant situations and
separate the two roles of chairman and chief executive officer at a
proper time taking into account the Group’s overall status.
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Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company with a term of three years. The respective executive
Directors or the Company may terminate the contract by serving
not less than three months’ written notice to the other party. The
appointment of an executive Director shall be in accordance with the
requirements on Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of
Association and applicable Listing Rules.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has signed a letter of appointment with the Company with
a term of three years. In accordance with their respective letters of
appointment, each of the independent non-executive Directors is
entitled to receive a fixed amount of director’'s emoluments while the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any remuneration.
Relevant appointments shall be in accordance with the requirements on
Directors’ retirement by rotation under the Articles of Association and
applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contracts or letters of appointment with any members of the
Group, excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors (or the nearest number but no less than one-third of the
Directors, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three (3)) are
subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting and
each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three years at
an annual general meeting. Any Director newly appointed by the Board
to fill a causal vacancy of the Board or serve as a new Director shall
submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the first annual
general meeting after appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition and
offering proposals regarding the appointment, re-election and
succession plans of Directors to the Board.

Board meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings regularly,
at least four times a year, and at approximately one time each quarter.
Notices of not less than 14 days are given for all regular Board meetings
to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend regular meetings
and discuss the matters on the agenda.
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For other Board and Board Committees meetings, reasonable notices
are given. The agenda and accompanying meeting papers are
dispatched to the Directors or Board Committees members at least
three days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When any Directors or Board Committees members are unable to
attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed
and given an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman
prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings should be kept by the
joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors for
information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committees meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail including the matters considered by the
Board and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, and
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board Committees meeting are sent to the Directors for
consideration within a reasonable time after the meeting is held. The
minutes of the Board meetings are open for inspection by all Directors.

During the Reporting Period, the Company held 7 Board meetings, an
annual general meeting and 1 extraordinary general meeting were held.
Information regarding the attendance of Board meetings and general
meetings by individual Directors is as follows:

EHE/ BHE EHERR CHE EBHERX
EHEESERH BERERH BRI XKERE
Number of

Number of Number of attendance/number
attendance/number  attendance/number of attendance
of attendance of attendance required of

required of Board required of annual extraordinary

= Directors meetings general meeting general meeting
FUNERSEE(EF LK) Mr Qi Xiaoming 7/7 11 11
(Chairman)
5185k & (R2023F Mr. Yang Bo 11 0/0 0/0
12H27H # Z (F) (Appointed on 27
December 2023)
REBLRLT Ms. Wu Qiangian 7/7 11 1/1
S M & A (R20234F  Mr. Gao Xinli 6/6 11 0/1
128274 B (E) (Resigned on 27
December 2023)
Eﬂ;f%mﬁ‘ii Mr. Wang Xiaosong 717 0/1 0/1
RN Mr. Lv Xiaoping 7/7 0/1 0/1
P BRA % A& Mr. Lu Zhongming 7/7 11 0/1
R+ Ms. Zhang Yan 7/7 11 1/1
KELAE Mr. Zhu Wei 7/7 0/1 11
TR XE Mr. Xu Xinmin 7/7 1/1 11
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Model code for securities transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
inquiries with all the Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed
that he/she has complied with the required standards as set out in the
Model Code during the Reporting Period.

Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves its right to decide all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors could
have recourse to seek independent professional advice in performing
their duties at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to access
and consult with the Company’s senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the Group are
delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions and
responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval has
to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

Corporate governance functions

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of the Directors and their corporate governance
functions include:

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with laws and regulatory requirements;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manuals applicable to the employees and Directors;

° to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and offer proposals and report relevant
matters to the Board;

° to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in its corporate governance reports; and

° to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with the
Company’s whistle-blowing policy.
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Audit committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Lu Zhongming, our
non-executive Director, and Ms. Zhang Yan and Mr. Zhu Wei, our
independent non-executive Directors. Ms. Zhang Yan is the chairman of
the Audit Committee.

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the audit committee of an
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members, comprising non-
executive directors only, and at least one of them is an independent
non-executive director with appropriate qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. Our Directors confirm that we had complied with
such requirements during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include:

o to oversee the Company’s relations with the external auditor
and be primarily responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal
of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditor, and deal with any
questions of its resignation or dismissal;

o to review and monitor the Company’s financial statements and
reports, including the significant financial reporting judgments
contained in them, and to consider any significant or unusual
items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts; and

o to review and discuss financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems, including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function.

The full text of written terms of reference of the Audit Committee is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Audit Committee convened 2 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2023 to discuss and consider the followings:

° reviewed the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the financial year, and the audit report prepared by the
external auditor on accounting matters and major findings
during the audit process;
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° reviewed the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the six months ended 30 June 2023; and

° reviewed the financial reporting systems, compliance
procedures, internal controls (including the adequacy of
resources, qualifications, training courses and budgets of
employees of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
departments), risk management systems and procedures, the
effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company,
and the reappointment of external auditors. The Board has
not deviated from any recommendations made by the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, retirement or
removal of the external auditors.

BREREZESRBNBEZEEENBERAER The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at such
T%: meetings is set out in the table below:
BHE
ELEEXZEEERREY
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Audit
- Directors Committee meetings
P BRA % A& Mr. Lu Zhongming 2/2
R L Ms. Zhang Yan 2/2
KEXE Mr. Zhu Wei 2/2
REZES® Nomination committee
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The Nomination Committee currently comprises Mr. Xu Xinmin and
Ms. Zhang Yan, our independent non-executive Directors and Mr. Lv
Xiaoping, our non-executive Director. Mr. Xu Xinmin is the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include:

° review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strateqgy;

° identify individuals who are suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

° assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors
to determine their eligibility;
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° make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer; and

° develop policy concerning diversity of Board members, review
the policy and the progress on achieving the objectives set for
implementing the policy.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidates or incumbents
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skills and ability to commit
time and efforts to carry out duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be submitted
to the Board for decision.

The full text of written terms of reference of Nomination Committee is
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The Nomination Committee convened 2 meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2023 to discuss and consider the following:

° reviewed and assessed the implementation of the board
diversity policy;

° reviewed and implemented the Company's policy and practices
on corporate governance;

° reviewed and monitored Company's compliance with the
corporate governance codes under the Listing Rules and the
relevant disclosure in the corporate governance report;

° assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;
° identified individuals who were suitably qualified to become

Board members and selected and made recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

° made recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive
officer; and

° considered the reappointment of the retiring Directors.
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B/NFEE Mr. Lv Xiaoping 2/2
R L Ms. Zhang Yan 2/2
FERLE Mr. Xu Xinmin 2/2
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In general, the Nomination Committee will assess, including but not
limited to, the following information and aspects for selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship:

(i) diversity in all aspects, including gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and work experience;

(i) qualifications, including the achievements and experience in
relevant industries related to the business of the Group;

(iii) willingness to devote sufficient time to performing the duties as
member of the Board and other responsibilities as a Director;

(iv) integrity and reputation;

(v) independence of candidates for independent non-executive
Directors, which is assessed with reference to the factors as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and any other factors
deemed as appropriate by the Nomination Committee or the
Board;

(vi) potential contributions to the Board; and

(vii)  other relevant aspects that apply to the business of the Group.
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Nomination procedures for Directors

The Nomination Committee shall call a meeting, and invite nominations
of candidates from Board members (if any) or Shareholders (if any) for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by Board members.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information, together with their written consent to be appointed as a
Director. The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

The Nomination Committee shall evaluate the proposed candidate’s
suitability with reference to the information and aspects stated
above and make recommendation(s) to the Board’s consideration and
approval.

In the case of the re-election of a Director at the general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution of the
Directors to the Company and their services, their participation and
performance within the Board, and whether such Director still meets
the needs to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

Remuneration committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises Mr. Zhu Wei and
Mr. Xu Xinmin, our independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Qi
Xiaoming, our executive Director. Mr. Zhu Wei is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include:

° to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management'’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policies;

° to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’'s corporate goals and
objectives;

o either (i) to determine, with delegated responsibility, the

remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and
senior management; or (i) to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; and

° to review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes
under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules adopted by the Company.

The full text of written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee convened 2 meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2023 to discuss and consider the following:

° reviewed and approved the management's remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives;

° reviewed the remuneration policy and structure for the Directors

and senior management; and

° reviewed the implementation of the Share Option Scheme and
the Share Award Scheme.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
such meetings is set out in the table below:

gBHE
ErEEFMEESERRK
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of Remuneration

B Directors Committee meetings

BN R SR A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2/2

RESZRE Mr. Zhu Wei 2/2

R L& Mr. Xu Xinmin 2/2
HBIRBBEBERAR
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ESG committee

The ESG committee currently comprises the executive Directors, namely
Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Mr. Yang Bo and Ms. Wu Qiangian. Mr. Qi Xiaoming
the chairman of the ESG committee.

The primary duties of the ESG committee include:

° to formulate and review the Company’s environmental, social
and governance (“ESG"”) responsibilities, vision, strategy,
framework, principles and policies, and strengthen the
materiality assessment and report process to ensure the
continuous execution and implementation of ESG policies
passed by the Board,;

° to consider and approve the Company’s ESG goals, and regularly
review the achievement of ESG goals; and

° to monitor main ESG trends and related risks and opportunities
and evaluate whether the Group’s ESG-related structure and
business model are adequate and effective in this regard, adopt
and update the Group’s ESG policies when necessary and ensure
that such policies are up-to-date and comply with applicable
laws, regulations and regulatory requirements, as well as
international standards.

The ESG Committee convened 2 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2023. The attendance of each member of the ESG
Committee at such meetings is set out in the table below:

BHE

EHERE #8K
EREEEERNREK
Number of attendance/
number of attendance
required of ESG

BEx Directors Committee meetings
BN SR A Mr. Qi Xiaoming 2/2
B8 & (R2023F12527HF Z () Mr. Yang Bo (Appointed on 27 December 2023) 0/0
REBELT Ms. Wu Qiangian 2/2
R H & &£ (R2023F12/27H FF F) Mr. Gao Xinli (Resigned on 27 December 2023) 2/2
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2023, the details of the remuneration

of the Board members and the Company’s senior management set out
on page 26 to page 32 of this annual report are as follows:

AE
FHEE(ARE T Remuneration range (RMB) Number of person
2508 -5008 2.5 million = 5 million 1
0-2508% 0 — 2.5 million 14
BRGAMBERRMIISABEININ REZE Saved as disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial statements,

2023FN2A3MBLFE  MBEEEHEXR
BHELMBMSE -

EEFAMBERRNVNYBHRRE
£

EEHAREEREARRE E2023F12A4
BNBEFEMNUBBRENET NEAEQATF
WREAAR RANEBOMKRARKNEED
XBERBSRE °

EEEERMEFTERHVENEMERER
EEFCHRERETESTEHENARAM
BHRZETHABEOFE - ARFEAEFEE
EEKERHABARAXRREMRRARATR
WEHAEMEFR -
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KRB BEEBBEARRLGA VR
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RREERAMEEEZARTIEZCHEESTS
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no Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023, which give
a true and fair view of the status of the Company and the Group and
of the results and cash flow of the Group.

The management has provided the Board with such explanations and
information as necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are submitted
to the Board for approval. The Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Group's
ability to continue as a going-concern.

The statement by the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 95 to
page 104 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, the Audit Committee, the senior management and the
internal audit department are the four levels of structure of the risk
management and internal control systems.
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The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board for
maintaining adequate risk management and internal control systems
to (i) safeguard the investments of Shareholders and assets of the
Company and avoid inappropriate use or disposal; (ii) comply with
relevant laws, rules or regulations; and (iii) keep reliable financial and
accounting records in accordance with relevant reviewing standards
and regulatory reporting requirements and review the effectiveness of
such systems on an annual basis. Risk management and internal control
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has authorized the Audit Committee to be responsible for
the oversight of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems and reviewing the effectiveness of such systems on a yearly
basis. Such review covers all important aspects of supervision, including
financial, operational and compliance monitoring. As disclosed in the
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Audit Committee
is responsible for monitoring the Company’s risk management and
internal monitoring systems. The Audit Committee oversees the
risk management process and reviews the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems by conducting the following
procedures:

° Review the Company’s risk management process and policy;

° Review with senior management at least annually reports
demonstrating the compliance with the risk management policy;

° Discuss with senior management at least annually the
Company’s major risk exposures and the steps the senior
management has taken or should take to assess and mitigate
such exposures; and

. Review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management
practices on an ongoing basis.

The senior management is responsible for administering the Company’s
risk management process and is accountable for ensuring that the
Company’s business operations are conducted in compliance with our
risk management policy, taking into consideration the changes in the
environment and the Company’s risk tolerance. Responsibilities of the
Company’s senior management include:

° Design and implement a Company-wide risk management
policy;
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° Review and update the risk management policy on a timely
basis, ensuring it remains relevant and adequate, taking
into account changes in the environment, industry and the
Company’s operations and risk profile and, where necessary,
recommend changes to the risk management policy for the
Audit Committee to review;

° Ensure that the Company’s risk management process is aligned
and integrated with the annual strategic and business planning
process;

° Design and establish a risk management methodology which

provides the appropriate tools to identify, evaluate, and manage
business exposures;

° Establish a Company-wide risk reporting process to ensure that
the Company’s senior management, the Audit Committee and
the Board are apprised of all material risk issues and business
exposures;

° Ensure that necessary management controls and oversight
processes are in place to monitor compliance with the risk
management policy and the risk management methodology;

° Approve and monitor key risk positions and exposure trends,
risk management strategies and risk management priorities;

° Review and discuss the Company’s overall risk profile, key and
emerging risks and risk management activities through periodic
risk discussions among senior management; and

° Review the key business strategies and initiatives to assess their
impact on the Company’s overall risk position.

Risk management process

In addition to the Board’s oversight responsibilities, the Company
has developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks and to resolve material internal control
defects (if any). The senior management, through the Company’s
internal audit department, is responsible for the annual risk reporting
process. Members of the internal audit department meet with various
members of the senior management to review and assess risks and
discuss solutions to address material internal control defects (if any),
including any changes relevant to a given year. Risks are compiled,
ratings are assigned and mitigation plans are documented. The risk
assessment is reviewed by certain members of senior management and
presented to the Audit Committee and the Board for their review. No
major deficiencies were identified in the reviews for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s financial
results, (ii) the probability that the risk will occur, and (iii) the rate or
speed at which the risk could occur.

The main features of the Company’s risk management and internal
control structure include: (i) exclusive departments are designated to be
responsible for the implementation of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems and the heads of the major operational
units or departments are responsible for managing and mitigating the
risks identified; (ii) the management ensures that appropriate measures
have been taken against material risks that affect the Group’s business
and operations; and (iii) the internal audit department provides the
management and the Audit Committee with independent confirmation
regarding the effectiveness of risk management and internal control.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has ensured that the risk
management and internal control provisions under the CG Code
have been complied with. The Board, during its annual review on the
risk management and internal control systems, has confirmed the
effectiveness and adequacy of such systems, and also the adequacy of
the resources and staff qualifications and experiences of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Inside information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and significant
events that may impact the price of the shares or their trading
volume and decides whether the relevant information is considered
as inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon as reasonably
practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and 13.10 of the Listing Rules and
the Inside Information Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive
Directors and the joint company secretaries also have responsibilities
for approving certain announcements and/or circulars to be issued by
the Company under powers delegated by the Board from time to time.

Internal audit department

The Group's internal audit department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal governance of the Company. The major responsibilities of
the internal audit department are reviewing the financial conditions and
internal control of the Company, and conducting comprehensive audits
of all branches and subsidiaries of the Company on a regular basis.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The approximate remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor to the Company during the Reporting Period is
as follows:

SBE(ARETT)
R % 38 5 Service category Amount (RMB’000)
&R Audit services 2,950
EEZ RIS Non-audit services:
— WA R — Tax consultation services 101
— H b AR 75 — Other services 100
@t Total 3,151
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AIMERBRER ARATZBERER
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. You Jianfeng (“Mr. You”) is the Company’s joint company
secretary, responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company
has also engaged Ms. Ng Sau Mei (“Ms. Ng”), a director of the Listing
Services Department of TMF Hong Kong Limited (a company secretarial
services provider), as another joint company secretary to assist Mr. You
to fulfill his duties as company secretary of the Company. Her primary
contact person at the Company is Mr. You.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. You and Ms. Ng have undertaken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and understanding of the
Group’s business, performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable the Shareholders and investors to make
informed investment decisions.
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The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors. The
chairman of the Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees
will attend the annual general meetings to answer Shareholders’
questions. The auditor of the Company will also attend the annual
general meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the audit,
the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor's independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two way relationship and communication between the Company and
Shareholders and maintains a website at www.xinchengyue.com,
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business operations
and developments, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are available for public access. The
Board reviewed the Group's Shareholders and investors communication
activities conducted during the Reporting Period and was satisfied
with the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy.

In light of the above policies and communication channels already in
force as disclosed above and in the paragraph headed “Shareholders’
Rights” below, the annual general meeting held during the year which
enabled the Directors to communicate directly with the Shareholders
and answer their questions, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the Company’s shareholders’ communication policy has been
appropriately implemented and remained effective during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue (including election of
individual Directors) at general meetings of the Company.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely manner
after each general meeting.
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Convening of extraordinary general meetings and putting
forward proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at the
Company’s general meetings according to the Articles of Association.
Any one or more Shareholders with the right to vote on the Company’s
general meetings and hold a paid-up capital of no less than one-
tenth on the date of submitting a request shall have the right to call
an extraordinary general meeting at any time with such a written
request to the Board or any one of the joint company secretaries of the
Company to address any matters stated in such request. Such meeting
shall be held within two months upon submission of such requests. If
no such meeting is held by the Board within 21 days upon submission,
the persons submitting such requests may convene a meeting according
to normal procedures and all expenses reasonably incurred to the
persons submitting such requests due to the Board'’s failure to convene
such a general meeting shall be compensated by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, relevant
procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Inquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their inquiries about the
Company may contact the Board Office at the Company’s headquarters
via e-mail at xcy.ir@xinchengyue.com.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The amended and restated memorandum and articles of association
adopted by the Company on 24 October 2018 became effective on
the listing date and were revised on 28 June 2022. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, there have been no changes to the Existing
Memorandum and Articles.

On 28 March 2024, the Board proposed to amend the Existing
Memorandum and Articles, details regarding the Proposed
Amendments are set out in the section headed “Material Events After
the Reporting Period — Amendments to the Memorandum and Articles
of Association” under the “Report of the Directors” of this annual
report.
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To the Shareholders of S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of S-Enjoy Service Group Co.,
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are
set out on pages 105 to 240, comprise:

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2023;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.
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OPINION (Cont'd)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

. B 5 & WO IE B AT U = 1 . Recoverability of trade receivables
. =R A R (E . Goodwill impairment assessment
BEEXREE EMWERNNEERREEREE

Key Audit Matter

BEZEWRENTWRE

Recoverability of trade receivables

FE2MERE VB mR W T4(E K S 54 & K ) B K B 5
22(Z 5 W HIE) -

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and Note 22 (trade receivables) to the
consolidated financial statements.

M2023F12A31H, EXENEZRWFIBAREFER
ARBI7TI7A B T(BIERE ARK2,0768 Bt RRE
BEARK2I9BET)

As at 31 December 2023, the net carrying amount of trade
receivables of the Group is RMB1,797 million, including
gross amount of RMB2,076 million and allowance for
impairment of RMB279 million.

HAEEZRBERIBEOTKLEN, EEERBEEBRER
SEREMFIENERE « RITTRA R REHROAE LA
REHZZE R MR 2R E R E 6 8 A BB R ey B -
EREFESETHENME  c ARAERNERNRRFTF
ENEENE  ANEESEKRFIBRBEREBOT
FHANERRRKEE/ELHRFES

For assessing the recoverability of trade receivables, the
Group used judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based
on the Group's past history, aging profile of the receivables,
existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates at the end of each reporting period, which are
subject to high degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the assessment of the expected
credit losses of trade receivables is considered relatively
higher due to uncertainty of significant assumptions used.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HFIEE 5 e W kIR mT I E M a8 IR E B R
BIRRFET TR WERMEFTODHET LR EM
EERMRAEZ(MERME TEE ZHREER
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We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal control over the process of recoverability of
trade receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud. We
tested the key controls over the Group’s assessment
of the recoverability of trade receivables;

. EEMABHEEERNSET A EEREERSA
WERBREEGEI R EZNE T

o We assessed the appropriateness of the credit loss
provisioning model and methodology adopted by
management with the involvement of our in-house
valuation experts;

. BAZRE LR SWEIER K E S EWIERE
WES  WrtkmR RATEMEER  FEBEHE
ABEXRN SR

o We challenged the reasonableness of the estimated
credit loss rates by considering historical cash
collection and movements of the aging of trade
receivables, and taking into account the market
conditions as well as forward looking information;
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BREEXSEGE)
Key Audit Matter (Cont’'d)

EEERBEBANNRBAFERELENETADLL
BREBRMAFEERBNHEERER BHFES
ERRBAMELBRBETHE YETHEURRE

AR L A AT BE MER 3 -

The Group calculated the historical default rate percentage
based on the payment profile of debtors, including sales
and bad debts related to the sales in the observed period.
The expected lifetime loss is estimated based on internal
historical data with adjustment to reflect current conditions

and forward looking factors.

BAKBEZEERBENAIREER SBERERXEER T
HREBERERAREEEFERACABREBELNERK

N E B A R A -

We consider recoverability of trade receivables a key audit

matter because the amount is significant and there are

significant and complexed management'’s estimates and
judgements involved in the assessment of expected credit

losses.

FHIRBREEEERAR
20235 & 3R

EMANERUNNEERRERSE(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont’d)

. BMEREERZR KMAEARXHEARGAESR
Z WA R EREOE E2023F12A31BE 5
JE Wi R TE & AR R A 1T L BORI S

o We tested the aging profile of trade receivables as
of 31 December 2023 used in the calculation of
allowance for impairment of trade receivables, on
a sample basis, to sales invoices and other relevant
documents;

. BMRERBRETESRKRABRAERETED
BB R

o We checked mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of allowance for impairment of trade
receivables as at year end;

. HMEH B 5K IE R B 12 4 115 R 1T H
A WA WK R AR B R S e

o We checked, on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables to cash receipts and
the related supporting documentation.

ERFATHRER  BMER TEENRESEWFIE
B BT W [B] 1 BT ik P R R A £ BT R I ER 1S B R S B E R
X e

Based on the procedures performed, we found
management’s estimates and judgements used in the
assessment of recoverability of trade receivables were
supported by available evidence.
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BB R E G

Goodwill impairment assessment

R R E i 2 =N e 2 -~ A 5
17T\ EE) -

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and
judgements) and Note 17 (intangible assets) to the
consolidated financial statements.

M2023F12A831H,
T o BRE

ESENEELEBAARKITER
EEBMEBKASIEE - i ERET

mms EEEASCUBERERR —MABYUNASE
EBEN(REELEN) YCHEEIRESCKES

- -ERESRRBEERABEAERAABEREDEK
ARUBRERE)ETEENIEREBENRSCELEEMD
TW@%%Xﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ ETHEREEFER - &
EERBERAEREERENMBKES  BRABESHEE
Eﬁigi ENEEMAKRBESRE - EITHERETE
FAERERAE LA - Z5FE KRB G E2ER
MBEENFELZETHERENE  UREEBEES
HHRAERRR MEBRREIERFEFHRALRE
ENER BRBEAMERERKERERE o
As at 31 December 2023, balance of goodwill of the Group
amounted to RMB407 million. Goodwill arose from the
Group's business combination activities. For the purposes of
goodwill impairment assessment, management considered
each of the acquired group a separate group of cash-
generated-units ("CGU") and goodwill has been allocated
to each of the acquired group. Management assessed the
impairment of goodwill by determining the recoverable
amounts of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
based on the higher of value-in-use calculation and fair
value less cost of disposals. The value-in-use calculation
requires the Group to forecast the future cash flows
expected to arise from the CGU based on the financial
budgets approved by management. Significant judgements
and estimates were involved in the goodwill impairment
assessment. These significant judgements and estimates
include the adoption of appropriate method to perform
goodwill impairment assessment and the use of key
assumptions in the value-in-use calculation, which primarily
include annual revenue growth rate, gross profit margin,
pre-tax discount rate and terminal growth rate.

BEMANERUNNEERRE RS E(E)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont’d)

BT B 2B B A A B0 E ) K R B ORUE B AT ik AR
fLﬂT%'I%ﬁﬁﬁmTﬁ & H A E A
EipEE(NEREE  THE ZHREBRESK
HREFEPTRE ) BU KT - DART (b B KSR ER PR it 9 &
ﬁﬂ@ BMYE BEEEEHERMMERT G ERE
il 1T 7RI
o We obtained an understanding of management’s
internal control and assessment process of goodwill
impairment and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes
and susceptibility to management bias or fraud. We
tested the key controls over the Group’s assessment
of goodwill impairment;

. HMBE ESENSHABREREMYE E5EH
EBHTH®R MG ESEMHENINNREELS
LRPFIEHNEESENEE ML -

o We assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s
identification of the CGU and allocation of goodwill
based on the Group's accounting policy and our
understanding of the Group’s business.

. BMBREEEBNEHEREN G  LEEHMD
A BBl (B B K AT (4 B I8 S B 7B R (E &Y 4 P B 4R
WA EREBEMEANBERERNES M -

o We obtained management’s assessment on goodwill
impairment and engaged our in-house valuation
experts to assess the appropriateness of the method
adopted by management to perform goodwill
impairment assessment and the discount rate used
by management.
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BREEXSEGE)
Key Audit Matter (Cont’'d)

We consider this area a key audit matter due to the
significance of the goodwill balance and the significant
judgements and estimates involved in the goodwill
impairment assessment.
ENMEBEERIBEARBETHERENARAELE
ANAE R BZRMBRLERE A —EFEREZEIE -

FHIRBREEEERAR
20235 & 3R

EMNERNAEERREXSE(H)
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter (Cont’d)

EERMABEEZRNZ2ET  ZMER LA EEER
BEAETRANERERRANEGEL - HFRAERE
REMZE  HMEERBRATHELZEFREEEHELE
B R I5 BURELL B -

We challenged and assessed the reasonableness of the
key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation with
the involvement of our in-house valuation experts. For the
annual revenue growth rate and gross profit margin, we
compared them with the relevant historical data and market
data, where applicable.

. BHMAEEREREATHERRN A EZ (L H A KE
THENTEMAARBERAETHERE DT
BRI o

o We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis performed by management on the key
assumptions to understand the impact of reasonable
changes in assumptions on the recoverable amount.

. BMEEMERENGTENSHBERL -
o We checked the mathematical accuracy of the
calculations of the goodwill impairment assessment.

ERFBTNRER  RMNBERABRENGEAIRNE
RABREAEIESREZTBEL R °

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
significant judgements and estimates involved in the
goodwill impairment assessment were properly supported
by available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. We have obtained some of the other
information including chairman’s statement and management discussion
and analysis prior to the date of this auditor’s report. The remaining
other information, including corporate profile, corporate information,
financial and business summary, directors and senior management,
report of the Directors, corporate governance report and the other
sections to be included in the annual report, is expected to be made
available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information
that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Contd)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Cont'd)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mang, Kwong Fung Frederick.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

# £2023412 A31H 4 £ For the year ended 31 December 2023

H £2023% HE20224F
12H31H 12HA31H
ItEE LEFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
{hi=a AR® T ARETTT
Note RMB’'000 RMB’'000
L @N Revenue 6 5,424,284 5,179,553
5 & & RS AL A Cost of sales and services 6,7 (3,985,806) (3,841,413)
E Fl Gross profit 1,438,478 1,338,140
HEMZEHEEH Selling and marketing expenses 7 (104,746) (92,137)
1TEE A Administrative expenses 7 (540,976) (480,952)
ERERENEED Net impairment losses on financial and
BB & B R R contract assets 3.1.2 (255,737) (145,432)
H g A Other income 9 50,973 97,141
Hib & A Other expenses 10 (12,596) (11,129)
HEiEEFE Other gains/(losses) — net 1 48,280 (103,687)
KR E Operating profit 623,676 601,944
B 78 U A Finance income 22,781 26,372
B 75 K A Finance costs (842) (925)
R N Finance income — net 12 21,939 25,447
KAEREETERN Share of net loss of associates accounted
iRy NEI ) SR =D L] for using the equity method 28 (30) (407)
I%Fﬁ B A1 A Profit before income tax 645,585 626,984
BHEH Income tax expense 14 (137,727) (152,237)
F A FE Profit for the year 507,858 474,747
Hib2mEKk A Other comprehensive income
AJEEE 7 B E B M HE  Items that may be reclassified to profit or
loss
REAABEFAEMER Changes in the fair value of debt
WAREBEBEIAERR instruments at fair value through other
BEEEZE comprehensive income 19 (3,619) (46,394)
EAnBEAAEMEZE Credit loss of debt instruments at fair
WARBEKBITA value through other comprehensive
EREE income 3.1.2 3,619 49,889
FRHEHM2ER R Other comprehensive gain for
the year — 3,495
#2mEKA Total comprehensive income 507,858 478,242
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REZEBAR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

# £2023412 A31H 4 £ For the year ended 31 December 2023

H £20235 H 220224

12A31H 12 A31H
LtEE LLFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
Bt 5 AR®TR AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
LATRA = FEAS FH - Profit is attributable to:
— RRREAA — Owners of the Company 445,045 423,476
— R RS — Non-controlling interests 62,813 51,271
507,858 474,747
LATATEEREZEEA: Total comprehensive income is
attributable to:
— RARRIEE A — Owners of the Company 445,045 426,971
— JEFE AR R A — Non-controlling interests 62,813 51,271
507,858 478,242
BRAEFMCAARBITTETR)  Earnings per share (expressed in RMB)
— BREXRF — Basic earnings per share 15 0.52 0.50
— 5REERA — Diluted earnings per share 15 0.52 0.50

Lt 4R & 2w A K FE B BE B BT 5E — OF B2 The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be

e

i o read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FHIRBREEEERAR
106 2023F F



RE BRI R

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72023412 A31H As at 31 December 2023

2023%F 720224
12A31H 12A31H
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2023 2022
B 5E AR T AR T T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
kREBEE Non-current assets
Y- BERZE Property, plant and equipment 16(a) 74,129 83,039
FREREE Right-of-use assets 16(b) 18,069 19,287
mEE Intangible assets 17 849,930 885,170
REERANEE Investments in associates 28 5,683 4,733
BEEREMEE Deferred income tax assets 30 106,927 88,718
BEAnRBEGFAEZN Financial assets at fair value through
TRLEE profit or loss 20 75,624 370,689
RBEELE Total non-current assets 1,130,362 1,451,636
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 39,614 44,230
BHEE Contract assets 6 332,472 292,740
BEAnBEFAEMEZE Financial assets at fair value through
WAR S /mEE other comprehensive income 19 2,377 5,996
BEAnRBEGFAERZD Financial assets at fair value through
TREEE profit or loss 20 503,582 80,636
B 5 R IR Trade receivables 22 1,796,855 1,292,257
TERRIE - ' &k EAM Prepayments, deposits and other
&Y kIR receivables 23 950,098 1,009,456
BHekBeEED Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,927,283 1,973,696
REBEELRE Total current assets 5,552,281 4,699,011
EEHRE Total assets 6,682,643 6,150,647
& Equity
EAREEAELESR Equity attributable to owners of the
Company
A% 7% Share capital 25 59,980 59,973
5 Reserves 26 2,843,785 2,529,505
2,903,765 2,589,478
IR = Non-controlling interests 387,443 319,045
REEE Total equity 3,291,208 2,908,523

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72023412 A31H As at 31 December 2023

A20235F R20224
12831H 128318
As at 31 As at 31
December December
2023 2022
o= AR® T ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
=R Liabilities
knBERE Non-current liabilities
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16(b) 7,693 9,521
B Provisions 4,100 3,102
B 5K E &R FKRIE Trade and other payables 29 112,924 105,398
RIEFRIE B E Deferred tax liabilities 30 111,326 114,764
ERBEEHREE Total non-current liabilities 236,043 232,785
REaE Current liabilities
HEBRE Lease liabilities 16(b) 7,578 6,736
& Borrowings — 2,265
aHEaE Contract liabilities 6 826,549 747,899
FET AR B Dividend payable 27,467 22,526
B 5 &k B A B 5K IE Trade and other payables 29 2,080,679 2,043,283
BB mEHERE Current income tax liabilities 213,119 186,630
REBAEHAE Total current liabilities 3,155,392 3,009,339
EBEAE Total liabilities 3,391,435 3,242,124
EEREEBEAR Total equity and liabilities 6,682,643 6,150,647
REBEETFE Net current assets 2,396,889 1,689,672

ot &R & B 7 AR R 3R FE B BE M B 5E — OF B2 The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read
B o in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

F105E 2408 W 4R & B 75 ¥ = 12024 F3 A
EEEEZEeMHETHAUNTESRERE -

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 240 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and were signed
on its behalf.

N % 1E
Qi Xiaoming Yang Bo
EF EE
Director Director

FHIRBREEEERAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

£ 22023412 A318 1L [ For the year ended 31 December 2023

ARABEARE

Attributable to owners of the Company

e Fef @it EEhEs EERE
Share Non-controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
M ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR  ARETx
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W20251818 K &5 Balance at 1 January 2022 59,900 2,224,020 2,283,920 240,712 2,524,632
2EBA Comprehensive income
ERFIE Profit for the year - 423,476 423,476 51,271 474747
Bt 2EMA Other comprehensive income — 3,495 3,495 — 3,495
EREZEMA Total comprehensive income for the year = 426,971 426,971 51,271 478,42
ERREREINEERA Transactions with owners recognised
ETNRA directly in equity
ARAERNRERHBAR Dividend declared by the Company and by
ERFRRERHRE subsidiaries to non-controlling interests — (134,944) (134,944) (2,883) (137,827)
BE019FERER Exercise of share option under 2019 share
iRk option scheme 73 5,740 5,813 - 5,813
BEESRMEMFERERR  Acquisition of shares for Employee Share Award
scheme — (3,765) (3,765) — (3,765)
Kk BAR Acquisition of subsidiaries — — — 29,725 29,725
MERBRA Addition of subsidiaries — — — 678 678
$ERERTE Injection of capital from non-controlling
interests - — — 10 10
HE-RHBAR Disposal of a subsidiary — — — (779) (779)
DRHAERHAR Share-based payment — 10,394 10,394 — 10,394
i INE Capital increase in a subsidiary — 975 975 525 1,500
BERRERNR S Transaction with non-controlling interest = 14 114 (214) (100)
2022512 A31B &5 Balance at 31 December 2022 59,973 2,529,505 2,589,478 319,045 2,908,523
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

KRREAAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
Rx % & FERER ERAE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity

g ARMTR ARMTR  AR®TR ARETR ARETR
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

W2023E151A M & & Balance at 1 January 2023 59,973 2,529,505 2,589,478 319,045 2,908,523
2EBA Comprehensive income
ERFE Profit for the year — 445,045 445,045 62,813 507,858
At 2EHA Other comprehensive income = = = = =
ERAZENA Total comprehensive income for the year — 445,045 445,045 62,813 507,858
EERERRANA Transactions with owners recognised
BEAEMTH directly in equity
KE-HEBAH Acquisition of a subsidiary 3 = = - 15,867 15,867
AANAEROBERKBAASIE Dividend declared by the Company and by
FERERDRE subsidiaries to non-controlling interests 31 — (139,413) (139,413) (10,641) (150,054)
BE019FEREE TR Exercise of share option under 2019 share
BRE option scheme 25 7 534 541 - 541
BEESRMEMFERERR  Acquisition of shares for Employee Share Award
scheme 26 — (2,872) (2,872) — (2,872)
FERER R Capital injection to addition of subsidiaries from
MEBLREE non-controlling interests — — — 49 49
FERERTE Injection of capital from non-controlling
interests — — — 596 596
HERBAR Disposal of subsidiaries 3 — — — (286) (286)
AR RT3 Share-based payment 27 - 6,069 6,069 - 6,069
TERAH HRXRH RN Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock
shares 26 — 4,917 4917 - 4917
B2023F12A31AM &5 Balance at 31 December 2023 59,980 2,843,785 2,903,765 387,443 3,291,208

bt 4R S R a B B 5% R B BB B BT 5 — OF B The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read
B o in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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MERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

220235 HE2022F
12B31BLEE NANBLEEE

For the year For the year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2023 2022

B = AR TR ARETTT
Note RMB‘000 RMB’000

REZHFRBRERE

Cash flows from operating activities

KEMERE Cash generated from operations 34(a) 568,801 226,555
B ATIE Income tax paid (145,091) (162,679)
REFTBERELTHE Net cash generated from operating
activities 423,710 63,876
REZHFMBRERE Cash flows from investing activities
SHBERAAEBETA Payments for acquisition of financial assets at
EafamEE fair value through profit or loss (333,331) (662,172)

HEZARBEFAEZD  Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair

TREEMSNKE value through profit or loss 130,307 536,211
BARBEGFAEZINESE Interest received on financial assets at

BEREBRAAEEGTAR fair value through profit or loss and

fib 2 E KA K S B E E financial assets at fair value through other

B A comprehensive income 9 5,620 40,451
WEEH B AR IR ® Net cash outflow for acquisition of a

it OF # subsidiary 32 (54,494) (89,920)
3= Wi RN Investments in associates 28 (980) (1,140)
R EE 5 B Loans to related parties — (35,000)
TRHEEWE BMEKKZMHE  Payments for acquisition of property, plant

and equipment (26,162) (57,420)

SNEEEREE Payments for acquisition of intangible assets (7,218) (21,457)
HEWE MELEREH?E  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

A equipment 6,843 6,110

ST BEFELENE QG

Payment for unsettled consideration of

B R ERE acquisition of subsidiaries from previous
years (24,816) (182,731)
REZBHFEANESFE Net cash used in investing activities (304,231) (467,0698)
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MERERER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

#HZ2023F B E20226F
12A31BLEE 1R2ABLFE
For the year For the year
ended ended
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
BT 5 ARBTR ARBTT
Note RMB‘000 RMB’000
METHMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
1R #520194F B8 A% 4 51 & Exercise of share option under 2019 share
17150 BB AR A option scheme 25 541 5,813
HERBEHNAREF Principal elements of lease payments and its
HA S interests 16(b) (10,498) (5,725)
PAN/NE)| /)fE K A% B K& i B2  Dividend paid by the Company and by
RAIERIFEREZHRE subsidiaries to non-controlling interests 31 (145,113) (137,827)
REBRNEEEK Acquisition of shares for Employee Share
B D Award Scheme (2,872) (3,765)
TEEFERMDFBH Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock
R 5 PR il AR 19 shares 4,917 —
FERERTE Capital contribution from non-controlling
interests — 10
IE 15 AR HE 25 1) T 35 Capital injection to addition of subsidiaries
WEAEEE from non-controlling interests 49 678
EERERTE Injection of capital from non-controlling
interests 596 1,500
7= — BB A F 3E 4 AR Share purchase of non-controlling interests of
= EERD a subsidiary 37 — (100)
&R FT 15 A Repayments of borrowings (18,265) (5,172)
& B 8 A 7 7 Net cash (outflow)/inflow for disposal of
REemAFE subsidiaries 33 (4,608) 167
METHFEARSFEH Net cash used in financing activities (175,253) (144,421)
RERRESEEBEYWR AP FEE Netdecrease in cash and cash equivalents (55,774) (547,613)
R BREINRE RE L Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the
ZEY year 1,973,696 2,504,102
EXEHER e RBE Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and
EEYNTE cash equivalents 9,361 17,207
REXNEESERE Cash and cash equivalents at end of the
ZEY year 1,927,283 1,973,696
Lt 4R & B &R 2 &k E B EE M BT 5 — OF B2 The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
B e conjunction with the accompanying notes.
FHIRREEEERA
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RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

1.1

—REH
—REHR

TR EEER AT (N X FMEIH
AFDR2018F1A16ERIEMNEHS
A AE (5228 1961F B35 5 0, &
etk ERHEIMA TR
BHREBR AR - WH20185F11A6H
EERBBAERGMBRAR ([BRER])
FIR L o AR AR M P R ok
APO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands °

RAARA—REEERAQR - BE
MEAREFEZRPEARLME(H
B ) 1R ¥ 3 B 1B AR 75 K A8 R 15 (B AR
T o &R R A A Alnfinity Fortune
Development Limited, £ 7 % & &z & B¥
ESFEMAY - REBENZEERRR
ATREAE((EEEINBELER
BREE]) -

BRRBREAN BEMBHRRUAAR
BETTIARS®TFRDES -

1.1

GENERAL INFORMATION

General information

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited, hereinafter referred to
as the “Company” was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 16 January 2018 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap.22, Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands and listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “stock exchange”) on 6 November 2018. The address of
the Company's registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of property
management services and related value-added services in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"). The ultimate
controlling company is Infinity Fortune Development Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group is Mr. Wang Zhenhua (“Mr.
Wang"” or the “Ultimate Controlling Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.
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RE P BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2 EitBRBE

AMERHBHZESE AV REK
BARANEIZEAERRBE - K=
BEAEN  ZERERRABEINF
E-—EEA-

21 EARSHEEME
2.1.1 HEEE

() HETFEEHEHETERREELR
Al 15 )
ARBGEMBHRRERBEE LGS
MAERMNBEENERSER(E
BMBHREEY D RFELFGH(F
6228)([BERDAMM D EERE

(i) L AL
RAEMBRRERBELKAERE
THEGMRALBEFAEMEZEK
ANEREERZAABEAR
HHNEREEMFDIERT -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

2.1

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the principal accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Summary of material accounting policies

2.1.1 Basis of preparation

()

(i1)

Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") issued by Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant ("HKICPA") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622
("HKCO").

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2

2.1

SHBRERE @)
EASHEEME(H)

2.1.1 HREE(%E)

(iif)

(iv)

K EE B IR 1 FT AT R AS NS ET 2E R
7 45 B4 40 0 37 4T R AR 48 3T R B AR A
BEHREFEREHIEREANT
B R 53T

. BAEMB®REERFI7HRRR

&

. BAFRENRE — HEe
HAFIKME LM BF RS E
BB RH2NERT

SRFEFTNER — BB S
RERESFE M BT

B2023F1718 & &% 4 £ it 37 5] %
Bl - Bl ARREYEHAEEHZE
2023F N A3NEEGREREXEE RIS
MM RERERNERNTE -

18] 7K R A B %7 5T 2E Bl R 72 FE

ETHETERER BRI RBREDL
EM o HMNE Z20235F12A318 I &
EXAREH AR BREAEERR
iy o mE R - BT ARZERG
REHRARBREHE TS HAEE
RABROARRGELEERATE -

2.1
2.1.1

(7if)

(iv)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)
Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments
for the first time for their annual reporting set out below:

o HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

o Disclosure of Accounting Policies — Amendments to HKAS
1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

o Definition of Accounting Estimates — Amendments to
HKAS 8

The adoption of the above new standards, amendments and
interpretation starting from 1 January 2023 did not give rise
to any significant impact on the Group’s consolidated results
of operations and consolidated financial position for the year
ended 31 December 2023.

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Certain new accounting standard, amendments and
interpretations have been published that are not mandatory
for the year ended 31 December 2023 and have not been early
adopted by the Group. These standards, amendments and
interpretations are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1
2.1.2

(i)

SHBRERE @)
EASHEEME(H)
BHER Rz E i E

W& 22 7]
MEARIEASEHEEREGED
FMEER(ERARUEER - WAE
B E2EEEMGAEDRAER
A ENIERBEHERE
BLINTERFTEZZTER AKX
SEEEHERERIZENE -HBQ
FEEHREREAEB ZHEAR B
AR BESEREZBEELAH
N

HEZES TOEBE G
e M RRBEEE KR E
EHMNERBXEBOMBRERER
BMREEZTERAEXHTEAAE
S 2 AR A AR -

frEHTNARE AHERBKEHKE
EFENRBREEAHFAK A&
AR ZEHES GENEEKEE
TRERETABANEE  BERNK
RBEEFALEBENEZBHKA
B EB DD (ARSI TS FERR) ER
EAIEER -

HEEEBARBREAMHERN
EBRAAIRFANENBEAHER
AEBAERZHKRAZEH AR FRE,
i 5% AR A - RIS & R SR 4% il 4
AR -

RERBRAG-MEHEE . A
FEBREBBOFAEERSBR
5 BEBREXFEORERKAST
CER

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

2.1
2.1.2

(i)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations under common contro

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
consolidated financial statement items of the entities or
businesses in which the common control combination occurs as
if they had been consolidated from the date when the entities
or businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses are
consolidated using the existing book values from the controlling
party’s perspective. No amount is recognised in consideration
for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of acquirer’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination,
to the extent of the continuation of the controlling party’s
interest.

The consolidated statements of comprehensive income include
the results of each of the combining entities or businesses
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the common
control, where this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of
the common control combination.

A uniform set of accounting polices is adopted by those entities.
All intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between combining entities or businesses are
eliminated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1
2.1.2

(i)

SHBRERE @)
EASHEEME(H)
EHERIREZR S EE(E)

B /& 2 7] (%)

FHEES THRB S 6
AEBRBRBEBLIFZ LR Z
HEHEBEHAR - WE—RHHBR
AEENRERMEREE  HK
WETHMAEBAEENABRAS
BETORAEENAAEER E
ENRERRIARERHMELN
ERMEEXKEBNAAEBE EEH
& Bf BT U B B9 BT 8 R B EE A B BT
EMRBERIARAE  FURER
WHERMNAREBENE -

AEERBEZERKEZEEERET
WU EB T OEMIEERES - WK
BHOIEZERER DR E R
TERAEARLIDEERERE
WEEFRE BRAABENRKME
BEZERHEREBLAIERNEEF
ECERE RN E - FERE
&5 B T A E At 48 5KCRF 10 4% W R B A9
AABEFE KRIBEUBREE
AIERAS -t EBEEGFE -

2.1
2.1.2

(i)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)
Business combinations not under common control

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations not under common control. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is
the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are measured at either fair
value or the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

117



118

Fade)

B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1
2.1.2

(i)

SHBRERE @)
EASHEEME(H)
EHERIREZR S EE(E)

B /& 2 7] (%)
HRZEH T ER A 6 (&)
WEHBKARELRH -

MEBEHIEERET KBHTRE
FIT 45 1R UK R 77 IR & e R i B B
REEZRKBAMNAREBEER
B ZENMAEEEANEMRARE
BREE®ER -

AEEEERNEMNRAKRERKRER
HHARBEER KE/SEERE
BEOIRAREAABENEREZHRN
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TTEMFE ERELERERA
BE o

EEAE  EARKELDFER
BEtBMREMFTREELDRA
BaRNRERSMNAREBERLAK
BURANEEFENAIABENE
BIRAEE -BREBEMS @ K
MEBEAE CHEIFERZERRD
SREREMFERGMERREE
MBAREEFENAAEBE =8
BEERRBEHER -
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MRXZHRBRKRET TEHE - BRIF
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BRTHE -
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2.1
2.1.2

(i)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Business combinations not under common control (Cont’d)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been
adjusted to conform to the Group’s accounting policies.
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1
2.1.2

(i)
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MEBEARMSNVREEE  E5
fENR - REEXNEREE 1L
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BANTMBEERNASECDER
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BE DA
BMENAEBASEHEEEATE
BEESfEXEREHENEE
BB AEE —RIFE20%E50% 2
RV ERAERE KRB E
DEIMEETIAEREEARRTX
(iii)) °

2.1
2.1.2

(i)

(i)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transaction with non-controlling interests that do not result
in loss of control are accounted for as equity transaction —
that is, as transactions with the owner of the subsidiary in
their capacity as owners, the difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in
equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after initially
being recognised at cost.
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023
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2.1.2
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2.1
2.1.2

(7if)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income.

Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint
ventures are recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount
of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2.1
2.1.2

(i)

2.1.3
(a)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Cont’d)

Equity accounting (Cont’d)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy described in Note
2.1.7.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in
intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

121



122

Fade)

B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.1
2.1.3
(b)

()

(@)

(e)

SHBRERE @)
EASHEEME(H)
BIEEEE)

o i)

B EUS R RIAE £ R AFIR - B
EBAHMENERERSRHAR
REERER HAEREERFH (T
F) R BRI AR AR R AT # 85 KORE
BRI -

FTEBEAM
EBE®M RO KN REE LT ER
HRAERMEERAREEANR -
ZERARBER[FTAERFEH(R
E+E)HHE -

EFPBE

REBEHPRBONTFPBELIERRY
WEBHNAAEBERR FFPBER
BEAREANERFY  LRERARR
FHEHYIRR - B DORESBEREA
ERFR(EETF)RELENE -

B1E
REBEFHRBORRENEBER
HHAREBEE®ER BRAEEHEN
ERFRERAANR R EIHEIIR
BEOREEERBUERFH (TR
FI)REREE -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

2.1
2.1.3
(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)
Intangible assets (Cont'd)

Licences

Separately acquired licences are shown at historical cost.
Licenses acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful life
(10 years) and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

Computer Software

Acquired software licences are capitalised on the basis of the
costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific software.
These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives (5 to
10 years).

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in business combinations are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. The customer
relationships have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected useful lives respectively
(7 to 10 years).

Trademarks

Trademarks acquired in business combinations are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The trademarks have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over
the expected useful lives respectively (15 years).
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2.1

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.1.4 Financial assets

(i)

(i)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

) those to be measured subsequently at fair value either
through other comprehensive income or through profit
or loss; and

i) those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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2.1
2.1.4

(7if)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in
their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the
Group's business model for managing the asset and the cash
flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

J Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income when
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.1.4 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(7if)

Measurement (Cont’d)

Debt instruments (Cont'd)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest, are measured at fair value through OCI.
Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OClI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income and recognised in ‘other gains — net’. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in ‘other gains — net’ in the period in which it arises.
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2.1
2.1.4

(7if)

2.1.5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)

Measurement (Cont’d)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair
value. Where the Group’s management has elected to present
fair value gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there
is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in ‘other income’ when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in ‘other gains — net’ as applicable.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not reported separately from
other changes in fair value.

Revenue recognition

The Group provides property management services, community-
related value-added services and developer-related value-
added services. Revenue from providing services is recognised
in the accounting period in which the services are rendered.
The following is a description of the accounting policy for the
principal revenue streams of the Group:

For property management services, the Group bills a fixed
amount for each month of service provided and recognises
as revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right to
invoice and corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed.
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2.1
2.1.5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

For property management services income from properties
managed under lump sum basis, where the Group acts as
principal and is primarily responsible for providing the property
management services to the property owners, the Group
recognises the fee received or receivable from property owners
as its revenue and all related property management costs as
its cost of service. For property management services income
from properties managed under commission basis, the Group
recognises the commission, which is calculated by certain
percentage of the total property management fee received or
receivable from the property units, as its revenue for arranging
and monitoring the services as provided by other suppliers to
the property owners.

Property developer related services include mainly i) on-site sales
assistance services, which includes cleaning and maintenance
services to property developers, which are billed and settled
monthly based on actual level of services provided at pre-
determined price and revenue is recognised when such services
are provided; ii) property delivery related and other consulting
services, which are fixed amount contract with property
developers and are billed and settled on a monthly basis and
revenue is recognised when the services are provided; iii) Smart
community services mainly include engineering and maintenance
services of intelligent security equipment. Revenue from smart
community services are recognised when the contracts have
been approved and the services are rendered. Revenue from
smart community services recognised over a period of time
are based on the stage of completion of such service, which is
determined by the proportion of costs incurred to the estimated
total costs. As at the balance sheet date, the Group reassesses
the stage of completion so as to better reflect the changes in
obligation performance. Revenue is recognised by the stage
of completion of the construction services. Trade receivables
are recognised when the Group has an unconditional right to
payment. For the remaining part of the services, a contract
asset is recognised. The Group recognises the loss provision
using the expected credit loss model for its trade receivables
and contract assets. If the payments received or receivable
exceed the services rendered, a contract liability is recognised
for the excess. Contract assets and contract liabilities under the
same contract are presented on a net basis. Smart community
services are normally billable immediate upon the delivery of the
services.
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2.1
2.1.5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Community related services include mainly i) Commission income
from information services is recognised on a net basis when the
service provided; ii) Revenue from merchandise sales from the
online platform is recognised when the Group sells products to
the customers; iii) Revenue from public resources management
services, which is recognised on a net basis over the time when
such services are rendered; iv) Revenue from other community
convenience services are charged for each services provided
and recognised when the relevant services are rendered; and
v) commission income for sale of car parks, which are billed to
property developers on a monthly basis and were recognised on
a net basis when the car parks were delivered to the customers.
Community related services are normally billable immediately
upon the services are provided.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services, the transaction
price will be allocated to each performance obligation based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the standard-
alone selling prices are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or adjusted
market assessment approach, depending on the availability of
observable information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the statements of financial position
as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending on the
relationship between the Group’s performance and the
customer’s payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact,
if recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets and
subsequently amortised when the related revenue is recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the Group
transfers services to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment is received, or
a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier). A contract liability
is the Group's obligation to transfer services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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2.1
2.1.5

2.1.6

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses the expected credit losses on a forward-
looking basis associated with its debt instrument carried at
amortised cost and financial assets at fair value through OCI.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1.2 details
how the Group determines whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables and contract assets.

For deposits and other receivables due from related parties,
since the majority of the deposits is due from government
authorities as pledge for the ordinary business and related
parties have a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term, thus the impairment provision
recognised during the period was limited to 12 months expected
losses.
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2.1
2.1.6

2.1.7

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For financial assets at fair value through OCI debt instruments,
other receivables other than those from related parties, the
Group adopted a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised
below:

. The receivables, which are not credit-impaired on initial
recognition, are classified in “Stage 1” and have their
credit risk continuously monitored by the Group.

o If a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition is identified, the receivables are moved to
“Stage 2" but is not yet deemed to be credit impaired.

. If the receivables are credit-impaired, the financial

instrument is then moved to “Stage 3".

Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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2.1
2.1.8

2.2
2.2.1

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of material accounting policies (Cont'd)

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Summary of other accounting policies

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the consolidated statements of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Company or the counterparty.
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2.2
2.2.2

(a)

(b)

2.2.3

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)
Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
‘functional currency’). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group'’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised within “Other losses — net” in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for
as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2.3 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Buildings 30 years

Transportation equipment 10 years

Electronic equipment 5 years

Furniture and machinery 4-5 years

Lease improvement Over the shorter of the
lease term or the estimated
useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
losses — net’ in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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2.2
2.2.4

2.2.5

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO)
method. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and banks,
deposits held at call with financial institutions and other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

2.2.6 Share capital

2.2.7

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as
current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.



RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2
2.2.8

SHBRERE @)
HtestBHEMEE)

&

ERNFRAAEBEARAELENR
ZRAER - ERERRBERA
FHE - IERBBNBRR S K A) R E
OeENETAERERERM XX
REEFRARMEE R QMR -

e R B ERAT AL A1 2 AP ER R -
AIRRIERBEINNEARR
REFRZGERA - EUBERT  ZE
RREERMEL - WRBBBERHA
EXBERATEN D EHEREN
AZEREARDE 2 RBANREA
TRER - XRE B RO EE HRE
BiH -

EANRENEETRER  BUHKE
B-ERREERBERTER - BH
BMABRETEZ TN EHAENER
BEEXNHNRKEZRANEZR(BHE
FBRIREEELMEAEAR) KX
BafERRSMBERA -

RoBATHARE  HRIELAEER
BEGREFNNBEESEAPERER
L% = L12@A -

t&
i

2

2.2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2.8 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount
is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this
case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the
extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all
of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over the period
of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-
cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the reporting period.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

135



136

g

B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2
2.2.9

2.2.10

SHBRERE @)
HtestBHEMEE)

EEVIREN

i REREEABREAERE
FE 15 H) — M R B B R AR R 52 AR
RERAEERERARBERS
HE N TEL - A BREEEY
FEEABHMALEBRERSER
WEMBE -

Hl 5 5K AN E A B R B R B
==

Bl R K 3 L fF 13 #%

HAMSHERAERERES DA
R H) B A AT S R BB R R
WASMETHIE  MABEASHREE
ERZELAPAREEEMED
BELEHRBEERAGESHAE -

B2 B 18

MG HERARERSEHRAQF
WINB AR RBE AR REEBAE
EERABRBAMENBEREEMKE
BEERMOBRAGHE  ERERER
MBEEPIARERENRERE BT
BRBEEROMN - THEBERBRTE
T8 HA 78 1A AR A M RE AR B B R RE
B -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

2.2
2.2.9

2.2.10

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that
is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid
to the tax authorities.



Fade)

B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

2.2
2.2.10

SHBRERE @)
HtestBHEMEE)
BB R i FE P 12 5 (4)

B E BT 17
REMSTHRBEGBERNEERE
BENRERRERONEZRNE K
EHENEEVBRRPERREE - A
- BREMSHABREYEHEN
MEHER  UREELEMSHRATE
RHEGPTBEEEBAMPHEERE
BRVRER MEXSHEITES
FEENERRAERE X AR
ERLBR - BMIEFTS B ER AR W& 8
RAERBHEBERBEM TEFH

BEMSHEEERRNEEHERE
?ﬁ%ﬁ#fﬁiﬂﬁﬂ%@}@ﬁﬁE’\Jﬁ%(&?ﬁﬂ)
i & E °

EEBBAEEEEARRERNEE

H—r—JFﬁEA@jﬁﬁEZi? RrEmENLEER
%J%EEM\ ©
fisl S 2 7] 8 4 I 88 0] B 2= RE A B

SZ@%%ETZ NS RA R ARG
BATemIIBEERKITEERDESRS
ECHNEREZERTELERIESR
BEREE -

B A A KOR R B 81T 80 R R A B B AR
REERAFBEKE METHBALR

HE—-HEEERBE - A SRET
MEREERAEERE EEBAANK

ERHMITRERNAARRFEE
EFEYRBEREERGERER
A EEERMARELRE -

R EERERNER D ER I
FEREME2ERANEERES
HREIEBERRI - EULIERT @ IR
ORI R EMZEW AN EE N EER
EPﬁEu/m°

2.2
2.2.10

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)
Current and deferred income tax (Cont'd)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are
offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2.2
2.2.11

(i)

(i)

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)
Employee benefits

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution pension plans.
In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as
a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC based
employees’ payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no further
obligation for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of these plans
are held separately from those of the Group in independently
administrated funds managed by the governments.

The Group’s contributions to the defined contribution retirement
scheme are expensed as incurred.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to participate
in various government-supervised housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurance plan. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these funds based on certain
percentages of the salaries of the employees, subject to certain
ceiling. The Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited
to the contributions payable in each year. Contributions to the
housing funds, medical insurances and other social insurances
are expensed as incurred.
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2.2.12

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date, or
when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the Group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when
the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of terminations
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to present value.

Share-based payments

Share-based compensation benefit is provided to employees
via the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme.
Information relating to the scheme is set out in Note 27.

The fair value of options and restricted shares granted under
the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme
are recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options and restricted shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions (e.g. the
entity’s share price)

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales
growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period), and

— including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g.
the requirement for employees to save or hold shares for
a specific period of time).
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2.2

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2.12 Share-based payments (Contd)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the entity revises
its estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.2.13 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also
be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
Group's consolidated financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable,
it will then be recognised as a provision.
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(i)

(i)

2.2.15

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)
Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: the profit
attributable to owners of the company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares
issued during the year and excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the
determination of basic earnings per share to take into account:
the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, and the
weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that
would have been outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and
financial assets at FVOCI calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash management
purposes. Any other interest income is included in other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance).
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2.2
2.2.16

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components.
The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the
lease and non-lease components based on their relative stand-
alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
which is generally the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the
individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-
use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.
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2.2
2.2.16

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received,

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the
Group, which does not have recent third-party financing,
and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,
currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to the
individual lessee (through recent financing or market data) which
has a similar payment profile to the lease, the Group entities
use that rate as a starting point to determine the incremental
borrowing rate.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable
lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not
included in the lease liability until they take effect. When
adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take
effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted against the
right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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2.2
2.2.16

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

Leases (Cont'd)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received,

o any initial direct costs and restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. While the Group revalues its land and buildings that
are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has
chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings held by the
Group.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and
vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term
leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value assets comprise IT equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor
is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and
recognised as expense over the lease term on the same basis
as lease income. The respective leased assets are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position based on their
nature.
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2.2
2.2.17

2.2.18

2.2.19

SUMMARY OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Summary of other accounting policies (Cont'd)

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared,
being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion
of the entity, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants related to assets refer to government grants
which are obtained by the Group for the purposes of purchase,
construction or acquisition of the long-term assets. Government
grants related to income refer to the government grants other
than those related to assets.

Government grants related to assets are either deducted against
the carrying amount of the assets, or recorded as deferred
income and recognised in profit or loss on a systemic basis over
the useful lives of the assets. Government grants related to
income that compensate the future costs, expenses or losses are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss, or
deducted against related costs, expenses or losses in reporting
the related expenses; government grants related to income
that compensate the incurred costs, expenses or losses are
recognised in profit or loss, or deducted against related costs,
expenses or losses directly in current period. The Group applies
the presentation method consistently to the similar government
grants in the financial statements.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM"), who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance
of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive
and non-executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

145



146

Fade)

B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.1

311
()

Bt 75 L B i B

MERRER

$%EW¥%E$EIE%$EW%
E:-mEREKR FEERBRERBE
SRR - NEEREERE A“ﬁ+%
EESRMBTAIEENER ¥
FREREHAEETBHERANE
ETF L -

7% B

S FE J7 2
AEERFRERERHMEETERY
RIBBEIZERY  STHEXSHMNU
AREGE  HIHBHBEFTHMER
BHhLAAT(BETD®HET(ERT])
5HE - # £2023F12A318 ' A& B
ABHEERBEAAREA:E  #
ETHSRAEREBEBEUBTLHET
AT °

ARRAREZAMBARNINEER
RARE - Bt WBTTHETFE
E/] WEéFEEW&‘\EHDDO/%ﬁ&
ENRARBNERRSHEZERE

B EERE - NEHE BB ESNE
HOHRBEK - A BRETDEEIN
BE L B I Y 0 E RS EREAT ) -

MR2023F12A318 - MARELE T
FHE B E10%  MAAHEMA & E
ERFBTE  FERBRBERNBE TR,
+ 7+ A K #1,300,0007C (20224 : A
R #1,636,0007T) ' T ER AL E L
BT ERITERAEINE W 25
E B ATER -

MR2023F12A31H MARB R ETT
FHE B E10%  MAEEMAEE
EEBTE  FERBEMNBEE TR
+ F+ A R #3,993,0007T (20224 : A
R #59,619,0007L) r TZHAABRE MU
ETLFEMRITER M&&Em&
Hz2mB A ENREBRENF
SNEE W 5 S R FTEK o

FHIRBREEEERAR
20235 & 3R

3.1

3.1.1
()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is engaged in the provision of property management
services and related value-added services in the PRC with almost
all the transactions denominated in RMB, except for proceeds
from certain financing activities, which are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"”) or United States Dollar (“USD").
As of 31 December 2023, majority of the Group’s assets and
liabilities are denominated in RMB except that certain cash and
investment debt are denominated in HKD or USD.

The Company and all of its subsidiaries’ functional currency
is RMB. Accordingly, financial assets denominated in HKD or
USD are subject to foreign exchange risk. Fluctuations in the
exchange rates of HKD and USD against RMB will affect the
Group's result of operations. The Group currently does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, management
closely monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will take
actions when necessary.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 10%, against HKD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB1,300,000
(2022: RMB1,636,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD
denominated bank deposits.

As at 31 December 2023, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 10%, against USD with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been RMB3,993,000
(2022: RMB59,619,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
net foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of USD
denominated bank deposits and investment debt which are
measured at FVPL and FVOCI.
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3.1
3.1.1
(i)

(iif)

B 7% B B B 3R () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
MERBEEE) 3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
%5 2 B8 (45) 3.1.1 Market risk (Cont'd)
1B 1% 7 B (i) Price risk
HRAEEMBRELESZGE W BMN The Group is exposed to price risk arising from investments held
MEREDBERBIZAABETAEM by the Group and classified on the consolidated statements of
2EW A EF19 iR AR BETA financial position as FVOCI (Note 19) and FVPL (Note 20).
Bz (M #E20)  MASKEAZERR
o o
REBASBEMBREELENER To manage its price risk arising from investments held by the
w o AKREZTILHYEHRS - K Group, the Group diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the
SERBAGENRE XM ELS portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the Group.
Zrult - MEREERESTEERT All investments must be approved by the Chairman of the Board
AR TR HETT o before they may be entered into.
TEBREMEENAAEEE 7Jl]/ The following table summarises the impact of increase/decrease
WAOEER R EMEEKANTE of fair value of the financial assets with all other variable held
ERREMBEEMEHERTE - constant on net profit and other comprehensive income.
= HitZEB A
Net profit ocCl
BZE12B31BLEE
Year ended 31 December
20234 20224 2023%F 20224
2023 2022 2023 2022
ARBTR ARBTRT AR%BTR AR%®T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
— E#5% — 5 percent higher 28,960 22,566 119 300
— T #5% - 5 percent lower (28,960) (22,566) (119) (300)
Tl & J7 Sz (i) Interest rate risk

M20234F &2022F 12 A318 -+ B iR 17
RETFHRARE S K Eth R RIE K
BBEITENE THEKIN XREELE
FEFEEE  EmiEmELEKRF
LR e

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, except for cash deposit in
the bank and certain balances of trade and other receivables
and debt instruments, Group has no interest-bearing liabilities

and hence are not subject to significant interest rate risk.
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3.1
3.1.2

()

(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other receivables; cash
and cash equivalents and debt investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income. The carrying amounts of trade
receivables, contract assets, deposits and other receivables;
and cash and cash equivalents represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Cash in banks and payment platforms

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash deposits in banks and payment platforms
since they are substantially deposited at state-owned or
reputable financial institutions in mainland China and reputable
international financial institutions outside of mainland China.
For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated
parties with a minimum rating of ‘A" are accepted. Management
does not expect that there will be any significant losses from
non-performance by these counterparties.

Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables and contract assets. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables and contract assets have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past
due. The expected credit loss also incorporates forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables. The Group has identified
the GDP, completed investment in real estate development and
total retail sales of consumer goods to be the most relevant
factors.



Fade)

B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

3

3.1
3.1.2
(iif)

(iv)

B 7% B b B TR ()
BEREBEZ®)
=B E R ()

JE W BB 7 2 & A 5 E

NEBBE  HEKEBRFZRSRE
tRERENEERKRBERKE &R
= XS0 iR &9 5 AT ATk 4
BREENER BZEMB S
EHEENERBEANREEHNIE SR E
o Bt AR ERERR®
1218 AR TR BRIE 2K - HE R R20234F
1AMAEKREAR FiZe R EMERIE
H)3.66%(20224F : 3.56%) B =K -

HERAE(TEREKEBH T
i [ K 5K TR )
AEBEMEMERRBACEERA
B B IR) SR KEHFTT °
EERRENES AEEREEE
12 7 PARE AR & SR EUER 4 17 B AR @ 8
HIfEIR - o ARER &5 EREH
A R B B R 55 B WSRIR B AT I ) 1
NERERTAKRESBARESD
WMEERE AEBERIGHEREER
ZEROERALNE  YEBES R
EHNERAEGERRESRE
BEREN - AFAEEERRETEE
i ARBERAREEHEESR
AR KRR B AR A0 46 FE R B B A
EHRER -

T HR R 4R A8 S 7T R A BT BE M A
H -

3.1
3.1.2
(7if)

(iv)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Deposits and other receivables due from related parties

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with deposits
and other receivables due from related parties to be low, since
the majority of the deposits is due from government authorities
as pledge for the ordinary business and related parties have a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. Thus, the impairment provision recognised during
the period was limited to 12 months expected losses, which
was 3.66% (2022: 3.56%) allowance rate for deposits and other
receivables due from related parties as at 31 December 2023.

Other receivables other than those from related parties

The Group has large number of counter parties for its other
receivables other than those from related parties. There was
no concentration of credit risk. The Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverability
of these receivables at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. The Group considers the probability of
default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition.

Forward-looking information incorporated in the expected credit
loss model.
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3.1
3.1.2
(iv)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
Credit risk (Cont'd)

Other receivables other than those from related parties
(Cont‘d)

The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and expected
credit loss. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following
indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
o external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes in

business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the borrower’s
ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of individual property owner or the borrower

o significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the individual property owner or the same
borrower

o significant changes in the expected performance and

behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and changes
in the operating results of the borrower.
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3.1
3.1.2
(v)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) include listed debt securities. The loss allowance
for debt investments at FVOCI is recognised in profit or loss and

reduces the fair value loss otherwise recognised in OCI.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance provision

was determined as follows.

R2023F12A318 #2022612 4318
As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
ARETR ARETTL
RMB'000 RMB'000
B4 E# i BE
BRZ  RELE  EREE FRE  RELE  EBEB
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected carrying  allowance Expected carrying allowance
loss rate amount  provision loss rate amount provision
EaEWTE Trade receivables
B A Related parties 3.66% 799,319 29,255 3.56% 564,281 20,105
BREHBARLEN Receivables carried forward from
JE Y 5oE acquired subsidiaries* 25.15% 95,989 24,145 15.12% 112,214 16,967
(ED Within 1 year 12% 883,552 105,791 8% 550,781 41,644
1228 1102 years 26% 139,484 36,469 21% 109,250 22,582
183% 2 10 3 years 40% 77,584 30,883 30% 62,718 19,078
3E4F 3t0 4 years 54% 54,924 29,783 44% 22,803 10,118
4B5F 4105 years 88% 19,438 17,109 81% 3,671 2,967
SEHNE QOver 5 years 100% 6,146 6,146 100% 2,91 2,91
2,076,436 279,581 1,428,629 136,372
* BWENBARLEENE S ERZKIEIR & The trade receivables carried forward from acquired subsidiaries were

WEAHHAAEENEZ KELE
A ARM95989,000tMEELEAAR
#239,047,0007T (20224 : BRI 42 1E &
AR 112,214,000t B2 BAAR
#£230,058,0007T) ° L & Fr 7~ 69 T8 H &5
BEEREDAKER BE E20234F
12A31EB RN ELRNEE -

measured at fair value at the date of acquisitions. Gross amount of the
gross carrying amount of RMB95,989,000 was RMB239,047,000 (2022:
Gross amount of the gross carrying amount of RMB112,214,000 was
RMB230,058,000). The expected loss allowance provision indicated in the
above table were those made during the period from the acquisition date

till 31 December 2023.
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3 EBHERRERE® 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)
31 BHEERBEZEE) 3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 sEREME (&)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

R2023%12A318 #20226124318
As at 31 December 2023 As at 31 December 2022
ARETR ARETTL
RMB'000 RMB'000
BH g} B BE
BEX  RESE  EERRE FRE  RELE  EBEEB
Gross Loss Gross Loss
Expected carrying  allowance Expected carrying allowance
loss rate amount provision loss rate amount provision
EHEE Contract assets
i Related parties 3.66% 332,878 12,183 3.56% 276,429 9,848
1R Within 1 year 12% 13,379 1,602 8% 28,299 2,140
346,257 13,785 304,728 11,988
BHFE  ReREMERZ  Prepayments, deposits and other
B(FBEBAFERETH  receivables (excluding prepayments
AREREERREM) and input VAT to be deducted and
others)
g Deposits 471% 622,209 29,327 3.73% 665,841 24,809
H b W FHIE Other receivables
BRBHEARLEN Receivables carried forward from
YRR acquired subsidiaries* 16% 6,170 963 24% 9,811 2,353
(BN Within 1 year 16% 192,997 30,126 16% 168,045 26,790
1228 1102 years 30% 84,269 25,616 21% 22,058 4,681
123% 2 to 3 years 37% 12,952 4,764 30% 2,171 829
3R4E 3to 4 years 47% 1,763 826 44% 2,418 1,053
4E5E 410 5 years 70% 1,432 1,004 45% 632 286
SEE Over 5 years 100% 430 430 100% 1,614 1614
922,222 93,056 873,190 62,415
* BRENBARGEMBEMNRE & G Prepayments, deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments
@R EMEBERRET BERMSKE and input VAT to be deducted and others) carried forward from acquired
K& T MR EEER R A MR subsidiaries were measured at fair value at the date of acquisitions.
KWEBHMHNAAEETE - REAE Gross amount of the gross carrying amount of RMB6,170,000 was
A ANR%6,170,000t BB A AR RMB81,622,000 (2022: the gross carrying amount of RMB9,811,000 was
#£81,622,0007T (20224 : Bk | # & & RMB14,520,000). The expected loss allowance provision indicated in the
AR™9,811,000L MRS EAARY above table were those made during the period from the acquisition date
14,520,0007T) ° £ 5k P - &9 78 B &5 48 till 31 December 2023.
EEREET BB B R E2023F128
STHEMAEL M EE -
FHIRREEEERA

2023F F 3
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3 B 7 & B = I () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
31 HEERBEZE) 3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont'd)
312 5ERE (&) 3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)
BEAABEFAEMEZER AN Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
EE income
M12H3182023F M12HA31H20224F
As at 31 December 2023  As at 31 December 2022
AR TR AREET T
RMB’000 RMB’000
78 8 8 Bf
AREE ERER NREE ZREE
Expected Expected
Fair value credit loss Fair value credit loss

BERARBEFAEAMm Financial assets at fair
ZEHBEANEREE value through other
—EBIA comprehensive income —
debt instruments 2,377 3,619 5,996 49,889
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3 BEERREREe
31 HERBEZEE)

3.1.2 sEREME (&)

M2023F 2022128318 - B 5 fE
WHIE - ANEBEE  JBNRE - Ed
MEMERZIBAER2EBNREAER
BT EREER Mg A E
B AHMEZEARANSHEENS
BEERELEFYEEEFREN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the loss allowance provision
for trade receivables, contract assets, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to be
deducted and others) and financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income reconciles to the opening loss
allowance for that provision as follows:

EER:OR N
BffRE-
REREM
Ehsa
(TRERN  ROAEE
RERKF FAE
EREY NANEE  2EUAN
HERE ANEERE HERIER SHEE @3t
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits
and other
receivables Financial
(excluding assets at
prepayments fair value
Allowance Allowance  and input VAT  through other
fortrade  for contract to be deducted comprehensive
receivables assets and others) income Total
ARBTR  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARETR  ARMTR
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R202351A18 At 1 January 2023 136,372 11,988 62,415 121,838 332,613
REE2ENARRERNY Provision for loss allowance recognised in
BREERE consolidated statement of comprehensive
income 219,680 1,797 30,641 3,619 255,731
GHEABELNDMENES Receivables written off as uncollectable (76,471) = = = (76,471)
#03% 128318 At 31 December 2023 279,581 13,785 93,056 125,457 511,879

FHIRBREEEERAR
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3 BEERREREe
31 HERBEZEE)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

3.1.2 sEREME (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Cont'd)

BRHE
FeR it
EH7E
(TRfEER  RAREE
RERKT AL
2AEK bibefiof 30 REHAH
AEEE ANEERE  LERIER SREE st
Allowance for
prepayments,
deposits
and other
receivables Financial
(excluding assets at
prepayments fair value
Allowance Allowance  and input VAT through other
for trade for contract o be deducted  comprehensive
receivables assets and others) income Total
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR ARETT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2022%181A At 1 January 2022 87,680 5259 22,293 71,949 187,181
REE2ENARERN Provision for loss allowance recognised in
BEEERE consolidated statement of comprehensive
income 48,692 6,729 40,122 49,889 145,432
R2022512A318 At 31 December 2022 136,372 11,988 62,415 121,838 332,613

M2023F12A310 - E S E K FKE
AHEBE BARE RekHEME
U Z B (B3R A R IB K5 T 0 R
MEFEER R EM RIZAREE
AAREMEERANESREENERE
% {E A A K %3,350,911,0007T (2022
F12A31H: A R %2,662,432,000
) AEEBEBENESRBRAARE
2,960,870,0007T (2022412 A31H = A
R #2,401,768,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables, contract assets, prepayments, deposits and
other receivables (excluding prepayments and input VAT to
be deducted and others) and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income was RMB3,350,911,000
(31 December 2022: RMB2,662,432,000) and the maximum
exposure to loss was RMB2,960,870,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB2,401,768,000).
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3 B 7% B b B TR () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont’d)
31 BHEERBEZEE) 3.1  Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

3.1.3 BEELERE

ERESGEEBAETNRERREF
BY HBBAUSNAEETRESRE
BUSHRE  SBEBABEIER A
MEHAERENEEES R, -

3.1.3 Liquidity risk

Management aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or have available funding through an adequate
amount of available financing, including loans from related
parties to meet its daily operation working capital requirements.

TRHEINAESERNSHEERIRARED
HARN P ENERMEBE TRAKE
MEBERAHOABBRABESTE - AN
FTHROZEIK B AEHREERRE
REARZ RO ERBFNER M B
MK A R RREE

The table below set out the Group’s financial liabilities by
relevant maturity grouping at each balance sheet date. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months from the balance
sheet date equal to their carrying amounts in the statements of
financial position, as the impact of discount is not significant.

DPME 1225 285 E et
Less than Between Over
1year 1and 2 years 2 years Total
ARBTRT AR%Tr AR¥®Tr AR®Txn
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M2023%12A31A8 As at 31 December 2023
B 5 & H A e FRoE > Trade and other payables * 1,599,043 41,719 71,205 1,711,967
e A% B Dividend payable 27,467 — — 27,467
HEAE Lease liabilities 8,749 3,298 5,139 17,186
5t Total 1,612,733 67,543 76,344 1,756,620
®2022F12831H As at 31 December 2022
B 5 & H o FE A FRIE Trade and other payables * 1,629,706 105,398 — 1,735,104
JERTIR B Dividend payable 22,526 — — 22,526
HEAR Lease liabilities 10,321 9,792 1,951 22,064
&3 Borrowings 2,354 — — 2,354
st Total 1,664,907 115,190 1,951 1,782,048
* TEEEGHFe R EMEMNBESFE & Excluding non-financial liabilities of accrued payroll and other tax
TRAE - payables.
AR EEERAR
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.2

3.3
(i)

B 7% B B B B (s

EXERE
AEENEAERESEREAEES
BRSNS R AEEARRE

HAHEMSOERENS  LAER
ERNEARBUABREKERKAR -

RIBBAPBERERE  T&EET
BEERABRABRERINORE SR &
THBRNIHEEENRDER

AEBNERABLRSEREEH
BN LR FABERABENG
H-FRABRALAGBRAZIRES
EBYFE - BEXNREE MBI K
MRS IFRERE -

20234 N2022F12A31H » KN &
BRSFRSAEE -

D AEEME
Z-\\/AL/E@E/%

AEEHABERMBRRARDR
BEERNMFENEBRITANRR(E
EREHOHERE  REHERE
AREEMABAENAFELEER -
AEEREFEAAESHESRMTA
DHEA=ER TRAAZER -

3.2

3.3
()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for owners and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the
consolidated statements of financial position plus net debt.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group maintained at
net cash position.

Fair value estimation

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in
determining the fair values of the financial instruments that
are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial
statements. To provide an indication about the reliability of the
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified
its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under
the accounting standards. An explanation of each level follows
underneath the table.
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3 HEERRERE@w@ 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

3.3 AREBEMEEE 3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

(i) RAEEERGE) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
BRNEBEFARMEEKA G Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
THEE income

E-B B B=E @t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(i3 ARETR ARETR  ARETR ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EEMALEETE Recurring fair value measurements
12023F12A31R At 31 December 2023
SREE Financial assets
ELLmES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 19 2,371 — — 2,377
tREELE Total financial assets 2,371 - - 2,377
F—FE £_E FZE @zt
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
iR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EEHALEHETE Recurring fair value measurements
1¥2022%12A31A At 31 December 2022
tREE Financial assets
EFrLmEs Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 19 5,996 = = 5,996
CREELE Total financial assets 5,996 = = 5,996

FHIRBREEEERAR
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3.3
(i)

B 7% B bs B () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
A REE R 3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
RNABEER (i) Fair value hierarchy (Cont'd)
BERAEBEFA B 2 EE Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
E-B BB $=E EH)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
[z ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
BEHAREHETE Recurring fair value measurements
1#2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023
tREE Financial assets
ETLWfER Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 20 13,878 = — 13,878
FRER Trust products 20 - - 75,624 75,624
REES Investment funds 20 - = 440,827 440,827
YBEEE Contingent assets 20 - - 48,877 48,877
CREELE Total financial assets 13,878 - 565,328 579,206
F—E £ EE @&t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
k3 AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
EEMALEETE Recurring fair value measurements
®2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022
tREE Financial assets
FLLmES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 20 80,636 = = 80,636
EHER Trust products 20 = = 75,624 75,624
REES Investment funds 20 - = 165,842 165,842
HRRER Convertible loans 20 - = 107,515 107,515
FLmELR Unlisted preference shares 20 = — 21,708 21,708
CREELE Total financial assets 80,636 — 370,689 451,325

RER - BEHE M
B F_EURF=ZEBzHELE

-

BEGERHE -

There were no transfers among levels 1, level 2 and level 3 for
recurring fair value measurements during the year.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

159



160

RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.3
()

B 7% B b B TR ()
NAREBEME(E)

RAEEERE)

AEEBNHERERBERARERR
AEBEEERHANBEBAREL -

N

F—E-RNERMSEENERIA
(BIMRFREENITAET AR EHES)
WAREERBEREHRNTERE
SRR - AEEFENTHEENTS
BERERERE ZRFLAIAZRE
7 )

BB URNEEMESEEN TR
TEAMBIMBIXHITETR)NAR
BEXRAGHEXMESE [FEXM
ZEENRAUBERMSEE R840
KBEENBEMT - WAE—S&
TEAMNAAEEMTENMEEANEA
ERABEHE AZIAIAEZ
c

BEZE W EHZEEARHAEL
FRBEAEBREMGEE  ZITAT
AEZE - ZEBRERARIELMRA
Ex EEEMm EWEmM TBRK
ERRIELEMBER -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting
period.

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and listed bonds)
is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based
on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, trust products,
wealth management products, convertible loans and unlisted
preference shares.
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.3
(ii)

B 7% B b B TR ()

D RBEEME (E)

EHEAT ] BB A (E a1 B4

AAEEEZE)

TR E5E £2023F12 8318 K&2022
FRANBLFEFE=EEBEZH:

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3 items for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022:

ERER 35EE REES WRRER FLTBER @it

Unlisted

Trust ~ Contingent  Investment  Convertible preference
products assets funds loans shares Total
ARETT AR%TR ARETn AR%Tx ARETR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RNBEIR1BHEN LS As at 1 January 2023 75,624 - 165,842 107,515 21,708 370,689
WE Acquisitions - - 325,970 - - 325,970
HE W) Disposals (Note) - - (62,102) (107,515) (21,708) (191,325)
AMEBRNE Fair value gains - 48,877 1117 - - 59,994
ROBENBNANEREH As at 31 December 2023 75,624 48,877 440,827 - - 565,328
fFEm BHER REEE WEREX FLaRER )

Wealth Unlisted

Trust  management Investment ~ Convertible preference
products products funds loans shares Total
ARETT  ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RONFIB1BHEN LS As at 1 January 2022 102,834 8,083 - 102,166 20,000 233,083
i Acquisitions 259,697 3,000 303701 10,000 = 576,398
& Disposals (286,907) (11,000 (143471) = = (441,378)
MMEERE/EB) Fair value gains/(losses) = (83) 5,612 (4,651) 1,708 2586
RO2ENENANERE At 31 December 2022 75,604 - 165,84 107,515 21,708 370,689

GE

HZE2021F12A3MHIEFE - FHHW (K
H)MERE AR QD (TREBHF BRI
BETHBEAMASMEREBRERARA
(ATHERBIEH ) BETHERER .
%@ A A R #100,000,0007T @ F F &
AE10% © RAHEH1538% 10 - HEA
A R #100,000,0007T » £ " B X
B & R A R #100,000,0007 & A% # 3
AR #20,000,0007T & # A 7] & # # 5
milrmBEARBESABZN SR
BE - KBHIAREEAAMBER
AR #35,000,0007T © BfEBEE R & F
Rl SRR o B E20234 128318
IEFE - RKEFIIREB AT L F BT -
BEAREBESABENEREES
BB - R2023F12A318 © BH A S
A A R #155,000,0007T + & IR B & &
A R #16,000,0007T °

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Xinchengyue (Chengdu)
Property Service Company Limited (“Chengdu Xinchengyue”) purchased
convertible loans issued by Shanghai Hezong Chuangzhi property Agency
Co., Ltd. (“Hezong"”) at a consideration of RMB100,000,000 with an
interest rate at 10% per annum and 15.38% shares at RMB100,000,000.
During the year, RMB100,000,000 of loan and RMB20,000,000 of share
purchase was paid, which are accounted as financial assets measured at
fair value through profit or loss due to the convertible rights. Chengdu
Xinchengyue then further loaned RMB35,000,000 to Hezong with
no convertible rights in the following years. During the year ended
31 December 2023, Chengdu Xinchengyue and Hezong entered into
a new agreement to transfer financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss to borrowings. As at 31 December 2023, the
principal amount of borrowing was RMB155,000,000 and repayment of
RMB16,000,000 has been received.
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3 EBHERRERE®

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)

3.3 AQAEEMEE) 3.3  Fair value estimation (Cont'd)
(iii)  1EEEAERALEEE R (iii) Valuation inputs and relationships to fair value
(=) (Level 3)
WAEHE FTREEAE
i AMEE HERH Nk 23PN (TEk— mETH) HAMBENBE
Range of inputs
Unobservable (probability-weighted ~ Relationship of unobservable
Description Fair value at Valuation technique inputs average) inputs to fair value
2035 20025
128318 12A318 203% W0E
3 31
December ~ December
2023 2022 2023 2022
ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000
fERER 75,624 e BRRLRE HRE 8%9%  8%9% HRERER AAEEHE
Trust products Discounted cash flow Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
Rese 40821 16580 EERERE HRE 8%-9%  8%9% EREER AAEEHE
Investment funds Discounted cash flow Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
TR ES — 755 ERRLNE HRE NA 12%-13% EREES AAEEME
Convertible bonds Discounted cash flow Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
ELTRER - 2708 ERRETE HRE NA 12%-13% EREEE AAEEME
Unlisted preference shares Discounted cash flow Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
JHEE 48,877 — kRReRE gk 16% NA  BREER DREEEE
Contingent asset Discounted cash flow Discount rate The higher the discount rate, the
lower of fair value
AR EEERAR

2023F F 3
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

3.3
(iv)

(a)

B 7% B bs B ()
DA BB ()

14 16 48 72

REBEUBKAHRE —ERMEREE
REEMERBETHENEEK 8
RE-ZEQAREE ZEFKEEKABE
FUBELRBERZECER - HEB
BOTREAERABRMBE  FZ
éﬁaﬂﬁ@l%%ﬁ 2L ERE
AR BAEELFREH -

BEMBE BEXZESEMGEEERK
SELFE-RNMBER®  LRFH
FHRROME_BRE=EBRIAAEE

MEH - ERFmA— 80 - ZEKX
RE-DHAIABEEINRAR
2= ¢

E ARG TR A E

AEBHRRIELGEFRBRR - FE
B & & 4 &R %@9\%HF\\$EE§
ERER -ATRETEFRFEEDN
ﬁ?&ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ@é’]iﬁfﬂﬁﬁﬁ
BEXRREBOMGEFEREROR L -

EZRURENRIRE R

AEERBHEHBEBEINMERIE
HESEEFEER AKERER
THRBEEBEESL BETRR
AIERAEELEZSFRR R EER
B ENE AERERHAE - AT %
BEMUFERPBERKAIAR
MEBEREBERAZREE - AEEER
BALERE EERNEHERR
BRERBERBRTEHEHR SRMNA
BHREE -

3.3
(iv)

(a)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

Valuation process

The finance department of the Group includes a team that
performs the valuation of non-property items required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value. This
team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and the
audit committee (AC). Discussion of valuation processes and
results are held between the CFO, AC and the valuation team at
least once every six months, in line with the Group’s half-yearly
reporting periods.

Changes in level 2 and 3 fair value are analysed at the end of
each reporting period during the half-yearly valuation discussion
between the CFO, AC and the valuation team. As part of this
discussion, the team presents a report that explains the reason
for the fair value movements.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

Allowance on doubtful trade receivables

The Group makes allowances on trade receivables based
on assumptions about expected loss rates. The Group used
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. The
forward looking information is based on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
The Group has identified the GDP, completed investment in real
estate development and total retail sales of consumer goods to
be the most relevant factors.
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

(a)

(b)

(c)

BRI RHAE »

EZRBRENRRERE ()

MEBHEARAGAEER  BE=E
ERFgEEREGETBEEREHERE
SEBRFBEBRREAIHEEEBE - 4§
BMERGEARIMABAENGERE 2
B _ESXCEE3.1.2 ©

B A % 3 AE P 18 B

AEBRETEBANECEMRSR - &£
MEREABRBE R R BMNBERNEA
BRI - AELHE - EREER
BET  FEXFRFAENKRREA
EEFETHBER H6HEEN
BRRTIABRERVCENTENR -
AEHEZEReYEFLARETEY
R AT 1S M BB FE TR TR B4R o

EEBEER/ARKERB N B G
ERERETERERZEAHEA
EEE  BRSRETERZRRY
AEBRNELEHRBREE BERER
BRATBENR e

ERMIANAAEE

THEEBRMSEXINEBRTANAR
BEXRBHEZRE AKEREHE
HEREZRE AT BEERER
SHHRRT SR RIELRR - BRAE
AOERBEREZERREINOY
EMHAER  F2HME33 -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

(a)

(b)

(c)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

Allowance on doubtful trade receivables (Cont'd)

Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the periods in
which such estimate has been changed. For details of the key
assumption and inputs used, see Note 3.1.2 above.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC.
Judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxations. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to
be probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and
make assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions
existing at the end of each reporting period. For details of
the key assumptions used and the impact of changes to these
assumptions see Note 3.3.
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(d)

(e)

(f)

BRI RHAE »

BAEREFBENQIABENMG
UREBEHEENHENER

BAHEREAARAEREFPBE
MARBEIHEALREEAHMHEL
MEENER - ZEEXHE R
PREGHEFRMNBEHEFTERE
AEZRZ(EEREFERAER
¥ . EBITDARI X - BRI X R EIZHE
FBENEBRAAFERFH - @ E
ZHE BAMEI7TRMEI2 -

YT LS P
7

B AR ENUARDAERD
N AEEEREESR L ERE -
ARARBEZEBYIHERMETEMET
EEMERENAALEBE EXRE
AL o Tr B R A B - 08k
WE BERBAE  EHERRKEEX
L AREBETUARDAEERNBED
AREE-

BEREFTG
REBERETEMS  BEEERSK
BYOEXERENA—HEHBINRS
EXBMN(RESELEEMN]) muE
EESEZSKRBAR EEES
BRBEEAEEFERRAAEBER D
ERNAMEFZEREETCEESR
HMEMNBRSELEMNMATRE S ET
HREERE EAHERETHRE
BRETG ZREERAHRGBER
EREEREMEEHEERE
AEZRE EFZaEFERAE
RE . EFERBERAIEEEX - 5H
BEFEE BRMET -

(d)

(e)

(f)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont'd)

Fair value assessment of the trademarks and
customer relationships and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the fair
value assessment of the identified trademarks and customer
relationships and the recognition of goodwill arising from
business combinations. These significant judgements and
estimates include the adoption of appropriate valuation
methodologies and the use of key assumptions in the valuation
(mainly annual revenue growth rate, EBITDA margins, discount
rates and expected useful lives of trademarks and customer
relationships). See Note 17 and Note 32 for more details.

Share-based payments — expense recognition

Share-based payments as disclosed in Note 27, the Group has
granted share options to the Group’s employees. The Company
has engaged an independent valuer to determine the fair value
of the options granted to employees, which is expensed over the
vesting periods. Unobservable inputs such as the discount rate,
risk-free interest rate, volatility and dividend yield, etc. are used
in determining the fair value of the share-based compensations.

Goodwill impairment assessment

For the purposes of goodwill impairment assessment,
management considered each of the acquired group a separate
group of cash-generated-units (“CGU") and goodwill has been
allocated to each of the acquired group. Management assessed
the impairment of goodwill by determining the recoverable
amounts of the CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
based on the higher of value-in-use calculation and fair value
less cost of disposals. Significant judgements and estimates
were involved in the goodwill impairment assessment. These
significant judgements and estimates include the adoption of
appropriate valuation method and the use of key assumptions
in the valuation, which primarily include annual revenue growth
rate, gross profit margin and discount rate. See Note 17 for
more details.
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35
EEERBEIELERREEHN
MR EETREENH - TBLER
RERDITMIATES  AREIK
ERRFHELED BHOKREA -

o

HE2023F12A31BILEE - AER
FEEFERERHEMEERRBER
BERS  BECEEERSRA®
FEERY BTEEBZBESE
BR—EKLEDE  FRHHELESEE
MR ERDEMELHRE - At - XA
ANEELEARERRES @A
EH B RS R R 2 &6 o

AEENETELLEEBMRTE &
REBREE2023F12A831BIEFE
H2E U A RERR o

20234 N2022F12A31H » KN &
MATEERBEEANURPE T8
HEEMIAREERBEE -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based
on the reports reviewed by chief operation decision maker
("CODM"”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segment,
has been identified as the executive and non-executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was
principally engaged in the provision of property management
services and value-added services, including community-related
value-added services and developer-related value-added services
in the PRC. Management reviews the operating results of the
business as one operating segment to make decisions about
resources to be allocated. Therefore, the CODM of the Company
regards that there is only one segment which is used to make
strategic decisions.

The principal operating entity of the Group is domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue was derived in the
PRC during the year ended 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all of the non-current
assets of the Group were located in the PRC excluding financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.
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A K 85 & K IR A& AR 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES
WAXTZRREMEEERBREE Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property
AR 75 BT 15 5k 18 o B £ 20234 20224 management services and value-added services. An analysis of
NRAJNBLEFE AEEZRERE S the Group’s revenue and cost of sales and services by category
WA RBEERRBEXADITHOT : for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 is as follows:
BENANHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023% 20224
2023 2022
ARETR ARBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HER HER
'ON R B & N R 7 B AR
Cost of sales Cost of sales
Revenue  and services Revenue and services

REEFYZ-REMA

Revenue from customers and

BN recognised over time:
MEEERE Property management services 3,555,106 2,701,043 3,024,934 2,285,035
BEERS: Value added services:
— ABEEEERS — Developer-related value-added 554,870 439,328 870,070 685,949
services
—HEEERS — Community-related value-added 964,464 637,095 821,869 581,580
services
5,074,440 3,777,466 4,716,873 3,552,564

REEFLZ-EEEE

Revenue from customers

L DN recognised at a point in time
E1E RS Value added services:
—HEEBERE — Community-related value-added 349,844 208,340 462,680 288,849
services

5,424,284 3,985,806 5,179,553 3,841,413
MEBERBSEZER/RTPREFPRS - Property management services mainly represents service
PREDERZEREE  RERB - R to residents and tenants, including property and facilities
2R BERE  AHREEER maintenance, security services, cleaning services, horticulture

HimEEEABIRE -

services, public areas repair and maintenance and other property
management related services.
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6 WARBEERKRERA#®w 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)
MHEREEREEIZERRBAXER Community-related value-added services mainly represents
EERY HEIRRSE - BZEE service to render public resources management services,
i - EEEERY  ZE2HRE - X community engineering services, extensive decoration
EEREMZEREEERE AR services, asset management services, catering services,
MOEETNMBFPRBHEFEEFERE facility management and various other home living services to
B4 JE M TEIRIR © property owners and customers, with a view to providing them
with a more comfortable and convenient living and working
environment.
RENEERBEEZIZEAMERED Developer-related value-added services mainly represents service
HERYE  BERGHEHERE - related to property developers, including on-site sale assistance
BARBNBERLE - MEEZERR R services, consulting services, house inspection services and
BUNSEETE WX EEMATER smart community services like one-stop smart solutions for
XRBEIE BTENGEEES - various projects, covering residential properties, office buildings
and complexes.
() EHEEFEANEHEMNEERAE (a) Assets and liabilities related to contracts with
customers
AEBEEHRUATEEFEHNBEBD The Group had recognised the following assets and liabilities
EEKRBE: related to contracts with customers:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR TR ARET T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
B EEIEEREEEN Contract assets relating to developer-related
ABHEE value-added services 346,257 304,728
&5 18 B 1B Loss allowance (13,785) (11,988)
BHNEEBE Total contract assets 332,472 292,740
anaE Contract liabilities
— MEEBERD — Property management services 721,393 637,133
— ft [& 1 1B AR 75 — Community-related value-added services 21,932 7,603
— FAEFEERS — Developer-related value-added services 83,224 103,163
aHEERAR Total contract liabilities 826,549 747,899
FHIRREEEERA

2023F F 3
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(b)

(c)

WARBERRERA®wm 6 REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)
BHREEREBNEKRED (b) Significant change in contract assets and liabilities
REBEMNEGHNEEFTERREREHBE Contract assets of the Group mainly arise from provision
MEEERANNRERER AR of smart community services ahead of the agreed payment
HELZEERE - schedules for fixed-price contracts.
REBHENBBEXIEELEARFPE Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the advance
RETERFRIE - A8 AR TS MR IR o payments made by customers while the underlying services are
FHEBEENTHRAEEERIER yet to be provided. Such liabilities increased as a result of the
BBk o growth of the Group's business.
RENEEBRINEA (c) Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
TRERABERARRNEEEL The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised
BEMRA: in the current reporting period relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities:
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR®T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AEENAELRD Revenue recognised that was included
B R A in the contract liabilities balance at the
beginning of the year
MEETERS Property management services 631,957 620,161
1 % S E RS Community-related value-added services 6,331 12,236
2% I E AR TS Developer-related value-added services 101,270 117,114
739,558 749,511
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

(d)

(e)

WA K E R RS KA (&)

RKETHENERR

AMEEERY - LEEERSMA
EEHEERB(TREEZEERY)
ME A5EBAUETHIALRS
RAEEFAAEZZNRA (RN EAREE
BEBAMBENNEFPEEERYEEN
SR AEECDEEUTHEZS
BLUSHOMERBHET FRER
REBERY - ABODMEEERSE
BRRMAEFEEREL EETEHR
HEMEBRESOHER—BRREFT
RAMBASHAAEETERTERE K
& o

REEERERBEMSE  K2023F12
A3BRBITHBEOERLAARE
34,0007T (20224 : A R #5,259,000
) AR TERESHEERA
I A e

BEESESANHEREIBRENE
E

REE2023F12A3MBIEFE > W&
ERNESIBETAELHMMEANE KX
R AESEEREANEE °

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

6

(d)

(e)

REVENUE AND COST OF SALES AND
SERVICES (cont'd)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services, community-related value-
added services and developer-related value-added services
(exclude smart community services), the Group recognises
revenue in the amount that equals to the right to invoice
which correspond directly with the value to the customer of
the Group's performance to date, on a monthly or quarterly
basis. The Group has elected the practical expedient for not
to disclose the remaining performance obligation for these
types of contracts. The majority of the property management
services contracts and developer-related value-added services
do not have a fixed term. The term of the contracts for
community-related services is generally set to expire when the
counterparties notify several months in advance the Group that
the services are no longer required.

For smart community services of developer-related value-
added services, there is unsatisfied performance obligation
of RMB34,000 at 31 December 2023 (2022: RMB5,259,000),
which is expected to be recognised as revenue during the next
reporting period.

Assets recognised from incremental costs to obtain
a contract
During the year ended 31 December 2023, there were no

significant incremental costs to obtain or fulfil a contract, and
accordingly no asset was recognised.
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7 RMUHEESHIWNEH 7  EXPENSES BY NATURE
HZ12A31MBLLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
EERMNEABMES) Employee benefit expenses (Note 8) 1,812,117 1,940,208
IERE -~ FRIERIFBRKAR Outsourced security, greening and
cleaning costs 1,308,853 952,187
FrE AR ERE @ R Em Consumables and goods used 820,671 973,361
NAREE Utilities 283,184 209,947
mEREHEERMTI6KR17) Depreciation and amortisation charges
(Note 16 and note 17) 107,752 90,774
PR E (M 3E17) Impairment of goodwill (Note 17) 55,219 5,404
WAER Office expenses 54,133 76,979
ERE Travelling expenses 44,968 58,018
EIRKEEER Employee uniform and related expenses 32,887 26,053
XBRFE Business entertainment expenses 32,477 22,165
BB AR R E (i E17) Impairment of customer relationships
(Note 17) 21,639 —
i 18 K Bt o0 & Taxes and surcharges 17,815 18,080
WITFRBE Bank charges 10,130 7,975
% SR B & Auditor’s remuneration 3,151 3,000
BT EERE Including: audit services 2,950 2,900
HEZRE non-audit services 201 100
BEXEH Professional fees 18,471 19,592
EEREEER Advertising and promotion expenses 3,306 2,228
£ FH & S EE16(b)) Operating lease payments (Note 16(b)) 1,376 2,715
H At Others 3,379 5,816
4,631,528 4,414,502

HERBRBEKATEBERE TR

\

> Cost of sales and services includes mainly employee benefit

B SNERE SERBEXE &
FA % b B DA B B2 4 BR 75 B AE A BN OB
FmlEme

expenses, outsourced security, greening and cleaning costs,
utilities and consumables and goods used in providing services.
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8 EEBANEAH 8  EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
BZEZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
TE&  #HekiEs Wages, salaries and bonuses 1,506,767 1,614,134
LA R% 19 A& 2 1 6 15 5B 5E27) Share-based payments (Note 27) 6,069 10,394
BRE Pension 129,644 141,024
FTEARS BERBE Housing funds, medical insurances and

HEih it 2Rk other social insurances 105,134 107,622
Hit g B1&F Other employee benefits 64,503 67,034
1,812,117 1,940,208

REBOHTEKBRARIEEASINA
MAETHRFEEREENRATHK
A8 o ANEE MBI B AR T
FTTHRNRAENEEHF G TESL
MerE R UBZEBRKBH -
#H FT2023%F K2022512A318 Ik £
B BERKSTEE THHRE L
W NREER AR D REHFKE o

B ERFRERIN  AEEHERM
B 5% E AT 8 ARBE MR KR A A
BEXEE-

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to
participate in a defined contribution scheme administrated
and operated by government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
contribute funds which are calculated on certain percentages of
the employee salary as agreed by the local government to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. There
were no forfeited contributions under this pension plan for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, which may be used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
retirement benefits associated with these schemes beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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8 EERBANEHRH®@ 8

() IEfNEBESHFMAL (a)

HE2023F12A3BILEE - RERE
B A & A B 35 M AL (2022
F-MA)EF HF M &5 RAH
38T R AT A © B E2023F12 A
3MAILEFE - ERES=A1(2022%F :
=) BEAZAEEFBDT

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (Cont'd)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 include 2 (2022: 2) directors, whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 38.
The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 (2022:3) highest
paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2023 were as
follows:

BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EXF e Basic salaries 3,384 4,126
B4 Bonuses 1,175 697
LA B 10 73 B 0 1 3K Share-based payments 780 1,240
FTEAES BERBKE Housing fund, medical insurances and

Hi it & RE other social insurances 226 213
RIK® Pension 204 188
5,769 6,464

ZEFMENTCEERN

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

A#"
Number of individuals
BZ12A31HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
5 B &5 B (LA S T E) Emolument bands (in HK dollar)
1,500,001/%8 7Tt £2,000,000/% 7T HKD$1,500,001 - HKD$2,000,000 1 —
2,000,001/ 7t £2,500,000/% 7T HKD$2,000,001 — HKD$2,500,000 2 3
2,500,001/% 7t 23,000,000/ 7T HKD$2,500,001 — HKD$3,000,000 — —
3,000,001 7t £ 3,500,000/ 7C HKD$3,000,001 — HKD$3,500,000 — —
3 3
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9 HygA 9  OTHER INCOME
BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
XA 68 B (Bt 33) Government grants (Note) 41,865 49,669
FEBRAREEFABZENEE  Interest income from financial assets at
EEREBEARNEBMEFTAEMEE fair value through profit or loss and
WAHSmEENNB2KA financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 185 40,451
H Others 8,923 7,021
50,973 97,141
MaZ: BN ETZRAEMBAORS - % Note:  The government grants mainly represented tax refunds from local
SHAMBIENSREXGHIE MR governments. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies
REIHE - attaching to these grants.
10 HMmEH 10 OTHER EXPENSES
BZ12A318LEFE
For the year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B8 Compensation 9,055 8,075
H Others 3,541 3,054
12,596 11,129

FHIRBREEEERAR
174 2023F F 3
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11

12

H i &5 18 7% 5 11 OTHER (GAINS)/LOSSES — NET
BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
BARBEFAEZEZNESBEE  Net fair value (gains)/losses on financial
WAREERE) EEBFE assets at fair value through profit or
(B 5%£20) loss (Note 20) (34,781) 125,541
FE 5, I 2= Net foreign exchange gains (9.361) (17,207)
HEWE BWERXBED Net gains on disposal of property, plant
Woas 58 and equipment (4,138) (4,647)
(48,280) 103,687
A NG E - 12 FINANCE INCOME — NET
BZE12A31MBLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
RekREEBWHH EHA Interest income on cash and cash
equivalents 22,781 26,372
HEAFEEHN TEMFIERBH  Interest and finance charges paid/payable
B A (M sE16(b) for lease liabilities (Note 16(b)) (842) (925)
B 5 A F B Finance income — net 21,939 25,447
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13 KELQFE 13 SUBSIDIARIES
N & B 20234 k2022612 4318 & The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2023 and
FEWBATHIMT 2022 are set out below:
AEL/ BETR
WELEER RIBERAH BRRE AREfMERARRR FERERFEESEEE IEED/LEnY
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
2023F 0% 03% WNE
2023 2022 2023 2022
FRERCEARAT ZERAEBARAT E3p 100.00% 100.00% - - BREAF
Chief Global Enterprise Limited 018517238 USD 1 Holding Company
British Virgin Islands,
limited liability company
23 January 2018
BEMUSERRRAA BEARAT 17 100.00% 100.00% - - BEAF
Hong Kong Xinchengyue 018514318 HK 1 Holding Company
Development Limited Hong Kong, limited liability
company 31 January 2018
THEAARERERA RETHERATE 3000000057 100.00% 100.00% - - R
Jiangsu Xinchengyue Holdings 01852138 UsD 30,000,000 Investment
Company Limited Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability companys#
13 February 2018
FRENEERNERAA HEEMERA AR% 99.00% 99.00% 1.00% 100% EEHRARKE
Xincheng Fuyue Management 20145128118 129,292,9297c Management consultation
Consulting Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 129,292,929 and Investment
limited liability company*
11 December 2014
R E) DX RBEARAA hERABERAA AR% 99.99% 99.99% 0.01% 001% NEEERE wEND
([ b)) 2020%6411A 10,000,000 Property management
Xinchengyue (Chengdu) Property Chengdu, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 services, Chengdu,
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company the PRC
("Xinchengyue Chengdu") 11 June 2020
AHEREZRABRAT hEZNERAA 3,000,000% ¢ 100.00% 100.00% - - RE HELGN
Yangzhou Jiayue Industrial 20205124148 USD 3,000,000 Investment, Yangzhou,

Investment Co., Ltd.

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

Yangzhou, the PRC,
limited liability companys#
14 December 2020

the PRC



Fade)

B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

13

Bt B 2 A () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
AL/ BRAR
WEARER RIBEREE HERA AREfERERRR FRERERFEEGREE ITED/LExY
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
3E 0% 23E 0%
2023 2022 2023 202
ENRERBEEARAR HEENERAT AR¥ 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% H01%  REERRHK REEN
Changzhou Shengling Equipment 2020511428 5,000,0007 Equipment management
Management Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 5,000,000 services, Changzhou,
limited liability company the PRC
02 November 2020
THEUERIRARDA hEENERAT AR 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% B01%  EBIRRE EEN
(L&) 20005128108 3,000,000 Elevator Engineering
Jiangsu Changli Elevator Engineering Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 3,000,000 services, Changzhou,
Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Changli") limited liability company the PRC
10 December 2020
THERSHRIEARLT hEENERAT AR¥ 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% HERK REEN
Jiangsu Dashun Elevator Co,, Ltd. 2012458318 10,000,000 Maintenance services,
Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
31 May 2012
AMERDXREFRAR hERMERAA AR 93.12% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% MEER hERM
(mMESR)) 19991 A5H 8,000,000 Property management
Hangzhou Wanyue Property Hangzhou, the PRC, RMB 8,000,000 Hangzhou, the PRC
Management Co., Ltd. limited liability company
("Hangzhou Wanyue") 5 January 1999
HEESRNARAT hEENERAT AR 93.72% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% HEREREE
Changzhou Xincheng Information 2014598308 1,000,0007C REEN
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 1,000,000 Software development
limited liability company and maintenance,
30 September 2014 Changzhou, the PRC
REMHRNEREROERLA  PEFNERAA AR 93.12% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% NEERRE
(R 19963A258 120,000,000 G
Tibet Xinchengyue Property Management  (R2015F 228 )  RMB 120,000,000 Property management

Co, Ltd. ("Tibet Xinchengyue”)

Changzhou, the PRC,
limited liability company
25 March 1996

(moved to Tibet in 2015)

services, Cities across
the PRC
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13 MEQE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)
AL/ BRR
WEARER RIBEREE HERA AREfERERRR FRERERFEEGREE ITED/LExY
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
3E 0% 23E 0%
2023 2022 2023 202
IHERBENAERAA hEENERAT AR 93.12% 93.72% 6.28% 628% EEERRHK HEFNM
Jiangsu Ruohong Intelligent 2014453A198 10,000,0007 Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
19 March 2014
LEBRERRIERAR hE FEERAA AR 93.12% 93.72% 6.28% 6.28% EBEERRE PELE
Shanghai Shuyuan Information 2017418198 10,000,000 Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd Shanghai, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 Shanghai, the PRC
limited liability company
19 January 2017
BEEMERHRARAT hEENERAT AR 93.12% 93.72% 6.28% 628% ZEEERRHK HETNM
Changzhou Park Intelligent Technology 201746858 2,000,0007 Smart community services,
Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 2,000,000 Changzhou, the PRC
limited liability company
5 June 2017
BNEFBEAREEERAT hEENERAT AR¥ 93.12% 93.72% 6.28% 628% HEEERE PERM
Changzhou Chengxiang Xinsheng 2020558118 1,000,007 Community-related
Household Management Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 1,000,000 value-added services,
limited liability company Changzhou, the PRC
11 May 2020
ARBERERAR(HHBR]) hERBERLE ARE 57.64% 57.64% 42.36% 4036% DEERRE PEKS
Chengyue Times Co,, Ltd. 20045104128 15,000,00070 Property management
("Chengyue Times") Chengdu, the PRC, RMB 15,000,000 services, Chengdu,
limited liability company the PRC
12 October 2004
RARRRERERERLA hERABERAA AR 57.64% 57.64% 42.36% 4236% BREERE HERS
Chengdu Yueshishang Catering 20165118158 3,000,00070 Catering management
Management Co., Ltd. Chengdu, the PRC, RMB 3,000,000 services, Chengdu,
limited liability company the PRC
15 November 2016
REEZNEERERAT hERERRAA AR 56.23% 56.23% B.77% BI7%  NEERRE PEAE
([REZZ)) 20085550 5,000,007 Property management
Dalian Hua'an Property Management Dalian, the PRC, RMB 5,000,000 services, Dalian, the PRC
Co., Ltd. ("Dalian Hua'an") limited liability company
5 May 2008
FPIRRBEEERA R
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RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 MEBAR @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
HRAL/ BRAR
WEARERE RUBERAN SRRA  KEEFEESREX  FERBXFEEAAAN  :EID/SEnY

Place and date

of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
2023% 2002 2023% 0%
2023 2022 2023 2022
LERREERAERAT hELEERAA AR¥ 100.00% 100.00% - - DEERRE vELE
Shanghai Boyi Real Estate Consulting 202141768 40,000,0007 Property management
Co,, Ltd. Shanghai, the PRC, RMB 40,000,000 services, Shanghai,
limited liability company the PRC
6 January 2021
BRERRANRARAT hEERERAA AR¥ 99.99% 99.99% 0.01% 001% EBEREERE PEMR
Nanjing Yuncabinet Network 2021517135 50,000,000 Smart community services,
Technology Co., Ltd. Nanjing, the PRC, RMB 50,000,000 Nanjing, the PRC
limited liability company
13 January 2021
LWRESNXERBRAA hEENERLE ARY 51.55% 51.55% 48.45% 4845% DEERRE PEEN
(LEEH) 200455248 5,000,0007C Property management
Shandong Lead Property Management  Binzhou, the PRC, RMB 5,000,000 services, Binzhou,
Co., Ltd. (Shandong Lead") limited liability company the PRC
24 May 2004
EHNARBEEARAR hEENERAF AR¥ 70.99% 70.99% 20.01% 001% NEEERE  REEN
([#50%) 201551868 50,000,0007C Property management
Xiangcheng Property Service Group Co.,  Wenzhou, the PRC, limited RMB 50,000,000 services, Wenzhou,
Ltd. ("Xiangcheng Property”) liability company the PRC
6 January 2015
TAREE(ND RO RE HEERERAT N 79.99% 79.99% 20.01% 001% NEEERE EER
ERAR(RL0%)) W01E2A238 10,000,0007T Property management
Xinchengyue Zhihui (Zhejiang) Ningbo, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 services, Ningbo, the PRC
Logistics Service Co., Ltd. limited liability company
(“Liangshi Property”) 23 February 2011
ENBEZNXERARLA hEERERAA AR¥ 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% B01%  NEEERE PEES
([ENE2) 2010594128 5,000,000 Property management
Guizhou Bajie Property Management Guiyang, the PRC, RMB 5,000,000 services, Guiyang,
Co., Ltd. ("Guizhou Bajie") limited liability company the PRC
12 September 2010
FMERETHERAA HEEMERAT AR¥ 99.99% 99.99% 0.01% 001% NEEERE PEEN
Changzhou Hengjia Travel Agency 2021%58A128 1,000,0007 Property management
Co,, Ltd. Changzhou, the PRC, RMB 1,000,000 services, Changzhou,

limited liability company
12 August 2021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 MEQE @ 13 SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)
AL/ BRAR
WEARER RIBEREE HERAK AREfERERRR FRERERFEEGREE ITED/LExY
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
plIvk}:3 0% 23E 0%
2023 2022 2023 2022
BakgnxEBREARAN hEELERA AR 69.99% 69.99% 30.01% 000% WEEERE - EER
([Eax4)) 2003F384A 10,000,0007¢ Property management
Yantai Yongle Property Management Yantai, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 services, Yantai, the PRC
Service Co., Ltd. ("Yantai Yongle") limited liability company
04 March 2003
LEEREAEBREARAR T LERRAT AR 79.99% 79.99% 20.01% 000% EREH PELE
([2rE8)) 20044578 16,000,007 Catering services, Shanghai,
Shanghai Xuefu Catering Management  Shanghai, the PRC, RMB 16,000,000 the PRC
Service Co., Ltd ("Xuefu Catering”)  limited liability company*
7 April 2004
HNENNXEBARAT hEFNERAA AR 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% B01%  WEEERE - hEEHN
(& MNE ) 201058A18H 2,000,000 Property management
Suzhou Baochuan Property Suzhou, the PRC, RMB 2,000,000 services, Suzhou, the PRC
Management Service Co,, Ltd. limited liability company
("Suzhou Baochuan”) 18 August 2010
FNERMERERREERLD  PEHENERAR AR 69.99% 69.99% 30.01% 3000%  BHRE - PEEN
([(EREER)) 01555848 10,000,0007T Catering services, Suzhou,
Suzhou Health Catering Management ~ Suzhou, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 the PRC
Service Co,, Ltd. ("Health Catering”) limited liability company
4 May 2015
RETEENFERERAA hEREERAA AR 69.99% 69.99% 30.01% 000% NEERRH REXE
([&x0%)) 200652A208 3,500,000 Property Management
Tianjin Jinyu Property Management Tianjin, the PRC, RMB 3,500,000 services, Tianjin, the PRC
Co., Ltd. ("Jinyu Property”) limited liability company
20 February 2006
RETEMEIEHERERAA  HERERERAW AR 69.99% 69.99% 30.01% 000%  ERkE FEXR
Tianjin Binhang Jinyu Catering 20095 4A13H 10,0007 Catering services, Tianjin,
Management Co. Ltd. Tianjin, the PRC, RMB 100,000 the PRC
limited liability company
13 April 2009
T&E)IRZBBERRAT hEFNERAA ARY 64.99% 64.99% 35.01% B01%  EBERRS REMN
Jiangsu Baochuan Security Service Co,  2022%6723R 10,100,000 Business Management
Ltd Suzhou, the PRC, RMB 10,100,000 services, Linzhou,
limited liability company the PRC
23 June 2022
FPIRRBEEERA R
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B HE ¥R MY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

13

Bt B A &) () 13 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)
HfEL/ BRR
WEARER RIBERES HERA AREfERERRR FERERFEERERE IERD/LERY
Place and date
of incorporation/ Issued and Ownership interest held Ownership interest held Principal activities/
Names of the subsidiaries establishment paid-up capital by the Group by non-controlling interests  place of operation
128318 128318
31 December 31 December
2023% 2002 2023% 0%
2023 2022 2023 202
Hh(ZL) NEERARAA HEFZARLE AR¥ 50.99% 50.99% 29.01% 001%  NEEERE PEER
Keyue (Tai'an) Property Management 2022128278 1,000,0007 Property management
Co,, Ltd. Tai'an, the PRC RMB 1,000,000 services, Tai'an, the PRC
limited liability company
27 December 2022
FRRAEMR () ERAR hEKBERAA ARY 99.80% 99.80% 0.20% 020% REREERS
Chengdu Shuzhi Xinchengyue 21F1A1E 30,000,000 REEH
Technology Co., Ltd. Chengdu, the PRC, RMB 30,000,000 Technology and Business
limited liability company* services, Chengdu,
11 November 2021 the PRC
ENEREAERARN(FNRE)) HEENERAA ARY 65.28% 65.28% 34.72% % BEREERE
Changzhou Yupu Trading Co,, Ltd. 20195108108 10,000,0007C mER N
("Changzhou Yupu") Changzhou, The PRC RMB 10,000,000 Technology and Business
limited liability company services, Changzhou,
10 October 2019 the PRC
BRERBARNARAA hEERERAA ARE 100.00% AER - AR ARERRE REAR
Nanjing Guige Network Technology W3ENANA 50,000,007 Not applicable Not applicable ~ Business management
Co, Ltd Nanjing, the PRC, RMB 50,000,000 services, Nanjing,
limited liability company the PRC
11 December 2023
LEHEAEFHRARAR hE FEERAA ARE 100.00% AER - TR ABERRE fEHLE
Shanghai Yuebosheng Building 20357R17H 10,000,00070 Not applicable Not applicable  Business management
Technology Co., Ltd Shanghai, the PRC, RMB 10,000,000 services, Shanghai,
limited liability company the PRC
17 July 2023
LEAENZERERAR hELEERAA AR¥ 70.00% ¥l 30.00% TER  NREERE TELE
([LEAE]) 2005F65108 10,500,000 Not applicable Not applicable  Property management
Shanghai Xiangxi Property Management  Shanghai, the PRC, RMB 10,500,000 services, Shanghai,

Co., Ltd ("Shanghai Xiangxi")

limited liability company
10 June 2005
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

13 MEBAR @

* BREFEARIMRIATIINGE O
“

# BREFEARIMRIABNEBE G
E

Brrk# REBRPBREZHMAEHR

B AR ARNEDE -

(a) KRR ZEWNBARTHSE
EERSEERE mMZENB
NAIREMH B AR EEEE
SEERE ZEWNBLAAR
BBERHEESNEBEMAKTL
MTEHEMHEB AR R FER
MK - FTENBARABR
EERA -

(b) FrEMK B AR EZEETMK
ST R ST Hb B AR o

(© BAFRAPEEIN  BEF
K BMENBARCEITEW
BEES -

B E2023F12A31H - ;AR I & K

SEMEBEBE AR EERER - KL

ERERAEYEERBE -

ST IR AR HS = M A IR A 5

2023F F 3

13

SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)

*

Registered as sino-foreign equity joint ventures under PRC law

Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law

Except for * and #, all other subsidiaries of the Group which are
established in the PRC are domestic enterprises.

(a)

(b)

The Company has direct or indirect equity interests in
these subsidiaries which have direct or indirect equity
interests in the other subsidiaries. These subsidiaries
were incorporated in British Virgin Islands or Hong
Kong and all the other subsidiaries were established in
mainland China. All the subsidiaries are limited liabilities
companies.

All the subsidiaries are operating principally in their place
of incorporation establishment.

Save for disclosed in this annual report, none of the
subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

As of 31 December 2023, as no non-controlling interests that
are material to the Group, no related summarised financial
information are disclosed.
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

14

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

FriEHRE R 14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
HZ12A31BLLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
B EA B 15 B Current income tax
— PEEMREH — PRC corporate income tax 171,580 198,054
i JE BT 15 B (B 3£ 30) Deferred income tax (Note 30)
— FEERER — PRC corporate income tax (33,853) (45,817)
137,727 152,237
HEREMBH (@) Cayman Islands income tax
RARARARRBEREARERNHAERS The Company is incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
AT EREBERAT - AL exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
BEABNAERSHER - Law of Cayman lIslands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax.
EEELZBEREH (b) British Virgin Islands income tax
BEABEZHES ((EBELEE]) Under the current laws of British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), all
WITER  RMERBREZHSEM dividends, interest, rents, royalties, compensation and other
RYMWHBRARIMWIFEREBREZHES amounts paid by our subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI to
ERMATSZIMNOMERE - FIE - persons who are not resident in the BVI and any capital gains
e BMNE FeRkEMSBUR realised with respect to any shares, debt obligations, or other
WHRBREZHEEERHOALTHER securities of such subsidiaries incorporated in the BVI by persons
TEBELXBESEMERINZENW who are not resident in the BVI are exempt from income tax. In
BARIMEMKRSN  EBHEEIEAM addition, upon payments of dividends by our BVI subsidiaries to
BHEMBEEMERN KD - IHREH us, no BVI withholding tax is imposed.
METEH o hoh - IR E B S X B
SHEBARRBMIEMSOKREEER
MEBREZESENB -
EBREH () Hong Kong profits tax
AR AEERE =2023F12A8318 1 No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group
FEYETHNBHNSBNGEHD did not derive any income subject to Hong Kong profits tax
WA (20224 « &) - A B F B A during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: nil).
SRR -
FESEFER (d) PRC corporate income tax

7 & H BErh B i B AR R I BV RIS
MBEERBERITERE - BERES -
NBEEFRERBE A BEARERAE -

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rate
on the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

14
(d)

FMEHER®
PREASERERE)

ARFRR AR AREMORAF - B
EX15%NEERE - AR MR
TEEMEAE T O LQAE - RIEE
BRISERIER  NEBRBA
ARARRRAAD RA & ERB K
ANETHERE®R  BRTA WA
H50% 0 =R A QA - 7R A
N ERIS% R E GRS - JE
R BWABRTS0% D EED RA]
i 3 X 7] 72 $825% B T & 84 P 15
B BHERANFARSHRERD
20% -

MU R - MR KE R EMNERY
ARRPEERLREMO AR HF
R1I5%HBEH X -

tEHBRBFEREERARBRE
AEEMHN AR EX9%HNEEN

E o

BEPFEARLEMB S EMERE)
(CEmBHE]D) BRARASEM
RABERNEMEENSEMSR
FREB25% °

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

14
(d)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

PRC corporate income tax (Cont'd)

Tibet Xinchengyue, a Tibet registered Company, is entitled to a
preferential tax rate of 15%. Tibet Xinchengyue has a number of
branches across China. According to the relevant tax laws and
regulations, the Group files its income tax return by combining
the taxable income of head office in Tibet and all of its branches
with 50% of the aggregate taxable income apportion to the
head office in Tibet which is subject to income tax rate of 15%
and the remaining 50% among the branches which are subject
to income tax rate of 25%, resulting in an average of about
20% applicable income tax rate.

Chengyue Times and Xinchengyue Chengdu and Guizhou Bajie
registered in Western area of China, are entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 15%.

Beihai Xinchengyue Business Service Co., Ltd registered in
Guangxi Province is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 9%.

The corporate income tax rate applicable to other entities of
the Group located in Mainland China is 25% according to the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (the “CIT Law").
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

14
(e)

FREBiERwm 14 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

TXHINBGERGEELERARNE (e) The reconciliation from income tax calculated based on
FMEKAERABERGTENMEH AL the applicable tax rates and total profit presented in the
RETISHER: consolidated statements of comprehensive income to the

income tax expenses is listed below:

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR® T AREF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
b BT 45 %% Al A1) B Profit before income tax 645,585 626,984
HEALEMSHEME25%  Tax calculated at applicable corporate income
AREHMRIE tax rate of 25% 161,396 156,746
ATEBEBKRZE - Tax effects of:
— BBIEmE TR Y — Expenses not deductible for taxation
=gt purposes 9,992 25,376
— EREETAREAN — Different tax rate applied in applied
A F = preferential tax companies (33,661) (29,731)
— AEMRETEHERBE  — Previously unrecognised tax losses used to
RERBIEEE reduce deferred tax expense — (154)
137,727 152,237
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

15 ARBEEAELEBRER 15

() BREXER (a)

FREREABF TIRARE SR
BABRGEAREEMNBRAFASET
ERBROMEFDRTE -

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share for the year is calculated by dividing
the profit of the Group attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
B2F: Earnings:
AEERERBIAMAN Profit attributable to owners of the Company
RREEE A EE N HE used in the basic earnings per share
(AR T T) calculation (RMB'000) 445,045 423,476
RHEE: Number of shares:
AEFANEREET Weighted average number of ordinary
T3 AR A N T shares in issue during the year per share
(PATF5H) calculation (in thousand) 854,816 853,644
FRARFIHEAE AEG Basic earnings per share for profit attributable
MENTRELREF to the owners of the Company during the
(AARBTIR) year (expressed in RMB) 0.52 0.50

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3



RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

15

(b)

AATREBAELSKRER 15 EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

(&)

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Cont'd)

ERBERA (b) Diluted earnings per share

BREEFRFZABRDETENINE Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
MARMEF IS ARE B ETEE weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
TaREERGTE -AQAA—8E assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The

F#SERR  RERE -

Company'’s share-based payment is of dilutive potential.

BZE12A31MHLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022

B :
HHEESREERFFAD
NN RHEHE A LT
(AR FT)
R EE :
AEFRNEREET
T3 AR | N 5
(AT &H)
hn - B SE AR BB (AT D)
ERTEBERKER
T 3m AR B N A e &
AETESREERT O
D AT 5D
FERARABEEAE
P EORSTiE: B P
(A AN REETTIR)

Earnings:
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

used in the diluted earnings per share

calculation (RMB’'000) 445,045 423,476
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary

shares in issue during the year per share

calculation (in thousand) 854,816 853,644
Add: number of dilutive shares (in thousand) 411 2,533
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue and potential ordinary shares used

as the denominator in calculating diluted

earnings per share (in thousand) 855,227 856,177
Diluted earnings per share for profit

attributable to the owners of the

Company during the year (expressed in

RMB) 0.52 0.50
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RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

16 Y% BMERZHELUKRMFEMH 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

EEE RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(@) V¥ BERRHE (a) Property, plant and equipment
BT EBRE ETRE BEREE HE%E @it
Transportation Electronic  Furniture and Lease
Buildings ~ equipment  equipment machinery  improvement Total
ARETR  ARBTR ARETn AR%Tn ARETR  ARETxn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2023%181A As at 1 January 2023
A Cost 3,612 9,067 27,709 67,666 22,498 130,552
2ithE Accumulated depreciation (1,064) (4.823) (14,889) (23,026) (37111 (47,513)
BEFE Net book amount 2,548 4,244 12,820 44,640 18,787 83,039
HENBENANALEE For the year ended 31 December 2023
ENEETE Opening net book amount 2,548 4,244 12,820 44,640 18,787 83,039
WEKBLF(ME3) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) — 39 — 132 — m
HE Additions 485 1,251 3,225 11,624 6,567 23,152
& Disposals (250) M) (1,305) (1,079) - (2,705)
nEER Depreciation charge (252) (2,030) (11,536) (5,301) (10,409) (29,528)
EXEBTA Closing net book amount 2,531 3,433 3,204 50,016 14,945 74,129
R2023E12A31R As at 31 December 2023
KA Cost 3,706 10,159 27,353 76,672 29,065 146,955
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (1,175) (6,726) (24,149) (26,656) (14,120) (72,826)
REFE Net book amount 2,531 3,433 3,204 50,016 14,945 74129
R202251818 As at 1 January 2022
A Cost 3,564 5,617 1312 43,467 4,093 78,053
ZithE Accumulated depreciation (959) (3,084) 9,862) (3,687) (1,571) (19,163)
BEFE Net book amount 2,605 2,533 11,450 39,780 2522 58,890
BZ20F12831BLEE For the year ended 31 December 2022
ENEEFE Opening net book amount 2,605 2533 11,450 39,780 2,522 58,890
WEHBAR Acquisition of subsidiaries = 1,235 755 1,158 = 3148
AE Additions 48 2,245 5733 24,383 18,405 50,814
HE Disposals = (30) 1) (1,342) = (1,463)
HEER Depreciation charge (105) (1739) (5,027) (19339 (2,140) (28,350)
EXRERE Closing net book amount 2,548 4,244 12,820 44,640 18,787 83,039
R2022512831R As at 31 December 2022
A Cost 3612 9,067 27,709 67,666 22,498 130,552
2ihE Accumulated depreciation (1,064) (4,823) (14,889) (23,020) 3,71 (47513)
BRFE Net book amount 2,548 4,244 12,820 44,640 18,787 83,039
FHIRREEEERA

2023F F 3



RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ 22023412 A318 1L [ For the year ended 31 December 2023

16 ME -BMEAREBURES 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND

BEEm® RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (contd)

(@) Y¥ BERZEE (a) Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
MEBRFAGEEZERARNUTE Depreciation expenses were charged to the following categories
Al in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income:

BZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR®T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
55 5 & AR 7 A A Cost of sales and services 18,456 15,077
THREHR Administrative expenses 11,072 13,273
29,528 28,350

(b) HE (b) Leases
A ERHEAEEERZBE AN This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
EE&H o lessee.

() RESHBERLEXEZHHE ()  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

of financial position
BEMBRAKRITATEREES The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
8 B R IE following amounts relating to leases:
R12A318
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR T AR F T
RMB’000 RMB'000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
BFREBEA Buildings and parking lots 18,069 19,287
HESE Lease liabilities
Vi) Current 7,578 6,736
ERB Non-current 7,693 9,521
15,271 16,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

16 Y% BERKRMBEUKFER 16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
BEEW®W RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Contd)
(b) #HEEE (b) Leases (Cont'd)
(i) RESZEHUAFZERZHE (i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
FATHWARITUATEHAESA The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
B FXIA following amounts relating to leases:
BZEZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
B 5% AR TR AR®EFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
ERAEEENEEZR Depreciation charge of right-of-
use assets
BFRBEA Buildings and parking lots 7 9,888 7,053
B2 (B 5T A M A) Interest expense (included in
finance costs) 12 842 925
HEHEEENER Expense relating to short-term
(B & A& & AR KA leases (included in cost of sales
LARITEE ) and services and administrative
expenses) 7 1,214 1,066
HANEXF AEHMAERN  Expense relating to leases of low-
KEEEEHERSRM value assets that are not shown
BRBIHATRER) above as short-term leases
(included in administrative
expenses) 7 162 1,649

R2023F - HEMBR S RLBEAR
A R #11,874,0007C (2022F : A R ¥&
8,440,0007) , E R B EFEHE M KA
SHOREFEELENRESTEAR
#10,498,000t FIE AR K EEHEE
NHREENRSRE ARM1,376,000
5T

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

The total cash outflow for leases in 2023 was RMB11,874,000
(2022: RMB8,440,000), which includes cash flow for principal
elements of lease payments and its interests of RMB10,498,000
and cash flow for short-term and low-value lease payments of
RMB1,376,000.



RE P BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

17 BFEEE 17  INTANGIBLE ASSETS
TERRS 3 S BE EFBR @3t
Computer Customer
software Licenses Goodwill  Trademarks  relationships Total
ARBTR  ARETT  AR%TR  ARETR AR®Tn ARETn
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
(i 0]

R2023%1518 As at 1 January 2023
B Cost 39,844 1314 421,014 8,000 501,889 972,061
25 EH Accumulated amortisation (10,467) (225) (5,404) (1,422) (69,373) (86,891)
BEFE Net book amount 29,377 1,089 415,610 6,578 432,516 885,170
BZ2223F12831B1LEE  For the year ended 31 December 2023
EORETAE Opening net book amount 29377 1,089 415,610 6,578 432,516 885,170
WEEH B AR (H332) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) - - 46,978 - 56,490 103,468
AE Additions 6,809 - - - - 6,809
RE Disposal (303) = = — = (313)
B Amortisation (6,152) (183) - (267) (61,734) (68,336)
HERE Impairment loss = = (55,219) — (21,639) (76,858)
EXBEFE Closing net book amount 29,71 906 407,369 6,311 405,633 849,930
R2023512A31A As at 31 December 2023
A Cost 46,325 1,314 467,992 8,000 558,379 1,082,010
2 BERAE Accumulated amortisation and impairment (16,614) (408) (60,623) (1,689) (152,746) (232,080)
BAFE Net book amount 29,11 906 407,369 6,311 405,633 849,930
R202251518 As at 1 January 2022
A Cost 18,388 1314 350,978 8,000 375,762 754,442
ZitEH Accumulated amortisation (5,832 (53) - (889) (19,343) (26,117)
BEFE Net book amount 12,556 1,261 350,978 711 356,419 728,325
BZ22512531B1LEE  For the year ended 31 December 2022
ENEERE Opening net book amount 12,556 1,261 350978 711 356,419 728325
WERBAT Acquisition of subsidiaries — — 70,036 — 126,127 196,163
AE Additions 21,457 — — - - 21,457
B Amortisation (4,636) (172) — (533) (50,030) (55,371)
HEER Impairment loss = = (5,404) = = (5,404)
EXRERE Closing net book amount 29377 1,089 415,610 6,578 431,516 885,170
R2022512 318 As at 31 December 2022
A Cost 39,844 1314 421,014 8,000 501,889 972,061
2 EERAE Accumulated amortisation and impairment (10,467) (225) (5,404) (1422) 69,373) (86,891)
FEFE Net book amount 29,377 1,089 415,610 6,578 432,516 885,170

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited

2023 Annual Report



192

RE P BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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17 BFREE® 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)
mEEEEHEAAGEEZEEBARN Amortisation and impairment loss of intangible assets has
TS been charged to the consolidated statements of comprehensive

income as follows:
BZEZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR ARETFT
RMB’'000 RMB'000
HEMX Selling and marketing expenses 61,734 50,030
THREAR Administrative expenses 6,602 5,341
68,336 55,371

(i) EFBAR& (i)  Customer relationships
KRB E2023F12A3MBLEFE - A& During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group acquired
B Ui L aE (Mt 3E32) - 2 F A A Shanghai Xiangxi (Note 32). Total identifiable net assets of these
RESEEEBWEEHNAI#HIFEE companies as at their respective acquisition dates amounted to
@®E4) B A R¥52,889,000T @ B 1 approximately RMB52,889,000, including identified customer
B 5 Z PR A R%56,490,0007T © relationships of RMB56,490,000. A valuation was performed
B hEMEETHE  UETEH# by independent valuers to determine the fair value of the
MEFHAENALERE BFPBEM identified customer relationships. The valuation method used
REEERMBEREEREELE BT for customer relationships is the discounted cash flow method.
EFBENAAEENBREEEE The key assumptions in determining the fair value of customer
m relationships are disclosed as follows:

EBITDA
(45 W A 7
FRABESE Baklk) BAKR=X ERER
Annual EBITDA
revenue (% of Pre-tax Expected
growth rate revenue) discount rate  useful lives
EEAE Shanghai Xiangxi 0-5% 26%-27% 20.7% 8
FHIRREEEERA

2023F F 3
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

17
(i)

BEEE @ 17
R (ii)

BEDOEETINREELEN:

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont'd)

Goodwill

Goodwill was allocated to the following cash generating units
("CGQUs"):

®12H318
As at 31 December

20234 20224

2023 2022

AR¥T T AR®EF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

B2 ERK Xuefu Catering 70,252 70,252

RS Chengyue Times 64,137 64,137

EEWE Jinyu Property 56,313 56,313

EEAE Shanghai Xiangxi 46,978 —

& A oK 4 Yantai Yongle 42,192 42,192

NEBER Dalian Hua’an 32,626 32,626

2L Liangshi Property 29,764 29,764

#NE ) Suzhou Baochuan 28,789 28,789

=R Xiangcheng Property 27,016 27,016

=M 87 Guizhou Bajie 26,116 26,116

1L R B AT Shandong Lead 22,763 22,763

R ETER Health Catering 13,723 13,723

A R=X Hangzhou Wanyue 6,585 6,585

P thva Jiangsu Changli 738 738
SR Impairment of goodwill *

—fEG ks - Yantai Yongle (28,409) —

- EBAE — Shanghai Xiangxi (26,810) —

- M ER - Hangzhou Wanyue (5,404) (5,404)

407,369 415,610

EEERNEEBERBETRENE -
ZERGELEMZAKRE SRR
EERABEFEEE

* MNEL  BEKEN LERMENERE
EEARERANBREBAREELT
WEeE - ZBREFAREZ2ZHANK
ARWITHRER -

Management performed an impairment assessment on the
goodwill as at balance sheet date. The recoverable amounts of
these CGUs are determined based on value-in-use calculations.

The carrying amount of Hangzhou Wanyue, Yantai Yongle and Shanghai
Xiangxi have been reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition
of an impairment loss against goodwill. This loss is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

193



RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

17 EBEEE@® 17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont'd)
(i) BEWE (ii) Goodwill (Cont'd)

The following table set out the key assumptions for those
CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them as at 31
December 2023:

TRV HR2023FE12831BZ S A #®
EOREABENREELESEMNN

ITE2MK:

AMEEH
BERA EH =

BR=E (% 1 Bt A BARFEURM
(R FBRE) BaL) BiATBR R & KERRE

Compound

revenue

growth rate
during the Terminal
first five year growth rate
(% annual Gross margin Pre-tax since the sixth
growth rate) (% of revenue) discount rate year
BRHER Xuefu Catering 1% 16% 17.4% 0%
A B A Chengyue Times 3% 18% 16.8% 0%
SEME Jinyu Property 13% 20% 18.4% 0%
LEAE Shanghai Xiangxi 10% 18% 17.5% 0%
18 A ok g Yantai Yongle 6% 15% 18.2% 0%
REER Dalian Hua‘an 4% 25% 18.6% 0%
R+ Liangshi Property 5% 24% 18.5% 0%
EME ) Suzhou Baochuan 6% 20% 18.5% 0%
T Xiangcheng Property 9% 35% 18.1% 0%
EMEZ Guizhou Bajie 6% 22% 16.9% 0%
R E Shandong Lead 3% 24% 19.2% 0%
B RETE &K Health Catering 6% 20% 19.2% 0%
AR Hangzhou Wanyue 0% 13% 18.0% 0%

Based on management’s assessment on the recoverable
amounts of the subsidiaries acquired, impairment provision of
RMB60,623,000 was considered necessary as at 31 December
2023.

RIEEEBYAMKREKBRRTKE
SRR TG R2023F12 8318 B E
o LB B 1 A R #560,623,0007T °

HARBRBEERRAR
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17
(i)

BEEE @

B (E)
TRE I H2022F12 8318 Z S A #®
EOREABENRESELESEMNN
FTEBR:

17
(i)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont'd)

Goodwill (Cont’d)

The following table set out the key assumptions for those
CGUs that have significant goodwill allocated to them as at 31

December 2022:

Al A
walA EH X

ERX (%184 A ERNFURM
(% FIER %) AD) 75t A B 3 & KB IR &

Compound

revenue growth
rate during Terminal
the first five growth rate
year (% annual Gross margin Pre-tax since the
growth rate) (% of revenue) discount rate sixth year
BT EK Xuefu Catering 9% 20% 18.2% 0%
A B AR Chengyue Times 10% 15% 18.0% 0%
eEME Jinyu Property 15% 23% 18.5% 0%
RN Yantai Yongle 13% 20% 18.2% 0%
RNBELR Dalian Hua'an 8% 25% 18.5% 0%
2L Liangshi Property 13% 23% 18.5% 0%
BN E I Suzhou Baochuan 9% 23% 18.5% 0%
=R Xiangcheng Property 9% 35% 18.0% 0%
B MNEH R Guizhou Bajie 1% 19% 18.0% 0%
1L 3R 78 &P Shandong Lead 9% 17% 18.5% 0%
8 B HT B R Health Catering 23% 17% 19.0% 0%
= Hangzhou Wanyue 7% 6% 19.6% 0%

RIEEEBYAMKREKBRRTIRE
SRR TG R2022F12A318 B E
o L (B B 5 A R #55,404,0007T °

Based on management’s assessment on the recoverable
amounts of the subsidiaries acquired, impairment provision of
RMB5,404,000 was considered necessary as at 31 December

2022.
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18 #ZEHE?HWEMITE 18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
AEBEFEUTERIA: The Group holds the following financial instruments:
128318
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
B 5E AR¥ T AR F T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
SREE: Financial assets:
REBEENAFTENEREE Financial assets at amortised cost
EI%FEHSZ?XIE Trade receivables 22 1,796,855 1,292,257
FBRRIE - Ze R Hth B U Prepayments, deposits and
K IE(T BREENRIE R other receivables (excluding
15 T 003 /9 TR E B & prepayments and input VAT
HAh) to be deducted and others) 23 829,166 810,775
RekReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,927,283 1,973,696
BEARBEFTAEZD Financial assets at fair value
SREE through profit or loss 20 579,206 451,325
BEARBEAAEMEZR Financial assets at fair value
WA SREE through other comprehensive
income 19 2,377 5,996
5,134,887 4,534,049
R12A318
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
B AR T ARET T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
SRBE: Financial liabilities:
RBEXNTTENSHEE Financial liabilities at
amortised cost
B 5 &k B A IR Trade and other payables
(TBEEFdHFER (excluding accrued payroll and
H b A B 1E) other tax payables) 29 1,711,967 1,735,104
HE&aE Lease liabilities 16 15,271 16,257
fE Borrowings — 2,265
1,727,238 1,753,626

AEEEBMEIMEESRTA
BERENZERAR - RBEHREED
RAGERRALEZBEREE
HBREE -

196 FEIRREEEER L T
2023FF 3R

The Group’s exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.1. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned
above.
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19 BAABETAHMZ2EUW 19 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

ANEMEE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(i) RAAREBESFAHMEZEWRAN (i) Debt investments at FVOCI and equity investments
BEERERBRAABEFAHEM at FVOCI comprise the following investments:
EHBRANEZREGREUTER
5
M12HA31H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
ARET T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE Current assets
EXLEWES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 2,377 5,996
MENEEBRE Total current assets 2,377 5,996

(i) REZREMZEKRAEIZNR (ii) Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other

15 comprehensive income
BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR¥T R ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FTAEfM 2 E M AW ER Credit loss of debt instruments through other
TEEHEE comprehensive income 3,619 49,889
REAM 2 E K AERL Fair value losses recognised in other
NABEEES comprehensive income 3,619 46,394
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19

20

()

BAREBEFTAHMEEWK
AMNEMEE®

BARBEFAERGCZEKAGEDN
REXTERETLMES  HAHOHR
EREERTEMAE - ZEEFT
ERVMERERET BRFEHBT
ENARBEDERTSRESE -
AERRBERSEBITANREAD
RenERFERE  YRAREE
FAEMEEBAGE -

HE2023F12A31B IEEE - R+
MEHFELN  AEEBFAHME2ER
ANBEBEIACAEBEBREREMEZE
WABRNARBEEES N AA
R #3,619,0007T & A R#3,619,0007T
(20224 : A R#49,889,0007T M A R
#46,394,0007T) °

N\

ARBEEFTAEZNEH
aBE
BARBEFABENEAMEE
M5 &
FEBEUATLREENDARRAA
BEAABINSBAE:

o

£
2.~

S

/

. THERBHERARIZARE
B AEMEEEAFENE
B & (K E19)

. FEEENEZRE R
. ERYEEEZBEMEEW

&
AERRIABERENEEDN
DI E -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

19

20

()

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Cont'd)

Investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are mainly listed bonds denominated in USD, where
the contractual cash flows are solely principal and interest. The
bonds are mainly issued by property developers and the fair
value of such debt instruments was determined based on quoted
price on market price. The Group held these debt instruments
for both collection of contractual cash flows and for selling,
which were measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, due to the default
of these listed bonds, the Group made RMB3,619,000 and
RMB3,619,000 (2022: RMB49,889,000 and RMB46,394,000)
for credit loss of debt instruments through other comprehensive
income and fair value losses recognised in other comprehensive
income separately.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Classification of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
The Group classifies the following financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (FVPL):

o debt investments that do not qualify for measurement at
either amortised cost or FVOCI (Note 19)

o equity investments that are held for trading, and

o equity investments for which the entity has not elected
to recognise fair value gains and losses through OCI.
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N\,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

20 %
= THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Contd)

NABEFTAEZNERE 20
=9-3C )
() BRAAEEFABEZWLIBEE 0)

Classification of financial assets at fair value

W2 (&) through profit or loss (Cont'd)
M12HA31H
As at 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
REEE Current assets
KEES Investment funds 440,827 —
S EBE (Mita) Contingent assets (Note a) 48,877 —
EXLEMES Listed bonds denominated in US Dollars 13,878 80,636
503,582 80,636
kRBEE Non-current assets
Z 5L E @ Trust products 75,624 75,624
BREES Investment funds — 165,842
Al A% B 3R (T 2Eb) Convertible loans (Note b) — 107,515
JE_E TR ST A% (B 5 b) Unlisted preference shares (Note b) — 21,708
75,624 370,689
fiFa: KBEEREHRLBAERERE Note a: Contingent assets represent compensation from the original equity

MBRAHE ARELEAERR
MRBEREANEE -

interests holder related to the acquisition of Shanghai Xiangxi because
Shanghai Xiangxi fails to meet financial performance guarantees.

Mizkb: # E2022%F12A318 K& FHHIRE B Note b: As of 31 December 2022, Chengdu Xinchengyue purchased convertible
ELBAMACSREMELLERAR loans issued by Shanghai Hezong Chuangzhi Property Agency Co., Ltd. at
BOINITBRRER BRERARE a total consideration amounted RMB100,000,000 with an interest rate at
100,000,0007¢ + F # X A10% + B & 10% per annum, which are accounted for as financial assets measured at
BAEAEBRENMINTAEALEBE fair value through profit or loss due to the convertible rights.

AABRENEREAE -

H E20229128318  AEE IR
8 A R#20,000,0007C A B B & & #
Y 3 3 AR AN 1] & 4 A FE [ 48 o B A
NETRET ARIERALEE
AABERNEREE -

A]MEERN S BRI G ERER
EEERBEASEEERSTERMEE
MEERAURBRERZEHEN
DHTE THE R B 4016 R 1 A B
NHEELRSREEND R - NEE
RAR MBI E R XM R B 82 1R RRE R
HEBEMNTFERBEE -

As of 31 December 2022, the Group also made an investment
in the form of ordinary shares with preferential rights and
convertible redeemable preferred shares at a consideration of
RMB20,000,000 which are accounted for as financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The classification and initial recognition of the convertible loans
require management to analyse certain complex contract terms
and make judgments to determine the classifications of the
above financial assets, based on the Group’s business models of
managing these financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows. The Group identified its various rights and evaluated
the financial impacts based on key terms from relevant legal
documents.
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20 RAABETTABZENWEEH 20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
BEEm® THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (cont'd)
(i) REE2EHBRAREINNKE (ii) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
REARN  TIHBERBERZANER - During the year, the following gains/(losses) were recognised in
profit or loss.
BZE12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR® T AREF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
BEAARBEFTFAEZD Fair value gains/(losses) on financial
HMITAMAAEBERE S instruments at fair value through
(& 48) (i E11) profit or loss (Note 11) 34,781 (125,541)
(iii)) ERBORAABEE (iii) Risk exposure and fair value measurements
ERAEBEFEBRMNERRKNER Information about the Group’s exposure to price risk is provided
HRWEI - BB EAAEBEFRN in Note 3.1. For information about the methods and assumptions
FAMNGERBERHNER  FL2HEW used in determining fair value please refer to Note 3.3.
£33 °
21 RE8 21 INVENTORIES
R12A31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
1 A 12 1B R 75 &) FE A Consumables to be used in value-added
services 27,788 25,828
=i Spare parts 8,084 14,317
5 & B Merchandise for sales 3,519 3,860
H it Others 223 225
39,614 44,230
R E B Less: allowance for impairment — =
39,614 44,230
REE2023F12A31BLFERR A Inventories recognised as an expense during the year ended
X8 FERAR820671,0007T 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB820,671,000 (2022:
(20224 : A R #973,361,0007T) ° #% RMB973,361,000). These were included in cost of sales and
ERIBETAEE KA KR RS 8 services (Note 7).
B (B EE7) o
FHIRREEEERA

2023F F 3
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22

B 5 EWRIE 22 TRADE RECEIVABLES
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023% 20224
2023 2022
AR TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 e W A (M 5% (a)) Trade receivables (Note (a))
— B 75 (B3 36(d)) — Related parties (Note 36(d)) 799,319 564,281
—F5=h — Third parties 1,277,117 864,348
2,076,436 1,428,629
BB S IR R A RS Less: allowance for impairment of trade
receivables (279,581) (136,372)
1,796,855 1,292,257
(a) BORBKRBEFTERBRBEL G ET (a) Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services

ERNMEEERBLEERS - %
BRHETEENYEEEREHK
A TR B AR 68 ) 3 AR 7% 1p % 1 BRURER -
EINRBERERBEINIANODES
BRI WA e

R2023F M2022% 12 A31H, ERBE
HERE S REWRIBRRR DT

managed under lump sum basis and value-added services. Property
management services income under lump sum basis are received in
accordance with the term of the relevant property service agreements.
Income from property management services is due for payment by the
property owners upon rendering of services.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis of the
trade receivables based on invoice date was as follows:

R12A31H
As at 31 December

2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
1 AR Within 1 year 1,685,149 1,192,582
1224 1 to 2 years 214,189 129,723
2E3F 2 to 3 years 92,876 69,278
3FE44F 3 to 4 years 57,470 26,325
454 4 to 5 years 20,311 7,495
SELA E Over 5 years 6,441 3,226
2,076,436 1,428,629
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22

g 5 EWFIEE)

M20234F M 2023F12A31H, 8 5 E W
REUNAREE BEHSERKRFKER
AEEREREEDEMRL MEER
AR 75 12 38 (B AR 745 AR 15 48 B8 AR 7% 1 =& &
ERUWE RIEAEZEREINEHIA -

REEERESYHHELERFIR
BREMBHEABEGLER - K&t
HRBRATMAEEZERRFESER
FEHBBGONBRBEE B
EEHEAEE  B5RKRFERE
HEMEARBREH kA SE
THH-BIREBRFBERERES
g 5l 7 B 5£3.1.2 © 20234 %2022
F12A318 - HE S ERF BB TE
12 B A R #279,581,0007T M A R
#136,372,0007TC - W EE BN & =
2023F12A3MBLEFEEZ N RER
BEHEWHRIBEGIEI - LEEA G
FMkENESRKREMNS  BES5K
WHRERKERHRAAEBERER
Rk (B B U B AR 2 R AN TR
HiEREEE -

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

22

TRADE RECEIVABLES (cont'd)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the trade receivables were
denominated in RMB, and the fair value of trade receivables
approximated their carrying amounts. Property management
services and value-added services are either billed in accordance
with the terms of the relevant services agreements or due for
payment upon the issuance of invoice.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Movements on the
provision for impairment of trade receivables are shown in
Note 3.1.2. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, a provision
of RMB279,581,000 and RMB136,372,000 was made against
the gross amounts of trade receivables. For trade receivables
acquired in business combinations, the trade receivables are
recognised at fair value as at the acquisition date and allowance
for impairment reflects the additional expected credit loss after
the acquisition date.
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23

BARE REREMER

23

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

MIE RECEIVABLES
®W12A318
As at 31 December
2023% 202245
2023 2022
ARETR AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
- ER:R: Bl & JEBNE
Current Non-current Current Non-current
BRI HE Prepayments
—PEREER — Utilities and outsourced services

oM IR 5 61,401 127,471 =
— BRAREEREHN — Consumables to be used in value-

M added services 14,492 28,752 =
Et Subtotal 75,893 156,223 —
BFINEAEEEER  Input VAT to be deducted and others

REM 45,039 42,458 =
%) Deposits (a) 622,209 665,841 =
A R W SR IR Other receivables
—REFHHD) — Payments on behalf of property

owners (b) 101,652 101,092 —
—REREAER — Lending to an investee including

(BFEFE) interests 145,869 35,945 =
— HAfh — Others 52,492 70,312 =
INFE Subtotal 300,013 207,349 =
@5t Total 1,043,154 1,071,871 =
R A FE R | Less: allowance for impairment of other

ReRERE receivables and deposits (93,056) (62,415) =
950,098 1,009,456 —
(a) 720234 K2022912A318 ' £ € £ (a) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, deposits mainly included deposits

(b)

ZOEMREBEHDEETE RS M A K
A EENRS R EEFEEM
MAEEUEEEFLENRSUNES
REBASHD RAESETHES S &
ENEEUNBREESENREAA
R %537,088,0007T (20224 : A R #
560,848,0007T) J FA 7N £k [ 4 & 7% B Bk
ol

720234 K%2022%12A318 * %% £ %
FTEZAREETINODELAREE
Ko T M PR AN FRIB o

R2023F M2022%F 128318 & &
Hib el BIAA REHE -

BNRIE - Re Rk HEMEKKECT
B8 AN SR K8 T R RO TR 8
B B E ) Rk (B 73 4 2 80 51 10 P A

3.1.2°

made with government related bodies for providing property
management services and deposits made with car parking slot owners
to secure the agent role for sale of the car parking slot. Deposits of
RMB537,088,000(2022: RMB560,848,000) was disclosed as related
parties balances by the Group for exclusive rights of sales of some car
parking slot owned by related parties.

(b) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the amounts represented the
payments on behalf of property owners in respect of mainly utilities and
elevator maintenance costs of the properties.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, deposits and other
receivables were denominated in RMB.

Movements on the provision for impairment of prepayments,
deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and input
VAT to be deducted and others) are shown in Note 3.1.2.
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24 BERBLEEY 24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
M12A31H8
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR®F AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHERS Cash on hand 344 260
wITHES Cash in banks 1,898,940 1,929,029
X FaEe Cash in payment platforms 27,999 44,407
1,927,283 1,973,696
RehBH2EEBVERNEREAT The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents balances are
P B E: denominated in the following currencies:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
ARB T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ET usD 23,672 96,831
AR RMB 1,890,607 1,860,514
BT HKD 13,004 16,351
1,927,283 1,973,696
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25

IR A 25 SHARE CAPITAL
RRABEH2018F1A16RER S ST The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 16
s e REMACZBE - A ERAE January 2018. At the date of incorporation, the authorised
7%51,2003 7T - B 551,200/ & ik & share capital is USD51,200 comprising 51,200 ordinary shares of
E1.00E T M E @8 - 1M2023F12A USD1.00 each. As at 31 December 2023, the authorised share
318 - J& E IR 5 /10,000,000 & & was 10,000,000,000 shares at par value of USDO0.01.
E{E0.01ETTHIMRD
ERTRHBREEK: Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid:
k= =] FER ARB T
Number of
shares usbD’000 RMB’'000
7A2023F181H8 At 1 January 2023 871,231,000 8,712 59,973
1R #5 20194 B g 4 Exercise of share option
FTE117 5 BB AR under 2019 share option
(B 5 1) scheme (Note 1) 100,000 1 7
#2023%12A31H At 31 December 2023 871,331,000 8,713 59,980

MisE1: & Z2023F12A31A L E, & T &
SR BE2019F W R EERES X
100,00017 iR 7 1T B & & Ik6.18%8
TT o ARBRBITHEEBAEBRIEFED
618,000 7t (# & M £ A R 541,000
JT) °

Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2023, several employees under 2019
share option scheme subscribed 100,000 shares in total with exercise
price of HKD6.18 per share. The Company received the net proceeds
from exercise approximately HKD618,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB541,000).

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

205



RE P BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

26 f#fE 26 RESERVES
BOAER
HARH
REMAN  EERH
tEfE  ROEE RbRE  SREE BE REET EH
Financial
Statutory Share Other  assetsat  Employee  Retained
reserves  premium  reserves FVOCI  share trust  earnings Total
AEETR ARETR AR%ETn ARETR ARETn AR%Tn ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2022E151R As at 1 January 2022 6,576 911,945 84,990 (3,495) (223,865) 1447869 2,224,020

2EUA Comprehensive income

EQFHE Profit for the year = = = = = 423476 423476

BOREEFAZERAL  Changes in fair value of debt instruments at

BRIAMABES fair value through comprehensive income = = = (46,394) = = (46,394)

EAREEFALHZE Credit loss of debt instruments at fair value

WANGBIAGRER through other comprehensive income - - - 49,889 = = 49,889
ARAARF AR S Dividend paid by the Company —  (134,944) - - = —  (134.944)
B9 R EN 3 Exercise of share option under 2019 share

e ERE option scheme = 5,740 = = = = 5,740
BESRHER:HE Acquisition of shares for Employee Share

WERD Award Scheme - - - - (3,765) - (3,765)

WA BERNNH Share-based payment - - 10,394 - = = 10,394

MEAREE Capital increase in a subsidiary - - 975 - = = 975

BHERR AR RS Share purchase for non-controlling

RERN interests of a subsidiary - - 114 = = = 114

R2022512831R As at 31 December 2022 6,576 782,741 9,473 - (2276300 1,871,345 2,529,505

#2023F151A As at 1 January 2023 6,576 782,141 96,473 - (227,630) 1,871,345 2,529,505

2EUA Comprehensive income

ERFE Profit for the year — = = = — 5085 445,045

ARARAOBRE (31 Dividend paid by the Company (Note 31) — (139413 - - - - (139413)

B9 B R ER Exercise of share option under 2019 share

116 B B (M s 25) option scheme(Note 25) = 534 = = = - 534

BESROEBTERER  Acquiition of shares for Employee Share

{3 (M) Award scheme (Note ) = = = = (2,872) — (2.872)

PEGEE LI ES Share-based payment (Note 27)

Cig:92) - - 6,069 - - - 6,069

TREERHPNAR Exercise of unrestricted shares from stock

B Bt (W ) shares (Note b) - (11,809 - - 16,726 - 4917

R2023£128318 As at 31 December 2023 6,576 632,053 102,542 - (213,776) 2,316,390 2,843,785

ta: B ZE2023F12A31BLLEE - AR AE Note a: During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company bought
#700,000% A% 1 + X X A&3,174,0007% back 700,000 shares at the cost of HKD3,174,000 (equivalent to
T (HEERKARY?2,872,0007T) ° RMB2,872,000 approximately).

b : EHZE2023F12A31BNEERN » 24 Note b: During the year ended 31 December 2023,several employees
BIRBREFRTET IRRENKRND - exercised unrestricted shares from stock shares with total amount of
HEHRA,917,000C AR - RMB4,917,000.

FHIRREEEERA
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26

27

(a)
(i)

ERAE D)

BREBEEERNPEKIHINERE B
ENEBARERKEHARAERS
FTHREWNBARMMAHER HWEQ
AIASHRENBEESLBIEEE
REES BEExE AR E
HESBFMERS0% - K2023F
N2022F12R318 - REBEBF h E&E
AZTREEZEZNEIINAAR
#122,182,0007T F1 A R #90,832,000
5 o

BURR 17 7 E 1 AY Y =X
BRETE
2019F fEIK 1 &1 &)

iR 1% B H A2019F9H28 M) R & &,
AR E) R 4 — I8 BE AR A 5T 21 (120194
BRETED BREBRETS @\
CHEENEEBEBEEES)RHAH
16,000,00017 fE AR # © AR BB A QA
% 78 F116,000,0000% & A% ™ {H0.013
TR TEEEEBRKD6.18E
ToBREEREEECXREZEEELD
ERMEEBEEALREERKKH
BREBEELNERER -

FREE(BEER)BELOERERD
AR AFERAZEERZE KNI
HEBRABMAEINFE(ABISR,
AR H B EI2019F9 A28 & 1218 A
24 A R36E AN R E BB REN
40% ~ 30% }30% - BERREE R E H
B Z=2024F 108198 B &K »

R %2019 4F fE AR # 51 &1 4% L 19 R Ik 4
RIZH B EI201969 2B A A B E
B42158 BB T(HHERARK3776
BERL) YEBRM-_EXNEEER
((zEAEKXDEE -

26

27

(a)
(i)

RESERVES (cont'd)

Pursuant to the relevant rules and regulations governing foreign
investment enterprise established in the PRC and the articles
of association of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer certain portion of their
profit after taxation to the statutory reserve fund, until the
accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their respective
registered capital. As at 31 December 2023 and 2022,
RMB122,182,000 and RMB90,832,000 of retained earnings
should be transferred to statutory reserve fund.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
Share Option Schemes

2019 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 2 September 2019, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “2019 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the Share Option Scheme, a total number of
16,000,000 shares options were granted to selected current
employees (including directors) to subscribe for 16,000,000
shares of USD0.001 each in the share capital of the Company
with exercise price of HKD6.18 per share. The shares options
granted are for recognition of the contribution of employees
and to provide incentives for the employees to continuously
make greater contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in
the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after the grant day dated 2 September
2019 with 40%, 30% and 30% of the share options, separately.
The share options are valid from the vesting date to 19 October
2024.

The fair value of the shares options granted under the 2019
Share Option Scheme as at 2 September 2019, the grant date,
was HKD42.15 million (equivalent to RMB37.76 million), and
was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing Model (the
“Binomial Model").
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27

(a)
(i)

U ABERNAS @
BRESTE(E)
2019F fE IR 51 &) ()

REE2019F 12831 ILFEFERBY
EREMERE ABIEBE:

a) BEREBEE - I H2019F9
A2B E2024F10819B8 AJ 17 (&
VSR B B AE -

b) T8 6188 T

Q) %A 2019F9A2H

d) E|HAH - 2024F10A19H

e) RE LB RE: 5868 T

f) AR TR AD B T8 B AR R R
60.3%

9) T8 HA R B U5 K 0 1.95%
h) TREFE:1.15%

HE2023F12A31B L FE - B7(E
100,000 R E T EZHITHRH =
/) X 5@ R% (B 5£25) © 455,00015 B8 A%
HE SR UL o 20234128318 © 2019
FHREGEIEBETITHARITENBER
7 /8,133,00019 (20224 : 8,688,000
2) °

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

27

(a)
(i)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)
2019 Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31
December 2019 included:

a) options are granted for no consideration and vest options
are exercisable from 2 September 2019 to 19 October
2024.

b) exercise price: HKD6.18

Q) grant date: 2 September 2019

d) expiry date: 19 October 2024

e) share price at grant date: HKD5.86

f) expected price volatility of the Company’s shares: 60.3%

9) expected dividend yield: 1.95%
h) risk-free interest rate: 1.15%

During the year ended at 31 December 2023, 100,000 options
were exercised and the same quantity of ordinary shares were
issued (Note 25), and 455,000 options were forfeited. As at
31 December 2023, the outstanding option under 2019 Share
Option Scheme were 8,133,000 (2022: 8,688,000).
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27

(a)
(i)

R AERNSRE
BREE (8
20204F 5 — 15 fE iR #E 51 &)

RIEAEA2020F6 30 RER -
RNRAE M —IEBE A S ([2020F
F—IEERETED - BIZE2020F F
—IHEREFE  AILHERERES
(BEEF) R H A $£2,960,0001 1
B - ARREE AN QA R AN H2,960,000
B EE0.0NE T » 1TEE
B E A 719.9078 7T o ¥ B R E
EEREFEBELINER R AEEE
ABREBARRRBEREZEBFELE
RNEFR -

HAES(BEES)EL A EKREM
AR AFTERAZEERZRE KNI
MEBESERFEIRABISR
AR Y B 9202056 A308 4121@
A 2418 B %3618 A 5 5l 57 & §8 1% 4
#130% * 30% N40% - BERE A R E
HEIZ2024F108198 B & -~ & — it
30% BB RX A R A =2021F12 A318 &
FREW LI - B =H40% 8 N2k RE
F2022F12A31MBFEEH LUK °

RIBE2020F F — B EREFT SR H D
B8 A% 4 7 % B #92020F6 A30H &Y
ANREEASIEEBTHERA
R¥231688L) WEBKMN=-IA
ANEEEXN(ZEXERDETE -

27

(a)
(i)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont‘d)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2020 First Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 30 June 2020, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “2020 First Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2020 First Share Option Scheme, a
total number of 2,960,000 shares options were granted to
selected current employees (including directors) to subscribe
for 2,960,000 shares of USD0.001 each in the share capital of
the Company with exercise price of HKD19.90 per share. The
shares options granted are for recognition of the contribution
of employees and to provide incentives for the employees to
continuously make greater contributions for the Group’s long-
term growth in the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after the grant day dated 30 June 2020
with 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options, separately. The
share options are valid from the vesting date to 19 October
2024. Second 30% of the share options were forfeited during
the year ended at 31 December 2021. Third 40% of the share
options were forfeited during the year ended at 31 December
2022.

The fair value of the share options granted under the 2020
First Share Option Scheme as at 30 June 2020, the grant date,
was HKD25.35 million (equivalent to RMB23.16 million) and
was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing Model (the
“Binomial Model”).
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27 URGAEBROSR@® 27
() BRESE(E) (a)
(i) 2020EE—EBREZ (%) (ii)

RE Z2020F6A308 1Lt~ A K H
MERENER G ASIEEE:

a) BEREBLEE I H2020F6
H308 E2024%10A198 A 17
FREBERAE -

b) 1TE(E - 19.905% 7T

@) ®HBH 2020566 A30H

d) B HAH : 2024 10H19H

e) R AR E : 19.90/8 7T

f) AR TR AD B T8 B AR R R
58.1%

9) T HA R B U A K 0 0.99%
h) TR FE :0.34%

HE2023F12A31B ILFE > W ER
f% #E & 2% 17 © ™1,424,00017 B8 A% 4
B8 Uk o 742023412 A31H + 20204
FE-ERERESEETHRITENE
[i& # 7%%228,00015 (20224 : 1,652,000
3) °

FHIRBREEEERAR
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont‘d)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2020 First Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

The model inputs for options granted during the six months
ended 30 June 2020 included:

a)

f)

9)

h)

options are granted for no consideration and vest options
are exercisable from 30 June 2020 to 19 October 2024.
exercise price: HKD19.90

grant date: 30 June 2020

expiry date: 19 October 2024

share price at grant date: HKD19.90

expected price volatility of the company’s shares: 58.1%

expected dividend yield: 0.99%

risk-free interest rate: 0.34%

During the year ended at 31 December 2023, no options were
exercised and 1,424,000 options were forfeited. As at 31
December 2023, the outstanding option under 2020 First Share
Option Scheme were 228,000 (2022: 1,652,000).
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HAEBOHNEIFEIABISH
A] }A2020F 6 A30H &1218 A - 2418 A
3616 A 7 5l 57 8 B AR #930% - 30%
K40% o BEIREE R T BB E2024410
B198 B &% » 55 — #£30% B A% # R &
F221FNANBLEFREHR LW - F=
HE40% B8 A% #E A 8 £2022F 12 A31B &
EW ORI -

BIE2020F E - TH R EF BT D
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HAREBERBIEEE THER
ARBIERIL) WHEBEM_18
ANEEEXN(ZEXERDETE -

27

(a)
(iii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont‘d)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2020 Second Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 10 November 2020, the
Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2020 Second
Share Option Scheme”). Under the 2020 Second Share
Option Scheme, a total number of 1,350,000 shares options
were granted to one selected current employee to subscribe
for 1,350,000 shares of USD0.001 each in the share capital of
the Company with exercise price of HK$20.85 per share. The
shares options granted are for recognition of the contribution
of employees and to provide incentives for the employees to
continuously make greater contributions for the Group’s long-
term growth in the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after 30 June 2020 with 30%, 30% and
40% of the share options, separately. The share options are
valid from the grant date to 19 October 2024. Second 30% of
the share options were forfeited during the year ended at 31
December 2021. Third 40% of the share options were forfeited
during the year ended at 31 December 2022.

The fair value of the share options granted under the 2020
Second Share Option Scheme as at 10 November 2020, the
grant date, was HKD11.66 million (equivalent to RMB9.91
million) and was determined by adopting the Binomial Pricing
Model (the “Binomial Model”).
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(a)
(iii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont‘d)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2020 Second Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

The model inputs for options granted during the twelve months
ended 31 December 2020 included:

a) options are granted for no consideration and vest options
are exercisable from 10 November 2020 to 19 October
2024.

b) exercise price: HKD20.85

Q) grant date: 10 November 2020

d) expiry date: 19 October 2024

e) share price at grant date: HKD20.85

f) expected price volatility of the company’s shares: 57.48%

9) expected dividend yield: 0.99%
h) risk-free interest rate: 0.35%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility
(based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
information.

During the year ended at 31 December 2023, no options
were exercised and 540,000 options were forfeited. As at 31
December 2023, the outstanding option under 2020 Second
Share Option Scheme were 405,000 (2022: 945,000).
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27

(a)
(iv)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont'd)
Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2021 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a resolution dated 1 July 2021, the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “2021 First Share
Option Scheme”). Under the 2021 Share Option Scheme, a
total number of 7,700,000 shares options to selected current
employees (including directors) to subscribe for 7,700,000
shares of USD0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
with exercise price of HKD23.60 per share. The shares options
granted are for recognition of the contribution of employees
and to provide incentives for the employees to continuously
make greater contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in
the future.

For shares options granted to employees (including directors),
subject to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual
performance reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year
before the relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24
months and 36 months after the grant day dated 1 July 2021
with 30%, 30% and 40% of the share options, separately. The
share options are valid from the vesting date to 19 October
2024. First 30% of the share options were forfeited during the
year ended at 31 December 2021. Second 30% of the share
options were forfeited during the year ended at 31 December
2022.

The fair value of the share options granted under the 2021 Share
Option Scheme as at 1 July 2021, the grant date, was HKD60.18
million (equivalent to RMB50.16 million) and was determined by
adopting the Binomial Pricing Model (the “Binomial Model”).
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(a)
(iv)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Cont‘d)

Share Option Schemes (Cont'd)

2021 Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

The model inputs for options granted during the year ended 31
December 2022 included:

a) options are granted for no consideration and vest options
are valid from 1 July 2021 to 19 October 2024.

b) exercise price: HKD23.60

Q) grant date: 1 July 2021

d) expiry date: 19 October 2024

e) share price at grant date: HKD23.60

f) expected price volatility of the company’s shares:
50.68%

9) expected dividend yield: 1.4539%
h) risk-free interest rate: 0.43%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility
(based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any
expected changes to future volatility due to publicly available
information.

During the year ended at 31 December 2023, no options
were exercised and 2,100,000 options were forfeited. As at
31 December 2023, the outstanding option under 2021 Share
Option Scheme were 2,240,000 (2022: 4,340,000).
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(b)

()

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont‘d)

Share Award Scheme

On 15 November 2019, the Board resolved to adopt a Share
Award Scheme for its employees in order to provide incentive
for the Selected Participants to continuously make greater
contributions for the Group’s long-term growth in the future.
The aggregated maximum number of Shares underlying all
grants made pursuant to the Share Award Scheme (excluding
Award Shares that have been forfeited in accordance with the
Share Award Scheme) must not exceed 1.25% of the total
issued share capital of the Company as at the Adoption Date
and the Share Award Scheme is effective for 10 years from
the Adoption Date unless early terminated by the Board. The
Share Award Scheme was amended on 1 July 2021 and 23
August 2021 to adjust the maximum number of shares involved
in the relevant grant (excluding award shares that have been
forfeited in accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to an
aggregate not exceeding 5.0% of the total issued share capital
of the Company as at 23 August 2021, i.e. 43,603,500 shares
(representing approximately 5.0% of the issued shares of the
Company as at the date of this report).

Based on the resolution, the Company entrusted the Trustee to
purchase existing Shares in the open market based on the overall
remuneration incentive plan. The Trustee holds such Shares
on behalf of the relevant Selected Participants on trust, until
such Shares are vested with the relevant Selected Participants
in accordance with the Scheme Rules. The trust is consolidated
in accordance with Note 2.1.2. As at 31 December 2023, the
Company had entrusted the trustee to purchase an aggregate
of 17,725,000 (2022: 17,025,000) shares from the open
market for the Share Award Scheme at a total consideration of
approximately RMB230,502,000 (2022: RMB227,630,000).

2020 First Share Award Scheme

On 30 June 2020, 5,000,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD9.95 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.
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(b)
()

(ii)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont‘d)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

2020 First Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 30 June 2020 with 30%,
30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD19.9
and the fair value of the shares granted on 30 June 2020 was
HKD49.75 million (equivalent to RMB45.44 million).

2020 Second Share Award Scheme

On 10 November 2020, 750,000 shares were granted to one
selected current employee under the Share Award Scheme
with the payment of the grant price of HKD10.43 per share.
The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 11 November 2020 with
30%, 30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD20.85 and
the fair value of the shares granted on 11 November 2020 was
HKD7.82 million (equivalent to RMB6.64 million).
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(b)
(iii)

(iv)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont‘d)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

2021 Share Award Scheme

On 31 July 2021, 2,300,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD11.8 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 1 July 2021 with 30%,
30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD11.8
and the fair value of the shares granted on 1 July 2021 was
HKD27.14 million (equivalent to RMB22.62 million).

2022 Share Award Scheme

On 28 March 2022, 5,030,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD4.49 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 28 March 2022 with 30%,
30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.
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(b)
(iv)

(v)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont‘d)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

2022 Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD8.98 and
the fair value of the shares granted on 28 March 2022 was
HKD22.58 million (equivalent to RMB18.38 million).

2023 Share Award Scheme

On 8 May 2023, 2,100,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD2.36 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee’s position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 8 May 2023 with 30%,
30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD4.55
and the fair value of the shares granted on 8 May 2023 was
HKD4.16 million (equivalent to RMB3.67 million).

On 4 September 2023, 900,000 shares were granted to selected
current employees (including directors) under the Share Award
Scheme with the payment of the grant price of HKD2.46 per
share. The number of shares granted is determined based on the
Share Award Grantee's position, experience, years of service,
performance and contribution to the Group.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (cont‘d)

Share Award Scheme (Cont'd)

2023 Share Award Scheme (Cont’d)

For shares granted to employees (including directors), subject
to the meeting of the criteria of annual individual performance
reaching at least the grade of “Pass” for the year before the
relevant vesting date, can be vested 12 months, 24 months and
36 months after the grant day dated 4 September 2023 with
30%, 30% and 40% of the share award scheme, separately.

The fair value for the shares granted is determined by reference
to the cost of purchase of shares, or the market values of the
shares on grant date. Share price at grant date is HKD4.92 and
the fair value of the shares granted on 4 September 2023 was
HKD4.96 million (equivalent to RMB4.37 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group recognised
RMB6,069,000 (2022: RMB10,394,000) expenses in relation to
the above Share Option Schemes and Share Award Schemes to
the current employees (including directors).

REtERNRIZRE 28 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
) 4% £ Opening balance 4,733 4,000
/,J\E Additions 980 1,140
DG FEE Share of results (30) (407)
B oK 4 & Ending balance 5,683 4,733
AEEZ2HPHERARHIBLARA All of the Group’s associates are private companies and there

BMZERERELETIHHRE -

R E E2023F K2022%12 /8318 1k F
B BERE AR EEHAEEmNS
BEK-

are no quoted market prices available for such equity interests.

For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no associate
is considered to be material to the Group individually.
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29 EBZKEHEAMENNKIEA

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

W12A318
As at 31 December
20235 20224
2023 2022
AR® TR ARETTT

RMB'000 RMB'000
B £ F 5 B JEEN
Current Non-current Current Non-current

B 5 HIR(M )

Trade payables (Note (a))

—%=F — Third parties 410,594 — 532,722 =
Hfth e 95008 Other payables
— B ER — Accrued expenses 294,504 = 253,597 =
— REZWRBMFE — Amounts collected on behalf of
property owners 765,448 — 731,469 —
— e BB B 1 A R A — Consideration payables for acquisition
KB of subsidiaries 30,817 112,924 37,959 105,398
—Hfth — Others 97,680 — 73,959 —
1,188,449 112,924 1,096,984 105,398
EiEe Accrued payroll 320,410 — 307,534 =
HihfER A Other tax payables 161,226 — 106,043 =
2,080,679 112,924 2,043,283 105,398
(a) PR20234F & 2022F12 B318 » & (a) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the aging analysis
REZRHNEZENRIER of the trade payables based on invoice date was are
BREe T T follows:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR ARETF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
1FE AR Within 1 year 336,802 500,035
1226 1 to 2 years 47,519 20,018
2E3F 2 to 3 years 16,092 11,244
3FEMN E Over 3 years 10,181 1,425
410,594 532,722

FHIRBREEEERAR
220 2023F F 3
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29

30

B 5K HAMENRIE @ 29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont'd)

(b) PR2023%F K& 2022F12 8318 - & (b) As at 31 December 2023 and 2022 the carrying amount
SR EMENRIE AR ERE of trade and other payables balances are all denominated
BEHAURARKEEE- in RMB.

() BORNHIBEREEMRALRES (0) Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within
RERBIFANZN - 1 year of recognition.

(d) AREBESREMENKERE (d) The carrying amount of trade and other payables
HiEE  AASROREEER balances are considered to be the same as their fair
RAEREAALEBEER - values, due to their short-term nature.

IR A Fir 15 W 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

REVBRARANELEHREE

The analysis of deferred tax assets in the consolidated

DT statements of financial position was as follows:
®12A31H
As at 31 December
2023 % 20224
2023 2022
AR®T T AREEF T
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
BELEHRREE: Deferred tax assets:
— HB3E1218 B 1% W Bl B I iE 7 — Deferred tax asset to be recovered after
HE&E more than 12 months — —
— R2MEARUWEIRIELEFRTE — Deferred tax asset to be recovered within
BE 12 months 126,243 104,685
BEETHBEEERSE Total deferred tax assets 126,243 104,685
BRI R EIEEIELFE  Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to
A& set-off provisions (19,316) (15,967)
EIERIBE EFE Net deferred tax assets 106,927 88,718
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities:
— HBiE121E B B Y B #Y iR B — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
HAaE after more than 12 months 90,476 91,977
— NEARNKEHELERIE — Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered
= within 12 months 40,166 38,754
BEEHIBEAGEREE Total deferred tax liabilities 130,642 130,731
RIFEE R EIMHIELETI B Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to
=8 set-off provisions (19,316) (15,967)
FEEREEEFE Net deferred tax liabilities 111,326 114,764
EEHIBEAGE TR Deferred tax liabilities — net (4,399) (26,046)
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30 EEFRBHR@® 30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Contd)
TERR—HBi R ERIEE - B The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
Z£2023F12A318 IEFE /IR IE 15 during the year ended 31 December 2023, without taking into
MEERBEBEZHZESHNT : consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax

jurisdiction, is as follows:

EEFBSHEE Deferred income tax assets
RERE Eit§e DABEEE HEER BE @
Allowance
on doubtful Accrued Fair value Lease
debts payroll losses liabilities Provision Total

ARBTR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARMTR  AR®TR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

R2023E1518 As at 1 January 2023 43,910 59,494 50 611 620 104,685
nka/ A& Charged(credited) to the consolidated

AR statements of comprehensive income 29,500 (10,937) (50) 928 200 19,641
WEHB R (F#32) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) 1,917 — — — — 1,917
120235124318 At 31 December 2023 15,321 48,557 - 1,539 820 126,243
W20251718 As at 1 January 2022 32,549 32,450 1,689 611 413 67,712
nka/GA &S Charged/(credited) to the consolidated

EANAR statements of comprehensive income 8,501 27,044 (1,639) - 207 34113
WENBAF Acquisition of subsidiaries 2,860 = = = = 2,860
#2022%12A318 At 31 December 2022 43,910 59,494 50 611 620 104,685

FHIRBREEEERAR
222 2023F F 3
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30 EEMEH @

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

BELERESHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
REENH KWEHBAF FREEE @t
Withholding
tax for Acquisition of  Right-of-use
dividend subsidiaries assets Total
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(M &E32)
(Note 32)
R2023F1818 As at 1 January 2023 25,889 104,456 386 130,731
(K8) /AR E (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
FEBAR statements of comprehensive income — (17,439) 3,227 (14,212)
U B B 1B A 8] (BT 3E32) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) — 14,123 — 14,123
R2023F12A31H At 31 December 2023 25,889 101,140 3,613 130,642
R2022F181R As at 1 January 2022 25,889 84,418 271 110,578
(Mk8)/ Gt Ga (Charged)/credited to the consolidated
2EBAE statements of comprehensive income — (11,819) 115 (11,704)
e B Y /B A ) Acquisition of subsidiaries — 31,857 — 31,857
R2022%12A31H At 31 December 2022 25,889 104,456 386 130,731
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

30 EEMBH (&
EEFESHEE (B

(a)

MR2023F128318B A& B B2
LAREBENEEERESR T
B B B8 & B) #5010 AR BE AT it
Be F B 7 PE H B FE X M O FE 40
MERELEMSHABARE
25,889,0007T (2022%F : A R ¥
25,889,0007T) °

M2023F12A318 , K £ @ Xk
PR EINREEERGEE
FHRERNBARAAEHARE
82,947,0007T (2022F : A R ¥
72,467,0007T) #) >k [E H 7] 2k
AE 1 B R R 2 B9 TR AR
BREENEEMSHAEBEA
R #829,466,0007T (20224 :
A R #724,670,0007T) © & )5
HRZENERIEABIIRE -
M2023F12A318 © AN & B &
BB ARIMNARDREFNE
A R #1,827,562,0007T * fifi {E
AR BIR - WELA 78 84N
MIH - ERTEREZHFE
EMERRAETCHBARE -
RERTIERBBRENESHRE
MEARDERKEMEREEBE
Hre RN R RS RZER
A e

EHBRATREE £ ERTE FE
ERMEEARBRA - US4
o HBEERBERETEREH
& EE o B Z22023F12A318 Ik
FE AEEVERRBEEIE
MRETHAERKERE
ERBBRANELERMSERE
EQ02F : &) REERF
HEENMBERATMNHRIEREIE
AEERZAF o

HARBRBEERRAR

20235 & 3R

30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont‘d)

Deferred income tax liabilities (Cont'd)

(a)

As at 31 December 2023, RMB25,889,000 deferred
income tax liabilities (2022: RMB25,889,000) have
been recognised for the withholding tax that would
be payable upon remittance, in respect of a portion
of the unremitted distributable profits of certain PRC
subsidiaries attributable to the investors outside PRC.

As at 31 December 2023, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB82,947,000 (2022: RMB72,467,000) have not
been recognised for the withholding tax that would be
payable upon remittance, in respect of the unremitted
distributable profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
attributable to the investors outside PRC amounting
to RMB829,466,000 (2022: RMB724,670,000) as
such profits are intended to be reinvested. As at
31 December 2023, the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group have undistributed earnings of approximately
RMB1,827,562,000 which, if paid out as dividends,
would be subject to tax in the hands of the recipient. An
assessable temporary difference exists, but no deferred
tax liability has been recognised as the parent entity is
able to control the timing of distributions of dividends
from the PRC subsidiary and is not expected to distribute
these profits in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that the realisation of
the related tax benefits through future taxable profit is
probable. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets
(2022: nil) in respect of tax losses that can be carried
forward against future taxable income. Tax losses of
subsidiaries operated in the PRC could be carried forward
for a maximum of five years.
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31

32

iz B 31 DIVIDENDS
HZ12A31BLLEE
For the year ended 31 December
20234 20224
2023 2022
AR®F ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
KRR A E R R S (P 5F (a)) Dividends declared by the Company (Note (a)) 139,413 134,944
G NCIDTENE Dividends paid by subsidiaries to
R oSSR ()) non-controlling interests (Note (b)) 10,641 2,883
150,054 137,827

2022F M AR EBRE A
& A R¥016TE EARQRR
2023F6H28H £ TR R EBE
FRELHE BHARK
139,413,0007T ° #% B&% B %I fi%
% 10 5 (8 8 3K o B £ 2023412
A318 &R EEBEIK A -

H E2023F12A31B L FE -
NAFZ RN E R R A IEZE R
BEmkTREEFHARE
10,641,0007T © 72023412 A
31 EXMBRBEAFFARE
5,700,0007C °

(a) A final dividend in respect of 2022 of RMBO0.16 per
ordinary share, amounting to RMB139,413,000 was
approved at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 28 June 2023. The dividend is reflected as an
appropriation of share premium. As of 31 December
2023, the dividend had been fully paid.

(b) Several subsidiaries of the Company declared
RMB10,641,000 in total to non-controlling interests for
the year ended 31 December 2023. As at 31 December
2023, the dividend accounted RMB5,700,000 has been
paid.

W BE B /B X F) 32 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY
P B IR 4
wBEH K#EBH Ol RE %%
% of equity
interest
Acquiree Acquisition date acquired Consideration  Business
% ARBTR
% RMB’000
LBAE 2023F1A 70% 84,000 MEXEERH
Shanghai Xiangxi January 2023 Property management services

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

225



RE P BRRME

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

£ 22023412 A318 1L [ For the year ended 31 December 2023

32 WEEKEB QT @

BERE PIUEBEEFERAEN

32 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (contd)

Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired

HEOT and goodwill are as follows:
et
Total
AR TR
RMB’'000
BERE Purchase consideration
BE MR Cash payment
— MR2023F12A31HAI & E — Settled before 31 December 2023 58,800
— RNFEUWER2023F12A31H — Outstanding for current year acquisition as at
MR A E 31 December 2023 25,200
wWEENRE Total purchase consideration 84,000
tEAE
Shanghai
Xiangxi
AR¥ T
RMB’000
RERBREEED Cash and cash equivalents 4,306
B 5 W IR Trade receivables 8,989
TETRIE ke & E b fE WA Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 67,102
M- BB KR E K EE16) Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) 171
A E (K sE17) Intangible assets (Note 17) 56,490
iIE SE 7 1B & & (MY 5E30) Deferred income tax assets (Note 30) 1,917
iR 3R 18 & & (M 3E30) Deferred tax liabilities (Note 30) (14,123)
FE 1~ I8 K E fth FE 1 kI8 Trade and other payables (40,346)
& Borrowings (16,000)
EHBE Contract liabilities (15,617)
52,889
R FE TR AR M A Less: non-controlling interest (15,867)
g (M 17) Add: goodwill (Note 17) 46,978
84,000
W EEIR & Cash outflow on acquisition
NIREe#HEHBRE Total considerations settled by cash (58,800)
Frik BE B B A Bl A Uk BE 3R & Cash acquired in the subsidiary acquired 4,306
W B3R & W OF 5B Cash outflow on acquisition — net (54,494)

FHIRBREEEERAR
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32

33

U B8 Bt B A A ()

REBRNDBEHSE  LEBABHRK
BEBEAERLBABAAERTE
WIHTBEEERE WREEBAHED
ERERNENMBREER A LE
ARNERREREARTEHAREE
TREE -AM AEBEERE - H
WHERLEEBMEERERNENY
BEGEROAITREBE - BRIA
RENAAEBERRIR N -

B LM AR MR B R A
Pt 18 BT 3 ) % 2 2E O B O W3 3
12 R 35

HEXBWEAHBRZE2023F12A31
HIEFEE FBBEEBSRAEE TR
WARBGHAIEBE N ABAR
#108,757,000T & A K #9,943,000
E

BEUBARSREAEHENTHE
RARFIKRBEBONSAMEN - &
LB E B MR ©

& B B 2 A

REE2023F12A31MBIEFEE - A&
BEHEETFAR BREBAARE
810,0007T ° HEFFIBWT :

32 ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Cont'd)

According to the share purchase agreement, the original equity
interests holders of Shanghai Xiangxi undertake that Shanghai
Xiangxi shall achieve certain financial performance guarantees.
Compensation would be required from the original equity
interests holders if Shanghai Xiangxi Times fails to meet these
financial performance guarantees. However, the directors of
the Company consider that the probability of not meeting these
financial performance guarantees at acquisition date is low. The
fair value of contingent consideration receivable is considered as
minimal at acquisition date.

For the above acquisitions, the Group elected to recognise
the non-controlling interests at its proportionate share of the
acquired net identifiable assets.

The acquired business contributed revenues of RMB108,757,000
and loss before income tax of RMB9,943,000 to the Group for
the year from the respective acquisition dates to 31 December
2023.

The goodwill is attributable to the market expansion in various
regions or business and the high profitability of the acquired
business. It will not be deductible for tax purposes.

33 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposed
several subsidiaries for a total consideration of RMB810,000.
Details of the disposals are as follows:

&8
Amount
AR® T
RMB’000
HERE Disposal consideration
— HEHMBRARMWIIRE RIREE — Cash and cash equivalents received from disposals of
B9 the subsidiaries 810
HEMBAREEFHEER Total net assets of the subsidiaries disposed of 589
W B FEIE AR Less: Non-controlling interest disposed of (286)
303
i i = Gains on disposal 507
HEMSRE  IKEERS Cash proceeds from disposals, net of cash disposed of 810
B HENBARRERREEEY Less: cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiaries
disposed of (5,418)
HER e R FE Net cash outflow on disposals (4,608)
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3 RERER 34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION
() RETHMESRLIEH (a) Cash generated from operations
BHZ12A31MBLLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR®B TR AR¥ETF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
B FiT 15 B¢ A F)OE Profit before income tax 645,585 626,984
LR Adjustments for:
— ¥ BELRENUKRE  — Depreciation of property, plant and
AEEENE (HME1e) equipment and right of use assets
(Note 16) 39,416 35,403
— FRBEBERMAX — Non-cash employee benefits expense
— AR B E A — share-based payments (Note 27)
(Bt 5£27) 6,069 10,394
— EBEREESHHE (M E17) — Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 68,336 55,371
— HENEPBEERE — Impairment of goodwill and customer
(Bt 3x17) relationship (Note 17) 76,858 5,404
— RN EHNEERMEEIE — Net impairment losses on financial and
R (P 5£3.1.2) contract assets (Note 3.1.2) 255,737 145,432
— HEYE  BmEERMERH  — Net gains on disposal of property, plant
U =5 % 58 (K sE11) and equipment (Note 11) (4,138) (4,647)
—RBRAREBEFAERHN — Net fair value (gains)/losses on financial
EHMEENAAEBE assets at fair value through profit or loss
(K z)/ BEHRFHE (Note 11)
(PR =E11) (34,781) 125,541
—EH (k=) /BB FE — Net foreign exchange gains (Note 11)
(PR =E11) (9,361) (17,207)
— AR B AR (B 5E12) — Financial costs (Note 12) 842 925
— R AREBEFAEBZANE — Interest income from financial assets at fair
MEERKZAAEER value through profit or loss and financial
ANEH M2 EEAS S H assets at fair value through other
BEEMNF B AT comprehensive income (Note 9) (185) (40,451)
— FEIE AR A AR 2  — Share of net loss of associates accounted
A A 18 % 58 (B[ 5228) for using the equity method (Note 28) 30 407
HEEa#EF: Changes in working capital:
—FE — Inventories 4,616 (15,883)
—memERD — Non-current portion of deposits — 1,936
— AHEE — Contract assets (41,274) (9,974)
— B ENFHE — Trade receivables (605,089) (645,873)
— BB K& RHMME  — Prepayments, deposits and other
W Fx 18 receivables 89,467 (406,132)
— B H — Provisions 998 1,038
—BHAaE — Contract liabilities 63,034 (34,710)
— B R EMENFKE — Trade and other payables 12,641 392,597
568,801 226,555

FHIRBREEEERAR
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3 BERER @ 34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (cont'd)
(b) FRERERMETH (b) Non-cash investing and financing activities
R12A318
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
WHEEREEE Acquisition of right-of-use assets 8,670 6,618
VAR 7 7 5 8 &9 15 3 (B 5£27)  Share-base payments (Note 27) 6,069 10,394
14,739 17,012
()0 FEGERAGX (c) Net debt reconciliation
TE IR EMTRERNFEES T This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements
LFaEed - in net debt for each of the periods presented.
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
FAE: Net debt:
Re kReSFEY (M E24) Cash and cash equivalents (Note 24) 1,927,283 1,973,696
& Borrowings — (2,265)
HEBE(F16) Lease liabilities (Note 16(b)) (15,271) (16,257)
FEE Net debt 1,912,012 1,955,174
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34
(c)

35
(a)

BEREM®

34 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (cont'd)

FEERAGXRE) () Net debt reconciliation (Cont’d)
BeR
HeZEY HE BR Mgt
Cash and cash Lease
equivalents liabilities Borrowings Total
AR®TT AR®TT AR®TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
M2023F1R1HEFAE  Net debt as at 1 January 2023 1,973,696 (16,257) (2,265) 1,955,174
Bene Cash flows (55,774) 10,498 18,265 (27,011)
Uy B B 18 2 B (Bff 3£32) Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 32) — — (16,000) (16,000)
FR VMR ER S New lease agreements entered into = (8,670) — (8,670)
ﬂ 85 (B E12) Interest expenses (Note 12) — (842) — (842)
EXEHHASKHEE  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
BYWHEE and cash equivalents 9,361 — — 9,361
R2023F12A31HH)FEE  Net debt as at 31 December 2023 1,927,283 (15,271) — 1,912,012
20226 1A1ERFAME  Net debt as at 1 January 2022 2,504,102 (14,439) = 2,489,663
BeRe Cash flows (547,613) 5,725 5172 (536,716)
W B AR Acquisition of subsidiaries = — (7,437) (7,437)
HRI VMR ERZ New lease agreements entered into = (6,618) = (6,618)
FERX Interest expenses = (925) = (925)
EXEHUREKIREE  Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
BNHEE and cash equivalents 17,207 = = 17,207
12022F12A31B K FAE Net debt as at 31 December 2022 1,973,696 (16,257) (2,265) 1,955,174
i 35 COMMITMENTS
BERE (a) Investment commitment
7R2023F & 2022912 A318, & &% B % As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, committed investments are
2R UNE as follows:
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR T ARET T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
REE QAR A GE R E Committed investments in an associate — 80,000

FHIRBREEEERAR
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35 RFEEBIEE) 35
(b) KREHERF—EAERBAA (b)

AEBREBETAIHECEROER
WMAEREIES BN F =1
FOARZHENTTEERIEER
AREMERBIETEELN -

B2019F 1 AMBE AEBERZE
HEBRREAEEE  UTEHEE
BEAS®KRIN -

COMMITMENTS (cont'd)

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases offices and staff dormitories under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are
between 1 and 5 years, and the majority of lease agreements
are signed with related parties and renewable at the end of the
lease period at market rate.

From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use
assets for these leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases as below.

M®12H31H
As at 31 December
2023 20224
2023 2022
AR TR AR®EF T
RMB’'000 RMB'000
156 A No later than 1 year 337 206
1-24F 1-2 years 79 —
2F LA E Over 2 years 164 —
580 206
36 BEAIXRS 36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BLrEBREBELNEER (@) Names and relationship with related parties

R QA & K E R A E A Infinity
Fortune Development Limited ' 3% A &
REBRABESAMK Y - KRRF&K
BIERRRATLAE HEZEBN
R B KRE -

The Ultimate Holding Company of the Company is Infinity
Fortune Development Limited, which was incorporated in British
Virgin Islands. The Ultimate Controlling Shareholder of the
Company is Mr. Wang and the major business is conducted in
the mainland China.
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36 BEEAEXZ 36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contd)
(b) EBEBAXSB (b) Transactions with related parties
HBZE12A318LLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR®B TR AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
12 fit B 75 Provision of services
— TREEFINERE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 599,498 917,552
— ThREMEERBENE  — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 105,025 166,701
704,523 1,084,253
R AN E AR Payment on behalf of the Group by related
parties
— FTEREEGNEEE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 40,161 24,773
HEABHEBENNERX Interest expenses related to lease liabilities
— T RAEFNELS — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 245 538
FHRFEERAMZIINERRES The prices for the above service fees and other transactions
WHBEHRENIGERETE - were determined in accordance with the terms mutually agreed
by the contract parties.
(0 EREBAESHMH () Key management compensation
B g E B A B AR B (M SE38H AT i Compensations for key management other than those for
BERESHMRINEIIDT - directors as disclosed in Note 38 is set out below.
BZEZ12A31BLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR®T R AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e Salaries 5,010 7,486
TE4 Bonuses 1,562 2,739
LA IR 19 /3 B 0 1 3K Share-based payments 1,21 2,926
ERE  (EERQESEL - BE  Pension, housing fund, medical insurances
R R it e Rk and other social insurances 837 1,068
8,620 14,219
FHIRREEEERA
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36 BEEAIRF @
(d) EEEAEETS A &R

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (contd)

(d) Balances with related parties

M12H318
As at 31 December
2023F 20224
2023 2022
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’'000
JE UK B8 B 5 IR Receivables from related parties
Z 5 pE W R IE Trade receivables
— FhAE %'J " E — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 746,200 474,089
— ThRENEEREE D — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 53,119 90,192
799,319 564,281
FERFHIE e REMEIW  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
FIE
— F R EEH E’] :"ﬁi‘ém — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 472,940 485,785
— FrREME T — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 69,441 95,132
542,381 580,917
GRHEE Contract assets
— FRAEESINERE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 283,845 246,016
— FERAERNEGEREE B — Joint ventures and associates of Mr. Wang 49,033 30,413
332,878 276,429
FEU R T SR A4 EE  Total receivables and contract assets from
ek related parties 1,674,578 1,421,627
J& 11 /88 Bék 05 RKIB Payables to related parties
aRaE Contract liabilities
— FRAEEFINEE — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 6,544 21,894
— EFRAENEEREE — Joint ventures and associates of Mr Wang 2,740 193
9,284 22,087
HEBE Lease liabilities
— ThREEHNER — Entities controlled by Mr. Wang 3,275 6,809
FE ST BA B 5 SRIB 4B R Total payables to related parties 12,559 28,896
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37

38

BEFERMEEENRS 37

HE2023F12A831ALFE A& H
RBEWBEETHBARREIINER -

EENANERER 38
BHE2023F12A31B L TEEES
BERBEZITA:

HITES

BB E(EER)

518 9 4 (K aE)

REBFrL

FHITES

TBRMEE
BN FRE
BB EAE

BYFATES

REMLL
KEXRE
AHREE

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

TRANSACTION WITH NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group has not
acquired addition interests in certain subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

Until 31 December 2023, the following directors and senior
managements were appointed:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiaoming, Chairman
Mr. Yang Bo (Note 1)
Ms. Wu Qiangian

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wang Xiaosong
Mr. Lv Xiaoping
Mr. Lu Zhongming

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhang Yan
Mr. Zhu Wei
Mr. Xu Xinmin
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(a)

38 ESEMANZREZR W 38 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Contd)
EEME (a) Directors’ emoluments
HZE2023F12A31HILFE - 8 The directors received emoluments from the Group (in their role
rEEBFRKEKBRNMS(EHEZTER as senior management and employee before their appointment
EE2ANRUNEREEEREE S as directors respectively) for the year ended 31 December 2023
)8R as follows:
Nt EERER
e e T4 EROAR BAHIER @zt
Housing
allowances
and
contributions
Share-based to a retirement
2] Name Fees Salaries Bonuses payment scheme Total
ARETR  ARETr  AR%Tn ARETn AR%Tn ARET:n
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
HTES Executive Directors
HIBEE Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 3,007 1,000 650 163 4,820
AELL Mr. Yang Bo - 850 M7 35 13 1735
REFRL Ms. Wu Qiangian - 750 150 130 143 1173
BukufmEs Independent Non-executive Directors
fELL Ms. Zhang Yan 200 - - - - 200
RERE Mr. Zhu Wei 200 - - - - 200
FHELE Mr. Xu Xinmin 200 - - - - 200
600 4,607 1,567 1,105 449 8,328

M1 : EEEMR2023F128278 5 MR #H &
EBHEARMTESFAETHECLALA
B HehBRZESKE  MiEE
EFERRABEZEIRATEERARA

RE HERERZEEKRE -

Note 1: The Board announced on 27 December 2023 that Mr. Gao Xinli resigned
as an executive director of the Company and ceased to be a member
of the environmental, social and governance committee while Mr. Yang
Bo has been appointed as an executive director of the Company and a
member of the environmental, social and governance committee effective
immediately.

S-Enjoy Service Group Co., Limited
2023 Annual Report

235



RE P BRRME
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

383 EEMAaEKkER®@® 38 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

@) EEM<£ @ (a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)
HZEZ2022F12831HIEFE - EFH The directors received emoluments from the Group (in their role
AEEBREKBRNMS(EHEZTER as senior management and employee before their appointment
BEEZHINMNNSREREREE S as directors respectively) for the year ended 31 December 2022
T as follows:

WRkiRE EEHER
fe i T EREOAT RAGEHHER st
Housing
allowances and
contributions
Share-based to a retirement
t4 Name Fees Salaries Bonuses payment scheme Total
ARBTL  AREFT ARBTn  ARETR  ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

HTES Executive Directors
HIBEE Mr. Qi Xiaoming - 3,007 660 1,027 151 4,845
S bk M. Gao Xili - 1,465 47 483 134 2,499
REFRL Ms. Wu Qiangian — 625 145 309 134 1,213
BukumEs Independent Non-executive Directors
fELL Ms. Zhang Yan 200 = = = - 200
REEE Mr. Zhu Wi 200 - - - - 200
Bl Mr. Xu Xinmin 200 - - - - 200
600 5,097 1222 1,819 419 9,157
FMITEFIEMNEE BN FEE The non-executive directors, Mr Wang Xiaosong, Mr Lv Xiaoping
K e FRBR 5% A A B £ 20234 ) 20224F and Mr Lu Zhongming did not receive any emoluments from the
1274318 L6 & I & 8 7 5% B YT Group during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.
I B - EBEMREE - BN FEER Mr Wang Xiaosong, Mr Lv Xiaoping and Mr Lu Zhongming have
P AROBA SR A F B B A A E B & B, respectively made arrangements with the Company under which
Blit BEEEREXRERERSZ they have waived or agreed to waive their emoluments.
T

FHIRBREEEERAR
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38
(b)

(c)

(d)

EENABERES®
i % 6938 k3B R

RE B 20234 N2022F12A318 I F
B BRIBEABR A RGO &R IKE

RIS 862 b - B 3 ok 2 A
B R PR OE 7 -
EENBRER

R E 220234 N2022F12A318 I F
B EBEEUAESEHEBREF -

RESEERBAF=STRHEN
K&

R E E20235F K2022412A318 1F £
E oHEEERIANAMNES H#M A
+ 5 AN & E U AT ] B & 7B A N AR
S8 MAXEERSIBHALIEEDH
HE RERBEBAMHE - LN B
EXHREUESARARESTASR
EEENRE

38
(b)

(c)

(d)

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

Retirement benefits of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no additional retirement benefit received by the directors
except for the attribution to a retirement benefit scheme in
accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC.

Termination benefits of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no termination benefits received by the directors.

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available the services of directors

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, no
director or any of the five highest paid individuals received any
emolument from the Group as an inducement to join, upon
joining the Group, leave the Group or as compensation for loss
of office. Also, no consideration was paid for making available
the services of the directors or senior management of the
Company.
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38
(e)

39

40

EEMAZRER® 38

LESE RERESHEHNE (e)
ABRBREEFHENERAR
BANER EERREMXS
NEEER

R E E2023F 20229128318 IEF
B ARRHARE /M E QB (M HE
B ENEEAITE A LAEMNE
HEBERREMRS -

Br £ X BTt b - B B E22023F K&
2022128318 Ik F /8 5k & £20234F
$2022F12 A31B I FEREAERE -
ARG BENVEAEBEEREH -
BARBZEEREFHEEERZ A E
BENERNEARS THRAH -

HAREIE 39

20234 N2022F12A31H » KN &
ME=ZTFTHNAREBELELCHMERKN
RARBBEHIRBITER -

BB =18 40

MR202451F  AE B HE T g 2 + 7]
VHhE - BERBE ASEEBLEESR
HFENTO% EBHEDNEETEER
ARIMBETFEEZ LT  HEAAR
#58,800,0007T ° 2 HE KD =X
fF - E A ZE—H A R%10,000,0007T
BR2024F2AX U KREZBHAR
#513,800,0007C B 2024 F3A X 1+t »

FHIRBREEEERAR
2023F F 3

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS (Cont'd)

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings entered into
by the Company or subsidiaries undertaking of the Company,
where applicable, in favour of directors.

Except for those mentioned above, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had interests, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 or at
any time during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities or outstanding guarantees in
respect of payment obligations to third parties.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

In January 2024, the Group entered into an agreement with Ms.
Wang Ting pursuant to which, the Group will dispose all 70%
of its interest in Shanghai Xiangxi back to Ms. Wang Ting at a
consideration of RMB58,800,000. The consideration will be paid
in three installments, of which first batch of RMB10,000,000
was paid on February 2024 and second batch of RMB13,800,000
was paid on March 2024.
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41 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

AT B AR R & Company statement of financial position
7A2023%F K% 2022%F12H831H As at 31 December 2023 and 2022
M12A31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
B 5 AR T ARET T
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
EE Assets
REBEE Current assets
T RIE e R EMBEUY  Prepayments, deposits and other
KIE receivables 261,203 262,996
BEARBEFAEBZNESE  Financial assets at fair value
BE through profit or loss 20 13,878 80,636
BARBEFAEME2EI A Financial assets at fair value
WEmEE through other comprehensive
income 20 2,377 5,996
BekIBeEEY Cash and cash equivalents 34,964 111,240
mENEE B Total current assets 312,422 460,868
kREBEE Non-Current assets
KRB RARIMNIEE Investment in subsidiaries 67,071 61,002
EREEELTE Total non-current assets 67,071 61,002
BEBE Total assets 379,493 521,870
B &= Equity
AARBEEAEGESR Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
[N Share capital 25 59,980 59,973
B Reserves 646,177 781,859
Ee Accumulated losses (332,851) (322,465)
R Total equity 373,306 519,367
REBAE Current liabilities
B 5 K E A FE 5 IE Trade and other payables 6,187 2,503
mBBERRE Total current liabilities 6,187 2,503
SRAE Total liabilities 6,187 2,503
BzRAEEAE Total equity and liabilities 379,493 521,870
REBEEFE Net current assets 306,235 458,365
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#H £2023412 A31H L [Z For the year ended 31 December 2023

41 REFBMRRRF B 41 FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
() MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
AR BB AR R F (&) Company statement of financial position (Cont'd)
bl A N B B RS AR R 2R 78 B B B R The above statement of financial position of the Company
T—RBME - should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
KRB EMARRNRE L EFTERK2024 The Company statement of financial position of the Company
FIABAMEIBHATEERRE were approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2024 and
F - were signed on its behalf.
& /)N BB %18 Qi Xiaoming Yang Bo
EZE 2 Director Director
PNEIRERD Reserve movement of the Company
M12H31H
As at 31 December
2023%F 20224
2023 2022
AR TR ARET T
RMB'000 RMB'000
M®1A1H As at 1 January 781,859 900,939
BARBEGFAZEW AR  Changes in fair value of debt instruments at
EHRTEAREBED fair value through other comprehensive
(Bt 3£19) income (Note 19) (3.619) (46,394)
RAABEFAEMER Credit loss of debt instruments at fair value
WARNEEIAEREE through other comprehensive income
(Ht5£19) (Note 19) 3,619 49,889
ANARE KA B (M FE31) Dividends declared by the Company (Note 31) (139,413) (134,944)
LA RS 12 72 E 5 89 4 2 (K #£27) Share-based payment (Note 27) 6,069 10,394
RIL2019F B A #E 5T 87T1#  Exercise of share option under 2019 share
B8 R% #E (P9 3£ 25) option scheme (Note 25) 534 5,740
REBRMEEEWNE Acquisition of shares for Employee Share
P& £ (Bff 5% 26) Award Scheme (Note 26) (2,872) (3,765)
M12H31H As at 31 December 646,177 781,859

FHIRBREEEERAR
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